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* Thesae sechons make up the Directors’ Report.

This part of the Annual Report sets out the mformaton

on the Group's pncaipal actvties together with 8
remew of the davelopment and performancs of the

Giroup, Inciuding financial performancs, N accordance

with Section 417 of the Companies Act 2006

Detals of the sechons that form the Business Review
can ba found on page 64

Adjusted operating profit’ Adjusted diluted earnings
per share?

£m pence

Dwvidend per share Net debt

pance £m

1 Continuing operations, before exceptional itemns and amartisation of intangible assets

acquired through business combinations

2 Contnuing operations, before exceptional items and amortisation of intangible assets

acquired through business combinations and post-retirement benafit ntarest
3 Thisinciudes the proposed final dwdend

Statutory results

2013 2012
Operating profit £336m £404m
Profit before tax £309m £378m
Profit for the year {on total operations) £278m £308m
Diluted eamings per share {on total operations) 58 5p 64 3p

Adjusted operating profit, adjusted profit before tax and adjusted earnings por share
Unless stated otherwise, adjusted operating profit, adjusted profit before tax and adjusted
earnings per share in thig Annual Report exclude discontinued opearatons and are before
exceptional items and amortisation of Intangible assets acquired through business combinations.
In addibon, adjusted profit before tax and adjusted earnings per share exclude post-retirement
bensfit interast

Trademarks

SPLENDA® and the SPLENDA® logo are trademarks of McNail Nutritionals, LLC
Definitlons/cautionary statement

Please read the statements on the inside back cover
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Overview

Introduction to the Business

A leading global provider
of ingredients and solutions

About us: Tate & Lyle 1s a leading global provider of
ingredients and solutions to the food, beverage and other
industnes. Through our production facilities across the world,
we turn raw matenals into distinctive, high-quality ingredients
for our customers. Our iIngredients and solutions add 1aste,
texture, nutriion and functionality to products used or
consumed by milllons of people every day.

Building a platform for future growth: Our vision 1s

to become the leading global prowider of speciality food
Ingredients and solutions. Over the last three years we have
been taking a number of steps to realise this vision through
our business transformation procgramme

The first part of the transformation, which 1s now complete,
was about realigning and focusing our resources on growing
our Specialty Food ingredients business unit

The second part 1s about getting the right enabling platform
in place. We have made good progress including the move
to a new operating model compnsing two global business
units, implementing a global Shared Service Centre and the
initial roll-out of our global IS/T system

Attention 1s now turning towards growth and we have started
to see signs of this coming through, mcluding a significant
Increase In customer engagement following the opening of our
global Commercial and Food Innovation Centre, solid progress
in growing the innovation pipeline and launching new products
and, increasing our presence in emerging markets.

Qur Strategy pg6

Thus Annual Report is available on our
Annual Report 2013 microsits,
www tateandiyle com/annualreport2013

Read more Find out more about Tate & Lyle
Look out for this iIcon which refers you For more information about us,
to the subject in more detail vistt our webstte, www tateandlyle com

MOIIBAQ
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Overview

Our Group at a Glance

A global business dedicated

to serving our customers from

over 30 locations worldwide

Sales

£3,256m°

2012 — £3,088m

Adjusted profit before tax

£329m°

2012 - £318m

Net debt

£479m°

2012 — £476m

Employees worldwide

4,326

Tate & Lyle operates through two global business units'
Specialty Food Ingredients and Bulk Ingredients

These two business units are supported by our Innovation
and Commercial Development group, our global Shared
Service Centre and our other global functions.

We have operations in over 30 countries, including our
manufactunng faciliies, and our global network of satelite
applications laboratories allowing us to collaborate with
customers wherever they are located and to leverage our
new global innovation hub, the Commercial and Food
Innovahon Centre in Chicago, USA

Speciality Food Ingredients

USA

Chicago, illinois

Houlton, Mane

Lafaystte, Indiana

Mcintosh, Alabama

Princeton, New Jersay

Sycamore, lihnots

>
> @ errrae

Van Buren, Arkansas

Bulk Ingredients

UsSA

Dayton, Ohio

Dacatur, llinois

Dututh, Minnesota

Lafayette, Indana

Loudon, Tennessee

LAl 31 d
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Overview

Employees by geography

1 47% North Amenca

2 37% FEurope, Mddle
East & Afnca

3 11% Latn Amenca

4 5% Asia Pacific

Adjusted operating profit!

1 54% Specialty Food
Ingredients
2 46% Bulk Ingrecients

1 Adusted operating profit
excluding central costs

Key

Latin America Europe Middle East & Africa
Buenos Aires, Argentina ® Bergamo, ftaly ® Kya Sand, South Afnca AG®
Mexico Gity, Mexico ® Kmstad, Sweden A
840 Paulo, Brazil ® Koog, Netharlands A AsiaPaciic
Lille, France @ EBnsbane, Austraia A®
Lubeck, Germany A® Jurong Island, Singapore A
Mold, UK A ® Shangha, China [
Noto, ftaly A
Qssona, ftaly A
Latin America Europe Middle East & Africa
Guadalajara, Mexico' A Adana, Turkey' A Casablanca, Morocco A
Santa Rosa, Brazil A Boleraz, Siovakia' A
Razgrad, Buigana' A Key Central/ICD Locations
Szabadegyhaza, Hungary' A Chicago, USA u
Lille, France [
k6dz, Poland "]
London, UK ]

A Manufactunng Facilites

® Applications/Techrcal
Services Facilties
8 Key Central1CD Locations

1 Jont ventura

MAIAIGAD
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Overview

Our Business Model

Turning raw
materials into
distinctive,
high-quality
ingredients and
solutions for
our customers

Through our facilities across the
world we.

e Use our innovation capabilities
to develop and enhance new
and existing products

* | everage our technical and
applications expertise to provide
a full end-to-end service for
our customers

Sources

Most of our ingredients are preduced from crops,
predominantly corn Ensunng we have a reliable
source of corn for our plants 1s essential This Inveolves
developing iong-term, mutually beneficial relationships
with growers, farmers and other commercial partners
to secure supply, understanding commodity markets,
and hedging costs where feasible Supply chain ethics
are mportant to us We apply clear standards, both
operational and ethical, to our suppliers, and work
with them to help them meet cur compliance needs
This 1s essential if we are 1o meet our custorners'
requirements for traceability, qualty and ethical
standards throughout the supply chain

Developing sustainable products pg 34

Tate & Lyle PLC Annual Report 2013




Qverview

Operations

We operate through two global business units — Speciality
Food Ingredients and Bulk Ingredients Each business
unit has its own manufactunng and commercial
operations to provide the necessary focus and expertise
for customers In ther two respectve end markets

Speciality Food Ingredients (SFl)

SFl produces distinctive, high-value ingredients which are sold
in markets where customers look for technical and innovation
capabilty, nsight and flexibility SFl also has a food systems
or blending business which sources ingredients and uses
them along with our own to develop bespoke combinations

of ingredients pnmarily for small- to medium-sized customers

Speciality Food Ingredients pg 15 J

Customers

Food and beverage 1s our most significant market
compnsing over 70% of Group sales Cther markets
we sell Into include industnal, arumal feed, and
pharmaceutical and personal care

Customer understanding drives all that we do

We use market research to understand the consumer
{our customer's customer), the markets we operate

in and our customers’ needs We use this insight to
drve our own product development, to differentiate
ourselves from our competrtors and, importantty,

to give our custormners an advantage by working with
us For large customers, we provide technical and
applications support For smaller customers, we are
often therr ‘outsourced’ R&D team

{ICD)

products and technclogies

Innovation and Commercial Development

Both business units, but principally SFi, are
supported by the ICD group ICD bnngs together
research and development,
global marketing and open Innovation into one
global team, to prowvide an integrated approach

to developing and commaercialising innovative new

innovation and Commercia! Development: pg 20

platform management,

/

Bulk Ingredients (Bl)

Bl produces ingrechents which are relatively undifferentiated
and are sold m markets where customers principally look for
supplier reliability, quality and value

Bulk Ingrediants pg 18

MB|AIDAD
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Overview

Our Strategy

How we are delivering
on our strategy

A strategy for long-term growth

Our vision is to become the leading global
provider of speciality food ingredients and
solutions. Our strategy is to deliver this
vision through

e A disciplined focus on growing cur Speciality
Food Ingredients business unit through

— deeper customer understanding
— continuous innovation
- stronger positions in high-growth markets

¢ Driving our Bulk Ingredients business unit for
sustained cash generation to fuel this growth

Speciality Food Ingredients pg 15
Bulk Ingredients pg 18
Innovation and Gommercial Development pg 20

o

Deeper customer
engagement

We believe that getting closer to

our customers, developing a better
understanding of ther needs and
changing the way we interact with them
1s a key part of delivering sustainable
long-term growth

Qur new global Commercial and Food
Innovation Centre in Chicago, which we
opened to customers in June 2012, helps
us transform the way we work with our
customers t has

* Ful sensory capabilities

+ Full culinary capabilities

s High-tech food processing laboratories
* A pilct plant sample preparation area

¢ Giobal access, communications
and capabilities

* The ability to expand into new
applications

Tate & Lyla PLC Annual Report 2013
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Speciality Food Ingredients

o

Innovation

Creating a world-class innovation
capability 15 & key part of our growth
strategy The Innovation and Commercial
Development (ICD) group provides a fully
integrated approach to developing and
commerciaksing innovation to meet our
customers’ needs Ideas within our
nnovation pipeline are derived from
three sources

In-house innovation {part of ICD}

* New products or technologies
generated by in-house scientists

Open innovation (part of ICD)

* Leverages our global network of
research msitutions, start-ups and
uniersities

* Provides route-to-market for
technologies or products close
to commercial launch

Tate & Lyle ventures

* Leverages our global network of
research institutions, venture funds,
universities and entreprenaurs

* Invests in early-stage companies
and manages them to exit in three
to five years

o

New markets and
customer channels

Our aim is to build our presence
significantly in emerging markets

and those parts of the speciality food
ingredients market where historically
we have been under-represented,
specifically n SMEs and private label

Emerging markets

* Bulding dedicated go-to-markst
teams in both Asta Pacific and
Latin Amenca

= Strengthening our sales and technical
resources

* Investing in local infrastructure with the
opening of new satellte applications
and techrucal services faciliies in
Mesaco City, Sac Paulo and Shanghas

SMEs and private label

* Changing the way we access and
work with SME and private label
customers by developing more direct
relationships

A —————— MexicoClty
Applications/Tachnical
Services Facilition

Séo Paulo
Applications/Tachnical

Services Faclitties

»

Recent investments
n gur innovaton network

Bulk Ingredients

O

Sustained cash
generation

Within Bulk Ingredients our strategy i1s
to prowvide stable, long-term cash flow
to help fund growth in Speciality Food
Ingredients We aim to achieve tins by

* Reducing earnings volatilty by
dversifying our ncome streams into
new areas

Optimising margins by gradually
mowving a proportion of the corn that
we gnnd away from markets that are in
long-term structural decline mto higher
margin speciality food ingredients

¢ Ensunng the secunty of our raw
materiai supply

* Reducing costs and continuing to
improve operational efficiency

MBIAIBAQ
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Overview

Key Performance Indicators

Measuring our success
against our strategy

Performance

_We focus on a number of financial performance
measures 1o ensure that our strategy successfully
delivers increased value for our shareholders

Chief Executive’s Review pg 12

What we measure

Sales of speciality food ingredients

Adjusted operating profit

Return on caprtal employed. adjusted profit before interest,
tax and exceptional tems dmided by adjusted average net
operating assets' for continuing operations

Cash conversion cycle®: controllable working capital dradad
by quarterly sales, multiphed by the number of days in the quarter

Financial strength

Woe look at measures of financial strength to ensure that
we maintain the financial flexibility to grow the business
whilst maintaining ivestment-grade credit ratings

Group Financial Results pg 21

What we measure

Net debt to EBITDA multiple’: the number of times the
Group's net borrowing exceeds its trading cash flow EBITDA
15 earnings before exceptional items, interest, tax, depreciahon
and amortisation

Interest cover®: the number of times the profit of the Group
exceeds Interest payments mads 1o service its debt

Corporate responsibility

It 1s important that we act responsibly and consider
carefully the impact our actnvties have on all stakeholders
including employees, customers and the communities in
which we operate

Corporate Responsibiity pg 29

What we measure

Recordable incident rate: the number of injunes per 200,000
hours that require more than first aid, for employees and
contractors

Lost-work case rate the number of injuries that resulted in
lost-work days per 200,000 hours, for employees and contractors

1 Defined as shareholders’ equity excluding net debt, net tax assats/liabiliies, net retremment benefit obhigations and net operating assets of discontnued aperations
2 Defined as controllable working caprial dvided by quarterly sales muttiplied by number of days in quarter on a four quarter roling basis (a reduction in the number

of days represents an improvement)

3 Net debt, EBITDA, profit and interest are defined under the Group's bank covenant condions and are based on unrounded numbers Net debt 1s calculated using

averags rates of exchange

Tate & Lyle PLC Annual Report 213




Ovarview

The Board has chosen a number of key performance indicators

to measure the Group’s progress The table sets out these

Indicators, explaining how they relate to our strategic priorities,

and how we performed against them this year.

Why we measure it How we performed Comment
2013 2012 Change
To ensure we are successful In growing £947m £887m +8% Delvered solid sales growth in SH,
the business unit which 1s the key area (constant underpinned by 4% volume growth
of strategic focus for the business currency)y’
To track the underlying performance £358m £348m +4% 7% growth in Bulk Ingredients with
of the business and to ensure sales (constant Speciality Food Ingredients flat as a
growth translates into iIncreased profits currency) result of a step change in fixed costs
due to restart of the US Sucralose faciity
and business transformation intiatives
To ensure that we continue to generate 18 8% 216% -180bpss Growth in operating assets cutstripped
a strong rate of return on the assets growth in adjusted operating profit
that we employ and have a disciplined reflecting restart of the US Sucralose
approach to capital Investment facility, investment in business
transformation intiatives and higher
working capital
To track how efficient we are In 42 days 36days  Lengthened Higher inventory levels in the US due
turning increased sales into cash by 6 days to higher corn prices, aflatoxin® and
and to ensure that working caprtal additional sucralose inventory following
1S managed effectively the restart of the US sucralose facilty
Why we measure it How we performed Comment
2013 2012
To ensure that we have the appropriate 10x 11x Ratio remamns well inside our internal
level of financial gearing and that w maximum limit of 20x Improvement
g 9 N reflects modest growth in EBITDA and
generate sufficient profits to service our small reduction N net borrowings
debt These measures are a key focus o
;c:c;:):gﬁfggp%r;wders of both debt 111x 11x Ratio remains well above internal
minmum hmrt of 5 0x
Why we measure it How we performed’ Comment
2012 2011 Change
The safety of our employees and 085 085 Na change
contractors s of paramount importance
Ensuring safe and healthy condittons
at all our locations Is essental to our
operation as a successful business 0.26 021 Three more 19 lost-work cases globally in 2012,

lost-work cases

compared to 16 in 2011

4 Changes in constant currency ara calculated by translating comparatve penod resufts at eurrent penod exchange rates
5 Basis points (one hundred basis points equates to one percentage point)

6 A fungus impacting corn quality caused by prolonged hot and dry condions
7 Unlike our other KPls, we report safety performance by calendar year because we are réquired to do so for other reguiatory reporting purposes

MIINIBAD

Tate & Lyle PLC Arrual Report 2013




Overview

Chairman’s Statement

We remain on track with our
objective of delivering a platform
for sustainable long-term growth

A key strength of long-standing companies such as
Tate & Lyle 1s therr ability to reinvent themselves As one of
only two companies currently listed in the FTSE 100 index

that have also been members of the FT30 since its inception

in 1935, Tate & Lyle has successfully managed change
for nearly 100 years — including our current transformation

journey which began in 2010 — and this 1s one of the reasons

why we are still going strong today

Introduction

As a company, Tate & Lyle has embraced
change and responded 1o it effectively over
many decades, but it 1S also important to
recognise those aspects of the business
that have remaned constant and been
cntical in ensuring our sucesess throughout
our long history

First, our core values of safety, respect and
integrity remain enshrined within the culture
of the business and guide how we operate
both internally and externally Second is our
core competence of manufactunng and
delivenng food ingredients and sclutions to
our custorners with the highest standards
of quality, traceability and reliability

These attnibutes have helped us get to
where we are today and will rernain at the
very core of the business in the future as
we build upon the work we have done over
the last three years

Safety

We have no higher priority than safety

and are committed to providing safe and
healthy working conditions for all our
employaes and contractors, and our safety
performance continues to compare well
with compantes both within and outside
our industry

While we delivered an improverment i our
contractor recordable incident rate dunng
calendar year 2012, there are still areas
where we can do better The overall
recordable incident rate in 2012 was the
same as in 2011 and the number of
lost-work cases ncreased by three

Dunng the year, we undertook a wide
range of safety mprovement projects and
we continue to work to assure the safety
of all those who work at our sites Qur
employees can be nightly proud that we
are a leader in safety performance in our
sector, but we are not complacent and
we continually strive for improvement

Strategy

In May 2010, we announcsd a number of
impertant steps to help your Company build
a platform capable of delivermg sustanable
ong-term growth and to achieve our vision
of becoming the lsading global provider of
speciality food ingredients and solutions
underpinned in part by the cash generated

10
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Ovarview

“Our core values of
safety, respect and
integrity remain
enshrined within
the culture of the
business and guide
how we operate
both internally and
externally.”

Recordable incident rate!

Lost-work case rate’

1 Unlke our other KPls, we report
safety performance by calendar year

by our Bulk Ingredients busingss unit

Since then, significant progress has been
made under the leadership of Javed
Ahmed and his team and we have started
to see the inhial signs of the INnvestment we
have made coming through, but there is still
rmore work to do

Central to our abiity to deliver sustanable
growth is ymproving the way we innovate,
something that began with the creation

of the Innovation and Commercial
Development group §CD) in June 2010
Since 1its formation, ICD has made good
prograss developing the innovation pipeline
and in partnership with the Speciality Food
Ingredients business unit has driven the
launch of new products during the year

Our naw global Commercial and Food
Innovation Centre in Chicago, USA

which opened to custornmers in June 2012,
reinforces not only our commitment to
establish a world-class nnovation
capability but also significantly improves
how we interact and collaborate with
customers | am delighted to say that
since it opened we have seen a significant
ncrease In the level of actvity and
interaction with customers and therr
feedback has been extremely encouraging

Board composition and diversity
On 1 December 2012, wa welcomed
Virginia (Ginny) Kamsky and Anne Minto
to the Board as non-executive directors
Ginny’s detalled knowledge and expenence
of China and Anne's broad corporate
experence will be of considerable benefit
to the Board On behalf of the Board,

I would also like to thank Evert Henkes,
who retired from the Board after nine
years of highly-valued serice

We have taken advantage of the
opportunities provided by our new global
Shared Service Centre in Poland and the
global Commercial and Food Innovation
Centre in Chucago, USA to broaden the
make up of our employees in tarms of
gender and ethnicity

Corporate responsibility and
risk management

We continue to strengthen our internal
control arrangements and associated
reporting of environmental, social and
governance matters

Reflecting the mportance the Board
places on ethical leadership we rolled out
our new Code of Ethics to replace our
Code of Business Conduct and reviewed
and updated our supply chain standards
We butt additional corporate responsibility
requirements INto our standard purchase
contract terms and conditions and
implemented a new sustainability nsk
assessment and evaluation tool for our
product developrment pipeline

Financial performance

Entering the year, we faced a number

of headwinds, including the step change
in fixed costs assocated with the restart
of producton at our SPLENDA® Sucralose
facility In Mcintosh, Alabama and our
business transformation intiatives | am
therefore pleased to report that despite
these we have delivered growth in adjusted
profit before tax of 4% to £329 milkon
(2012 - £318 millon) and adjusted dituted
earnings per share of 5% at constant
currency to 57 Op per share (2012 - 54 7p
per share)

Dividend

The Board recognises the mportance of
the dwvidend to shareholders and follows a
progressive dividend policy with the aim of
growing the dwdend over time taking into
account the long-term earnings prospects
of the business

In ine with our progressive dvidend
policy, the Board I1s recommending a

5 6% increase in the final dvidend to 18 8p
{2012 - 17 8p) making a full year divdend
of 26 2p (2012 — 24 9p} per share, up 5 2%
on the prior year Subject to shareholder
approval, the proposed final dvidend will
be due and payable on 2 August 2013

to all sharsholders on the Register of
Members on 28 June 2013 In addrtion

to the cash dwvidend option, shareholders
will continue to be offered a Dividend
Rainvestment Plan (DRIP) alternative

Finally, | would ke to thank all our
employees who have again worked
immensely hard to deliver this ysar’s results
while contnuing to make good progress in
transforming Tate & Lyle

Sir Peter Gershon
Chairman
29 May 2013

MBIAIBAQ
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Opesrational Review

Chief Executive’s Review

The underlying business performed
well as we build on the foundations

we have put in place

Highlights

¢ Specialty Food Ingredients sales up 7% to £947 million (8% In constant
currency) with adjusted cperating profit broadly in ine (0% in constant
currency) with prnior year at £213 million (2012 - £214 million)

* Bulk Ingredients adjusted operating profit up by 6% to £182 million (7% in
constant currency)

* Adusted diluted earnings per share up 4% to 57 0p (5% in constant currency)

* 5 6% increass proposed for the final dwvidend to 18 8p, making a total
dmdend increase of 5 2% t0 26 2p

¢ Promising new product launches including our stevia-based, natural, no-
calone sweetenar, TASTEVA® Stevia Sweetoner and salt reduction product,
SODA-LO® Salt Microspheres

Overview of Group’s financial
performance

} am pleased to report that the undertying
business continues to perform well and
that, despite having entered the year facing
a number of headwinds, including the step
change in fixed costs associated with

the restart of our SPLENDA® Sucralose
facilty in Mclintosh, Alabama and our
business transformation intiatives, wa
have made progress

Sales for the year were £3,256 million
(2012 - £3,088 million), an increase of

5% (B% In constant currency) on the prior
year with sales in our Specialty Food
Ingredients business unit growing by 7%
(8% In constant currency) to £947 million
(2012 - £887 milion) Adjusted operating
profit ncreased by 3% {4% i constant
currency) to £358 millon (2012 — £348
milkon) with adjusted operating profit in
Speciality Food Ingredients broadly in ine
with the prior year at £213 million and up
6% (7% in constant currency) in Bulk
Ingredients at £182 million (2012 - £172
million} Adjusted profit before tax increased
by 4% (4% In constant currency) to £329
mithon (2012 — £318 milion) with adjusted
dituted earnings per share also up 4% (5%
in constant currency) to 57 0p (2012 - 54 7p)

Financial management and
balance shest

Our average guarterty cash conversion
cycle increased from 36 days 10 42 days
This was driven by an increase in working
capital Including higher inventory levels
inthe US due to higher com prices and
aflatoxin, and the requirement for
addiicnal sucralose inventeory following
the restart of production at cur Mclntosh,
Alabama facility

The key performance indicators (KPIs)

of our financial strength, the ratio of net
debt to earnings before interast, tax,
depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)
and interest cover, remain well within our
intemal targets At 31 March 2013, the
net debt to EBITDA ratio was 10 times
(2012 - 11 timas), against our upper Imit
of 20 times Interest cover on total
operatons at 31 March 2013 was 111
umes (2012 - 111 times}), agan comfortably
ahead of our minimum limit of 5 0 times

12

Tate & Lyle PLC Annual Report 2013




Opaeraticnal Review

Adjusted operating profit'
£m

Building a platform for
long-term growth

Dunng the year, we reached a number
of important milestones in our business
transformation pregramme

In June 2012, we formally opened our global
Commercial and Food Innovation Centre

in Chicago, USA to customers, featuning
state-of-the-art laboratones, a
demenstration katchen, sensory testing,
analytical faciihes and a pilot plant Since
then we have seen a step change in the

dedicated open innovation web portal
{www tateandlyleopeninnovation com)

to encourage potential partners to submit
proposals aligned with our innovation
priontes In May 2013, following our
earlier agreement on SODA-LO® Satt
Microspheres, we broadened our
relationship with Eminate, a subsidiary of
Nottingham University, with an agresment
to develop ts hollow microsphere
technology {o reduce sodium bicarbonate
in baked goods

:g:t.lssg:dre:illuted earmings level of customer engagement with a We launched a new £30 million eight-year -g
significant increase in the number of visits ~ vénture capital fund on 1 January 2013, d
pance to the new facity as well as an mpravernent  bullding on our existing venture fund g
in the qualdy of customer interaction activities The new fund will nvest in H
In Apnl 2013, the global Commercial and start-ups and expansion-stage companies o
Food Innovation Centre was awardead in both developed and emerging markets 2
the prestigious Gold certfication by LEED!' I food sciences and enabling technologies &
(Leadership n Energy and Environmental ~ The combination of the new fund and our
Design) The total investment made to internal Open Innovation team will give us
develop the new Centre was £33 million, access to the full spectrum of new iIdeas,
ncluding £7 million of costs incurred technologies and opportunities n the global
dunng the year food science sector enabling us to deliver
1 Continuing operations befare morg innovative solutions to our customers
excaptional items ang amortisation Our Innovation and Commercial
:’,:;QLZ’;?L?}:ﬁ:;g’goarﬁg:ﬂggns Development group (ICD), continues to On 17 May 2013, WST acquwedelovelop,
5 Continuing operations, before develop the new product development an earty-stage manufacturer of oat beta
axcephonal ftems, amortisation pipeline across our core platforms of glucan The acquisition broadens our
of ntangible assets acqurrad Swesteners, Texturants and Health & health and wellness offenng and adds
through business combingtions Wellness Dunng the vear, ICD supported a clean-label, speciality fibre with strong
and post-retirement bensfit interest the launch of six new products including health clasms to our existing corn-based
our stevia-based, natural, no-calone fiare portfolio
sweetener TASTEVA® Stevia Sweetener,
Net debt of £479 milion at 31 March 2013 and our salt reduction product, SODA-LO®  We continued to grow our presence In
was shghtly higher than at the end of last Salt Microspheres for which the formal emerging markets In December 2012,
year (2012 — £476 mulbon), reflecting an grant of the US patent was confirmed in we opened our newly upgraded offices
Increase In working caprtal, capital March 2013 To drive the successful and applications centre in Shanghal, which,
expenditure payments including cur commeraialisation of our new products, togsther with the opening of applications
business transformation projects and an we have recrganised and strengthened and technical services faciliies in Mexico
increase in the value of dollar denominated  our marketing organisation ncluding the City and Sao Paulo last year, has
debt as a result of the strengthening of the  recrutment of a new Senior Vice President,  strengthened our ability to serice
US dollar aganst sterling Global Marketing customers In these regions and expanded
our global mnovation network These new
Return on capital employed at 19 8% QOur Open Innovation team continues to factihes include pilot plant equipment for
(2012 — 21 89%) was lower than the pror search for opportunities globally to form the production of food and beverage
year driven by an increase in gperating parinerships with universiies, résearch prototypes which are helping us leverage
assets reflecting the restart of our institutes and start-ups specialising in food  our applications know-how and technical ‘
SPLENDA® Sucralose faciity In Mcintosh,  science In December 2012, we signed axpertise to help meet local taste |
Alabama, investment in our business an agreement with Nand Proteins Limited,  preferences and respond rapidly to our
transformation inhiatives and higher levels a spn-out from Henot-Watt University customers We have also continued to
of worlang capital within the business in Edinburgh, to continue developing an
sarly-stage protein ingredient technology i
for use in the food texturants space
In January 2013, we launched a new, 1 LEED cartification 15 official recogrition that the
destgn, fit-out angd operation of a building comphes
with the requiremnents prescribed wathin the LEED
Key Performance Indicators pg 8 rating systems of the US Green Building Council®
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Operational Review

Chief Executive’s Review continued

expand our go-to-market and techrical
teams In both Asia and Latin Amenca
allowing us to broaden our coverage In
these regions in terms of both product
categones and geography

Global Shared Service Centre and
IS/IT system

Cur global Shared Service Centre In £6dZ,
Poland i1s operating well having successfully
completed its first full year of operations
processing financial transactions for our
European and US businesses

In July 2012, we deployed our new global
IS/1T systam acrass the majority of aur
European cperations alongside a new set
of business processes Since then, we
have gained invaluable practical sxpenence
operating the new system and processes
In & live environment This has shown us
that while the new system mesets the
day-to-day needs of the business, we need
to adapt the design to meet the high-quality
operational capabilities we require, and to
realise further benefits, some of which have
been dentified as a result of operating the
new system Accordingly, to allow tme to
develop, buid and test the design changes,
we have decided to extend the next phase
of the system's deployment into the first
half of calendar year 2014

Given that the new system I1s a key enabler
of our global operating model, it warrants
taking the addibonal tme As aresult,

the total investment in the global Shared
Service Centre and ISAT system s
expected to increase by £45-60 million,
dependent on the final date of
implementation, bringing the total expected
investment in these projects to around
£120-135 milion Based on our current
estimates, iIncluding the benefits that have
already been delivered from these projects,
we continue 1o target a three-year cash
payback on the total investment following
implermentaton of the ISAT system across
the business

Our global Commercial and Food
Innovation Centre is driving
customer engagement and new
product development

The opening of our new state-of-the-art
global Commercial and Food Innovation
Centre s helping us step up the level of
customer interachon and get new
products to market faster Dunng the
year, we made sohd progress increasing
ths number of projects in the new
product development pipeline and
launching new products including our
stavia-based natural, no-calorie
sweetener, TASTEVA® Stevia Sweetener
and our salt reduction product
SODA-LO® Salt Microspheres

Durnng the year, we incurred £43 million

of costs on the roll-out of the global Shared
Service Centre and the common ISAT
platform, taking the total costs to date

on these projects to £78 million

Conclusion

Three years ago we set out to build a
high-quality business, one capable of
generating sustained growth over the long
term We are on track to deliver this but
we are nct there yet While we have more
work to do, | believe we now have a sohd
foundation from which we can build

Cur new Innovation Centre in Chicago, USA
and globkal network of satellite laboratories
are working well, providing the 1deal
environment for us to get closer to our

customers We have started to get new
products intc the market and expanded
our health and weliness offenng through
the acquisition of new technologies Our
emerging markets presence and business
continues to grow as wa leverage the
investment we have made in both people
and infrastructure

A key competitve advantage for any
company is its people and its culturs We
have very talented and dedicated people
at Tate & Lyle working hard to create a
real entrepreneunal and high performance
culture and without them neone of what we
have achweved duning the year would have
been possitle | am very grateful for their
support and commitment

Key performance indicators (KPIs)
Our KPIs for the year ended 31 March 2013
are detaled onpages 8and 9

Group outlook for the year ending
31 March 2014

In Speciality Food Ingredients, we expect
to deliver good sales and profit growth with
volume growth across all major product
categones

In Bulk Ingredients, aganst a backdrop

of continued corn price volatility, improved
bulk sweetener unit marging in the US are
expected to offset a softer start n US bulk
swestaner volumes and lower 1soglucose
margins In Europe Profits withtn Bulk
Ingredients are expected to be more evenly
distnbuted between the first and second
hatf than in the pror year

Qverall, we expect 1o daliver another year
of profitable growth

Javed Ahmed
Chief Executive
29 May 2013
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QOperational Review

Speciality Food Ingredients

Growth in Speciality Food
Ingredients through focus

and depth

Specialty Food Ingredients
develops, produces and
markets distinctive, high-
qualty ngredients for food
and beverage customers
across the world. By
leveraging our manufacturing
faciles, nnovative technology
and formulation expertise,

The nsing incidence of diabetes and
obesity In both developed and developing
countnes Is drving consumers and
governments to focus more on healthier
Ifestyles and in turn, increasing demand
for ingredients from food and beverage
manufacturers in the health and wellness
space Consumer demand for more
natural, ‘cleaner label’ products i1s
increasing with close to a third of all
product launches n 2012 in Western
Europe' making some form of natural claim

. . Rapid urbanisation in emerging markets and -9
Olivier Rigaud President we help them create more nsing levels of disposable income continue 3
“Th ket f | cost-effective, better tasting ricrease the pemat'mth packaged g

iali and convenience s which in turn s ]
iy d"i":;r:;i:r:t:?:" allty | products for CONSUMErs.  Sipportmg demand for speoelfy mgrodients &
\ that provide added functionality such as ]
supported by three Speciality Food Ingredients  extending shetf-te, stability and texture 2
strong consumer trends: works closely with our Against the backdrop of continuing tough
convenience, health and Innovation and Commercial  macroeconomic conditions and a weaker
consumer environment, particularly in
wellness and ‘natural’. Development team to Europe, coupled with tugh and volatile prices
Our strong product develop a pipeline of for certain raw materials, cost optimisation
. . new products contmues to be an important driver for food
portfolio, technical and P and beverage customers, looking at ways
applications expertise Market conditions and trends g’ reducl? costs and provide more vatue-
and the investment we While the food and beverage industry ased alternatives for consumers
remains relatively resihent, ¢ g not Wi
have made over the last Immune to fluctuations n the wider Ie: d?r?gher;zrtpgtt the ‘Tg;’;b';‘tragﬁg g:gg:m
economy Nonetheless, the global posticns,
three years ma kes u_s market for specialtty food ingredierts portfolio and technical and applications
well placed to benefit continued to benefit from a number ﬁ:ﬁ:ﬁ;%i'?;%mhatg%gﬁ?:;;gg f
from these trends of underlying global consumer trends delivening long-term sustamable growth,
| >y makes us well placed to benefit from these
onger term global trends in the future
Customers » Texturants
* Large, mutti-national food and — Specualty starches
Sales beverage manufacturers - Locust bean gum
0 * Small- and medium-sized food * Health & Wellness
£947m and beverage manufacturers - PROMITOR® Soluble Com Fiber
* Prvate label food and beverage - STA-LITE® Polydextrose
manufacturers — SODA-LO® Saft Microspheres
2012 — £887m Products . ;of,’gtg",‘;{;ﬂ';’ can
* Sweeteners - Food stabiliser systems
Adjusted operating profit - Speciakty corn-based sweeteners - Functional ingredient blends
0 including crystalline fructose
£ 21 3 - High intensity sweeteners including
m SPLENDA® Sucralose,
PUREFRUIT™ Monk Fruit Extract  ~
2012 - £214m and TASTEVA® Stevia Sweetener
1 GNPD Mintel, Foo? ant:hdnnk products clamming to be 'natural’ or ‘all natural” as a proporton of all food
and dnnk product launches
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Cperational Review

Speciality Food Ingredients continued

The global speciality food ingredients market is large and growing...

Our approach to delivering
a winning strategy in this
market is to focus on three
core platforms: Texturants,
Sweeteners and Health &

Global speciality food
ingredients market

approximately US$35 billion”

—

Where Tate & Lyle plays

Sweeteners

+ SPLENDA® Sucralose

* Specialty com-based sweeteners
* PUREFRUIT™ Monk Frurt Extract

= TASTEVA®P Stevia Sweetener
Wellness, and to have deep

. iy Texturants
expertise within each one.

* Specialty food starches
* Darry stabllisers

\— Health & Wellness

+ PROMITOR® Soluble corn fibre
» STA-LITE® Polydextrose

» SODA-LO® Salt Microspheres
¢ Qat beta glucan

1 14% Sweeteners

2 20% Texturants

3 14% Funchonal food ingredients
4 8% Colours and presenatves
5 33% Havour

6 11% Other

*Source Leatherhead, SRI, LMC International Company analysis, Data as at 2010

... with growth underpinned by three strong consumer trends:

Convenience Health and wellness Natural

24/7 lifestyles increasing Greater understanding Trend towards natural,
the demand for processed of the link between diet ‘cleaner label’ foods
foods and health

Convenience product Global poputation who are obese? Product launches

launches' labelled as ‘natural™

In North Amanca per year % Men Woman In Wastern Europe* %

Sources World Health Organisation, Tata & Lyle analysis of Mintel GNPD data

1 Includes microwaveabls, on-the-go and time-saving/speedy products

2 Obesity maasured as BMI > 30

3 Food and dnink products clarming to be “natural’ or ‘all natural’ as a proportion
of alt food and dnnk product launches

4 Woestern Europe’ ncludes Austna, Beigium, Denmark, Finland, France, Garmany, Iretand Italy the
Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Spain, Sweaden, Switzerland and the UK
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Operaticnal Review

Year to 31 March Change
2013 2012 Constant
em £m Reported currency
Sales 947 887 + % +8%
Adjusted operating profit 213 214 0% 0%
Margin 22 5% 24 1% -160 bps -170 bps

Financial performance

Within Speciality Food Ingredients, volumes
grew by 4% and sales increased by 7%
{8% in constant currency) to £947 million
{2012 - £887 million} Adjusted operating
profit was broadly n ine with the prior year
at £213 milhon {2012 — £214 melion} with
operating margins down 18 percentage
points at 22 5% (2012 - 241%) The
reduction In margin reflects the step
change In fixed costs associated with the
restart of our SPLENDA® Sucralose facility
In Mcintosh, Alabama, our business

We saw strong volume growth in our
specialty corn sweeteners in emerging
markets where demand Is driven not only
by the functional benefits they provide,
ncluding the delivery of a consistent texture
and sweetness profile, but also the role
that they play as a substitute for sugarin
cost-optmesation projects The strike at
our plant In Turkey during the first quarter
resulted n volumes n Europe being lower
than the comparative period

Quwir fibres range continues to benefit from

We expect long-term demand for
SPLENDA® Sucralose to continue to be
underpinned by the health and wellness
trend as well as its supenor taste profile
and heat stability With our two unique
large-scale continuous production faciliies
now operational following the restart of our
facility in Mcintosh, Alabama we continue
to provide our customers with the highest
quality, fully traceable sucralose, produced
according to the highest standards of
sustainability and reliability in the ndustry

transformation inittiatives, lower sucralose consumers' Increased focus on health The launch of products by our customers g
volumes and higher corn input costs and wellness, and we saw strong volume within the table top segment incorporating 3
The effect of exchangs translation was growth n Europe and Asia during the our no-calone, fruit-based swestener, g
to decrease adjusted operating profit penod The acguisition in May 2013 of PUREFRUIT™ Monk Fruit Extract has 2
by £1 milion Brovelop, an early-stage manufacturer stimulated a number of other customer o
of cat beta glucan, adds a clean-label product launchses and driven incremental ]
This segment comprises three broad speciality fibre with strong health claims sales within the high-intensity sweetener g
product categories namely starch-based 1o our existing com-based fibres portfolio category We have also been encouraged
specialty ingredients, high-intensity by the intial customer respense to our
sweeteners and focd systems High-intensity sweeteners stewia-based, natural, no-calone sweetener,
Within high-intensity sweeteners, which TASTEVA® Stevia Swestensr which
Starch-based speciality ingredients compnses SPLENDA® Sucralose and launched in September 2012
In starch-based specialty ingredients, our no-calorig, natural sweeteners
sales increased by 13% (14% in constant PUREFRUIT™ Monk Frurtt Extract and Food systems
currency} to £559 million (2012 — £494 TASTEVA® Stevia Sweetener, sales were In Food Systems, our blending business,
millon) with volume growth of 5% While n ine with the comparative penod at sales were 3% lower (flat In constant
we Increased unit marging, percentage £198 milion (2012 — £197 million) with currency) at £190 million (2012 - £197
operating margins were lower due to the volurnes 1% lower milion) wath volumes also down 3% on the
Increase In fixed costs and higher corn prior year Daspite the price of certain raw
prices While we expect to deliver an After a very strong prior year, where materials remairing high dunng the period,
increase In unit marging within this category  volumes grew by 12%, SPLENDA® the performance of this product category
for the 2014 financial year, the mpact of Sucralose volumes were 1% lower than was ahead of the prior year reflecting the
passing through a further increase n comn  the pnor year as a resulit of two mamn improvements we have made in managing
pnces dunng the 2013 calendar year factors First, we had a slow start to the these higher input casts and our decision
contracting round 1s expected to result In year with a soft first quarter driven by 1o focus on higher margin blends
a slight reduction in percentage operating ~ weakness in Eurape Second, we
margins in this category expsnenced lower volumes within the Qur new techrical and commercial facility
table top segment where competition in Lubeck, Germany which opened in June
In food starches, volurmes grew across from natural alternatives has increased 2012, has helped us to increase the level of
all regions, with particularly strong growth customer interaction and has provided a
in Asia driven by nising demand for While we saw a retum towards more focal point for the creation and sharing of
convenience foods where our value-added  normal growth patterns overall n the new Ideas between our food systems
starches are used to add functionality such  second quarter and throughout the faciies around the world
as mouth-feel and extending shef Iife remander of the year, supported by the
We have also seen good dermand for our delivery of a number of growth intiatives, Group outlook for the year ending
specialty starches in Europe and the US,  this was not sufficient to match the strong 31 Mareh 2014 pg 14
particularly within the snacks sector pror year resuft
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Operational Review

Bulk Ingredients

Stable long-term cash
flows to fuel our growth

Matt Winelnger President

“Qur aim is to provide
a sustainable source
of cash to drive growth
in Speciality Food
Ingredients. Over the
last three years, we
have taken a number
of steps to diversify
our income streams
into new areas and
to reduce volatility
and costs.”

Sales

£2,309m°

2012 - £2,201m

Adjusted operating profit

£4182m°

2012 - £172m

Bulk Ingredients manufactures
and markets a range of
products including nutntive
sweeteners, industnal
starches, ethanol, acidulants
and animal feed, for food
and beverage, industnal

and agncultural customers
around the world

Bulk Ingredients also
partners with an increasing
number of bio-based
materials companies
seeking expertise in the
commercialisation of green
chemistry fermentation One
such partnership 1s our joint
venture with DuPont which
manufactures Bio-PDO® a
bio-based ingredient used
In the textile and plastics
industnes,

Customers

» Large, mutt-national food and
beverage manufacturers

= Paper and board producers

s Fuel and gasoline supplers

» Textle manufacturers

* Animal feed compounders

110 May 2012
2 10 August 2012

Market conditions

In the US, the worst drought in the
mid-west for 56 years affected both the
size and qualty of the 2012/13 harvest
with supply faling from the onginal US
Department of Agnculture’s (USDA)
projections of 15 6 milkon® to 11 9 midhon?
bushels (-24%), resulting in a sharp nse

n ¢omn pnces during the summer While
corn pnees remaned high and volatile
throughout the remainder of the financial
year, they eased slightly duning the second
half based on higher projections for ending
stocks and on the latest planting intentions
for the new harvest which if realised, would
represent the highest acreage since 1936
Corn prices in Europe, where the harvest
was also affected by a hot and dry summer,
followed a similar pattern to the US

The extremely dry and hat conditions in the
US also affected corn qualty with aftatoxin,
a by-product of a grain fungus which tends
to concentrate in certam co-products,
present in the harvest particularly in those
areas hardest hit by the drought

Sugar is the key competitor of marny of

our corn bulk sweeteners World sugar
prices fell during the year reflecting better
supplies, underpinned by a better harvest
in Brazl, which helped stock levels to
recover and created a global sumplus In the
US, prices also fell as a result of a record
beet harvest, a large crop in Mexico (where
sugar prices also fell) and the USDA's
decision to allow addtiona! imports before
the size of the domestic crop was known
Corwersely, EU prices remamed high and
increased slightly during the year refltecting

Products

* Ligud swesteners including com
syrup, dextrose and glucose

¢ Industrial starches

* Cinic acid

¢ Bio-fusls

* Animal feed including corn gluten feed
and corn gluten meal

18

Tate & Lyle PLC Annual Report 2013




Qperational Review

Year to 31 March Change
2013 2012 Constant
£m £m Reported curency
Sales 2309 220 +5% +8%
Adustad operating profit 182 172 +6% +7%
Margin 7 9% 78% +10 bps +10bps

the undersupply of mports from preferential
cane sugar suppliers over the last few
years, something that has led the EU
Commussion to intervene to boost supply

While US domestic demand for nutritive
sweeteners continued 1its long-term
downward trend, cnce again strong
seasonal demand and an increase In
exports helped offset this decline with
Mexice continuing to represent the major
export dastination In Europe, higher comn
pnces durng the second half reduced

conditions in US ethanol and a £8 milion
adverse impact from aflatoxin The full
year result includes the release of accrued
royalties and other expenses totalling

£4 5 million followmng the settlement of

the commercial dispute with Whitefox
after the year end The effect of exchange
translation was to decrease operating
profit by £2 million

This business unit compnses three broad
product categonies namely swesteners,
Industnal starches, acidulants and ethanol,

comparative pernod, we delivered a better
performance for the year overall driven

by firmer pricing In Europe, while volumes
were broadly in ine with the prior year, unit
margins were somewhat lower reflecting
higher corn costs This part of the business
remains particularty sensitive to changes

in the macro-economic environment

In US ethanol, which represents a small
part of our business, the challenging
market conditions resulted In negative
margins for much of the penod and an

1soglucose (HFCS) margins and co-products Increase in operating losses for the full 39

year compared 1o the pror year a
In the US and Europe, overall consumption  Sweeteners g
of paper and board, the main sources of In the Amencas, bulk com sweeteners The performance of our citnc acid business 2
demand for our industnal starches, was volumes decreased by 1% and sales was slightly better than the pnor year with o
shghtly lower than the prior yaar increased by 8% (7% in constant currency)  higher volumes more than offsetting the 2

to £842 million (2012 — £876 million) due impact of higher raw matenial costs Having ]
The market for US ethanol continued to be 1o higher com pnces Having achieved made a loss last year, our Bio-PDO® joint
challenging with negative industry margins ~ a modast increase in HFCS unit margins venture delivered a better performance
and inventory overhang for much of the In the 2012 contracting round, profits generating a small operating profit during
penod as a result of oversupply, following were higher within this segment than the pencd
the removal of the blender’s tax credit in the comparatve penod despite the
December 2011, and high ¢orn prces lower volumes As part of our strategy to diversify and
In response, some ndustry capacity has reduce volatility within our Bulk Ingredients
come off-ine In order to get a better In Europe, sales of bulk corn sweeteners business unit, our Bio-Ventures team
balance between supply and demand, increased by 4% (10% in constant continued to work on a number of projects
lsading to lower levels of industry utilsation  currency) to £146 milion (2012 - €141 to leverage our fermentation faciities with
and inventory milion) with volumes in ine with the prior our green-chemistry partners In December
year While unit margins duning the first 2012, we completed the first successful |

Against a backdrop of high corn prices hatf were tugher as a result of higher sugar  commercial scale production of |
and the severe drought in the US, prices prices {which prowvide the reference prce 1,4-Butanediol (Bio-BDC) with our partner '
for animal feed ncreased in the summer for isoglucose (HFCS) in the EU), they were  Genomiatica using a bio-based
peaking in September and remaining high  squeezed dunng the second half on the manufactunng process at our joint-venture
for the remander of the financial year back of higher corn prices, with the overall  facility in Loudon, Tennessee |
However, as anticipated, the increased performance for the full year ahead of the |
concentration of aflatoxin ebove certain comparative penod Co-products '
thresholds, particularty in corn gluten meal, Sales of co-products increased by 9%
restneted the end markets nto which these  Operating profits from Almex, our (©% in constant currency) to £554 million
co-products could be sold, reducing Mexacan joint venture, were up on the (2012 - £507 mullon) For the full year,
average prices In the second half comparative penod overall we generated a small amount of net

additional income from co-products with
Financial performance Industrial starches, acidulants and gains made in corn gluten feed partially
Bulk Ingredients volumes decreased by ethanol offset by lower returns on corn gluten
2% as we continued our strategy of Sales of industrial starches, acidulants and  meal where quality and prices have been
diverting gnnd to produce speciality food ethanol decreased by 2% (fiat at constant  affected by aflatoxin We will continue
ingredients, with sales up 5% (6% in currency) to £667 million (2012 - £677 o manage the nsk posed by aflatoxin
constant currancy) to £2,309 milion milhon) wath volumes down by 5% throughout the current crop until the new
{2012 —£2,201 million) as a result of higher harvest in the autumn of 2013
corn prices Adjusted operating profit In industrial starches, volumes wers 5%
ncreased by 6% (7% in constant currency)  lower as we continued to switch a Since over 80% of our US corn gnnd 1s
to £182 milkon (2012 - £172 millon) driven  proportion of corn grind 1o speaiality food utiised to produce bulk ingredients, the
by a strong performance from bulk ingrechents In the US where we are ableto  majonty of the impact from co-products
swesteners in both the US and Europs, contract for longer penods than in Europe,  1s recorded within this segment
partially offset by challenging market while volumes were lower than the

Group outlook for the year ending

31 March 2014 pg 14
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Operational Review

Innovation and Commercial Development

Sustainable long-term
growth through successfully
commercialising innovation

Karl Kramer President

“We have made good
progress developing
the innovation pipeline.”

Remit

The Innovation and Commercial
Deavelopment (ICD) group was established
on 1 June 2010 as a key enabler of

Tate & Lyle’s growth strategy ICD brings
together the following R&D, platform
management, global marketing, and open
innovation — into one global team, to
provide an integrated approach towards
developing and commerciahising iInnovative
new products and technologies

While ICD supports both of Tate & Lyle’s
global businegss units, it concentrates
particularty on growing the Speciality
Food Ingredients business unit Asa
resuli, ICD’s resources are predominantty
focused on three broad platforms wathun
the global specialty food ingredients
market — Sweetenars, Texturants, and
Heafth & Wellness

We generate ideas across our three
product platforms from both internal and
external sources intemally, we generate
ideas based on the work done by our own
scientists leveraging our deep platform
expertise and the nvestment we have
made in innovation and technical services
faciiies across the world Externally, we
generate ideas from engagement with our
custarners and also from dedicated Open
Innovation team - which seeks to develop
partnerships with urwversities, research
institutions and start-ups specialising n

ICD bnngs together R&D and the commercial functions
into one team to drive innovation and bring new products

10 market

lnnovation and
Commercial Development

I 1

Research & Platform
Development Management

] [Global Marketing ] ‘ Open Innovation

O

A clear focus on three SFl platforms

Sweeteners ] [ Texturants ’ [Heahh &WellnessJ

food science and novel ngredients, in
addrion to our ventures fund All of our
ideas and nnovations are commerciahsed
via our stage-gate process

Our achievements during the year
Our first pnionity, following the transfer of
our ICD cperations into our new global
Commercial and Food Innovation Centre in
Chicago, USA at the end of the last financial
year, was to integrate our people, including
those who were new to Tate & Lyls, fully
into the facility and to embed the Cantre
nto day-1o-day operations

In June 2012, we opened the new Centre
to customers and since then we have seen
a step change in the number of custorner
visits, inchuding customers based outside
the US

In addition, the new facility 1s helping us

to collaborate with customers on new
projects at an earlier stage and has
increased the depth and overalt quality

of customer engagement with the
involvemnent of representatives on both
sides from a broader range of areas
including R&D, applications and marketing

During the year, we realigned and refreshed
our global marketing capabilities, including
the recrutment of a new Senior \Vice
President, Global Marketing The integration
of global marketing within 1CD s helping to

provide an important ink between our
R&D scientists, platform managers and
customers and also to drve the successful
commerciahsation of new product launches

Working alongside the Speciality Food
Ingredients business untt, ICD has
supported the launch of a number of new
products In September 2012, we launched
our second natural, no-calone sweetener,
TASTEVA® Stevia Sweetener, which further
snhances our sweeteners offenng alongside
PUREFRUIT™ Monk Frurt Extract and
SPLENDA® Sucralose In November 2012,
we announced the global launch of cur new
salt-reduction technclogy, SODA-LO® Salt
Microspheres, helping to expand our offering
within our Health & Wellness platiorm

The ICD group has continued to lay the
foundations for future growth through
the expansion and development of the
innovation pipelne Dunng the vear, we
have made good progress developing
ideas and moving projects through the
pipeline Including preparing the ground
for the launch of new products In the final
stages of development

Looking ahead, we will remain focused

on bullding the innovation pipeline, opening
up new projects with customers and
supporting the launch of new products,

a number of which we aim to roll out in

the coming financial year
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Operaticnal Review

Group Financial Results

A strong balance sheet providing
a robust financial platform

Sales from continuing operations of £3,256
milhen (2012 - £3,088 milien) were 5%
higher than the prior year (6% m constant
currency) Sales in Speciahty Food
Ingredients increased by 7% (8% in
constant currency) to £947 milion (2012

— £887 million), with sales volurmes
increasing by 4% Sales m Bulk Ingredients
grew by 5% {6% in constant currency) to
£2,309 milion 2012 - £2,201 mdhon) with
volumes 2% lower

Adjusted operating profit ncreased by 3%

Adjusted net finance expense {excluding
post-retirement bensfit Interest) decreased
from £30 millien to £29 milion largely driven
by the repayment of our £100 millon bond
at ts matunty in June 2012 which was
funded from cash reserves

Adusted profit before tax increased by 4%
(4% in constant currency) to £329 million
(2012 ~ £318 milion) with adjusted diluted
earnings per share increasing by 4% (5% In
constant currency) to 57 0p (2012 - 54 7p)

{4% in constant currency) to £358 milion On a statutory basis, profit before tax from -g
(2012 — £348 milion) In Speciality Food continuing operations decreased by 18% to 3
Tim Lodge Chief Financal Officer Ingredients, adjusted operating profit was £309 million (2012 - £379 million} and profit s
broadly m line with the pnor year at £213 for the year from total operations was down 2
« million (2012 — £214 milkon) and in Bulk 10% at £278 million (2012 - £309 mulion) o
Our balance sheet Ingredients adjusted operating profit with the comparative percd benefiting 2
H H ncreased by 6% (7% in constant currency)  from a net exceptional credrt of £68 milkon 2
réemains strong with to £182 million (2012 — £172 mllion) largely related to cur decision to restart :
both net debt to production at our SPLENDA® Sucralose
EBITDA and interest facity in Mcintesh, Alabama
cover ratios well Summary of financial results
within our internal Change  fconstan:
limits, providing us Yoar to 31 March o Com g o))
H ibili Continuing operations
with the erX|b|I|ty”to —_— s256| 5088 - %
invest for growth. Adjusted operating profit 359 348 +3% +4%
Adjusted net finance expensa (29) (30)
Ad\usted profit before tax 329 318 +4% +4%
Exceptional items (12) 68
Sales Amortsation of intang:ble assets acquired
through business combinations {10) {12)
0 Post-retirement benefit interest 2 5
£3 2 56 m Prefit before tax 309 379
| Income tax expense {49} 72)
Prcfit for the year from continuing operations 260 307
201 2 - E3,088m Profit for the year from discontinued
operatons 18 2
Adjusted profit before tax Proiit for the year 278 309
Earnings per share - continuing
0 operations
£329m - saon | soon
Diluted 54.9p 64 6p
201 2 - 231 8m Adjusted earnings per share -
continuing operations
Adjusted diluted earnings per share gﬁjgd 55:'::: ssi?,z 4% +5%
0 Dividends per share
57 0 Imtenm pad T.4p 71p +4 2%
- Final proposed 18.8p 17 8p +56%
26 2p 24 9p +52%
2012 — 547[3 Net debt
At 31 March 479 476
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Additional Financial Information

As announced in May 2012 we now
exclude post-retirement benefit ntarest
from the presentation of cur adjusted
earnings All comparatives have been
restated accordingly

Basis of preparation

Adjusted performance

We report adjusted profit because it
provides both management and investors
with valuable addional information on the
performance of the business The following
itams are exciuded from adjusted profit

* rasults of discontinued operations,
including gains and losses on disposal
{Notes 12 and 37)

* oxceptonal tems from continuing
operations (Note 7)

* amertisation of intangible assets
acquired through business combinatons
{Note 15)

* post-retrement benefit interest (as
announced in May 2012) (Note 10)

This adjusted information is used internally
for analysing the performance of the
business A reconciiation of reported and
adjusted information is included in Note 43

Impact of changes in exchange rates
In companson to the pner year, the Group's
reported financial performance this year
has been adversely affected by exchange
rate translation A strengthening of the
average US dollar exchange rate against
stering has been rmore than offset by the
weakening of other currencies which has
reduced profits The movement in period-
end exchange rates, particularly the
stronger US dollar, led to an increase in
net debt as a result of the translation of
dollar-denominated debt The average and
closing exchange rates used to translate
reported results were as follows

Average rates  Closmg rates

2013 2012 2013 2012

us
dollar sterling 1.57] 160| 152 160
Euro sterling 124 115 118|120

Central costs

Central costs, which include head office,
freasury and reinsurance activiies,
decreased by £1 million to £37 million
mainty as a result of the settlement of
clams by our captive insurer

Energy costs

Energy costs were shghtly lower than

the pnior year at £170 milion (2012 - €171
million) as a result of lower consumption,
following the sale of our share In
Sucromiles SA, the former citnc acid joint
venture n Colomba, partially offset by
increased costs due to changes in energy
mix We have covered approximately 70%
of our estimated energy needs for year
ending 31 March 2014, albert at higher
prices than in the year ended 31 March
2013 which we will lock to mitigate
through further efficiencies

Exceptional items from continuing
operations

Year to 31 March

2013 2012
£m £m

Gain on disposat of joint venture
- Sucromiles 8 -
Business transformation costs 20)| (15

Reversal of fixed asset

impairments — Mcintosh and
Decatur assets - 60
Reversal of provision - Mclntosh - 23

Exceptional {loss)/gain {12) 68

Exceptional tems within continuing
operations generated a net loss of £12
millon on a pre-tax basis On 1 August
2012, the Group completed the disposal
of our shara in Sucromiles SA, the former
citric acid joint venture In Colombia, to our
former joint venture partner, Qrganizacion
Ardila Lulle, resutting In a gain on disposal
of £8 million

An exceptional charge of £20 mdhion

was recogrised in relation to business
transformation costs with £18 milkion in
relaton to the Implementation of a common
global ISAT platform and global Shared
Service Centre and £2 million in relation to
the new Commercial and Food Innovation
Centre in Chicago

The tax impact en continuing operations’
net exceptional tems Is a credit of £5 million

Exceptional iterns from continuing
operations in the pnor year comprised a
net exceptional credit of £68 million related
to our decision to restart production at our
SPLENDA® Sucralose facility in Mcintosh,
Alabama (£76 milkon credt) and the
reversal of previously impaired assets in
Decatur, linois {£7 million credit), partialty
offset by business transformation costs
(€15 milion) The tax mpact of net
axceptronal iterms from contnuing
operations was a £31 milllon charge and
the Group also recognised an exceptional
tax credit of £10 millon for the recognition
of a deferred tax asset in respect of US
forergn tax credits associated with the
disposal of the partially constructed and
mothballed corn wet mill facility in Fort
Dodge, lowa

Net finance expense

As announced in May 2012, when
calculating adjusted earnings we now
exclude the impact of post-retirement
benefit plans from net finance expense
to provide a more stable measure of the
underlying performance of the business
After excluding this impact, net finance
expense from continuing operations
decreased to £29 milion (2012 — £30
million} with a reduction in underlying
net interest expense largely driven by
the repayment of our £100 milion bond
n June 2012
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Final proposed dividend

18.8p°

+5.6%

Net debt

£479m°

For the year ending 31 March 2014,

the Group will adopt the revised IAS18
accounting standard on employee benefits
Wa will continue to exclude the impact

of post-retrement benefit plans from net
nterest expenss in calculating adjusted
earnings The standard alsc requires
admmistration costs for post-retirement
schemes to be expensed through the profit
and loss account These are approximately
£2 milhon and adoption of the revised
standard will reduce hoth reported and
adjusted operating profit by this amount

in Cecember 2010, our Vietnamese sugar
interests which we sold in June 2012 and
legacy contracts and investments of our
former Intemational Sugar Trading business

Sales from discontinued operations for
the year decreased to £10 million from
£72 million as a result of the disposat of
the Vietnamese sugar interests and the
continued run-off of actiities In the
former International Sugar Trading
business The operating profit from

our discontinued operations totalled

£18 milion, after exceptional gains of -g
2012 — £476m Taxation £26 millon (2012 ~ £11 milior) %
Our tax rate is sensitive to the geographic 3
Free cash flow mix of profits and reflects a combination of  The exceptional gans for the year relate ]
) higher rates in certain junsdictions suchas 1o the disposal of our Vietnamese sugar =
1 1 the US, rd effective rates m Singapore (due  operations (£21 millior)) and the disposal g
m to pioneer status which we were granted in~ of land and buildings relating to the former $
2003 to reflect our investment In nnovative  Molasses business (E5 million) The impact
201 2 - E79m technology) and the UK, and rates thatle  of taxation on our discontinued operations
somewhere in between for example, N was E£nil which compares to a £15 milion
certain Eastern European countries exceptional tax charge in the pnor year
In respect of outstanding tax matters
Our UK earnings are now relatively small associated with our former starch facilities
following the sale of our sugars and in Europe The profit from discontinued
molasses businesses with less than 19 of  operations after taxabon for the year was
total Group sales (£23 millor) bemng derved  £18 million (2012 ~ £2 mullion)
from our UK operations and which are
offset by our corporate costs, pnmarnly the  American Sugar Refining (ASR) has Issued
Interest we pay on our borrowings As a proceedings settng out a number of claims
result, we pay no corporation tax nthe UK it believes it has under the Agreement
dated 30 September 2010 relating to the
The effectve tax rate on adjusted profit sale and purchase of Tate & Lyle's EU
reduced to 17 9% (2012 - 18 2%} with an Sugar refining business, totalling around
increase in the undertying tax rate of £40 milion The subject matter of these
around 150 basis points — driven by clams 1s closely related to the 1ssues
changes in the geographic mix of profits =  considered by the independent accounting
being more than offset by the settlement expert in his decision notified to the parties
of outstanding ta 1ssues in certain in May 2012 which strongly supported
junsdictions outside the UK Asaresultof  Tate & Lyle’s position, as reported in our
thess non-recurnng tax benefits in financial  full year results last year
year 2013, and our expectation of further
changes in the geographic mix of profits, After the penod end, we settled the
we anticipate the effective tax rate will ba commercial dispute with Whitefox
somewhat higher in financiat year 2014 Technologies Limited which was the
than this undertying tax rate subject of proceedings in New York last
year The terms of the settlement are
Discontinued operations and confidential, but the companies are
legacy issues pleased that this matter has now been
Discontinued operations Gompnse our resolved in a positive way for all involved
former Sugars dwvision, pnncipally the
EU Sugars business which we sold in
September 2010, Molasses which we sold
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Additional Financial Information continued

Earnings per share

Adjusted diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations were 57 Op (2012

— 54 7p), an increase of 4% (5% in constant
currency) as a result of higher operating
profits, marginally lower net finance
expense and the reduction in the effective
tax rate On the same basis, adjusted basic
eamings per share increased by 4% (5% in
constant currency) to 58 2p (2012 - 55 8p)

Total basic earnings per share decreased
by 9% 1o 58 7p (2012 - 65 5p) with the pror
year benefiting from net exceptional gains
driven by the restart of our SPLENDA®
Sucralose facility in Mcintosh, Alabama

Dividend

The Board 1s recommending a 5 6%
Increase In the final dvidend to 18 8p
(2012 — 17 8p) making a full year dividend

of 26 2p (2012 - 24 9p) per share, up 5 2%
on the prior year Subject to sharsholder
approval, the proposed final dmvidend will
be due and payable on 2 August 2013 to all
shareholders on the Register of Members
on 28 June 2013 In addition to the cash
dmdend option, shareholders will continue
to be offered a Dmidend Reinvestment Plan
(DRIP) altarnatve

Assets

Gross assets of £2,787 milien at 31 March
2013 were £119 million lower than the
pror year pnncipally as a result of the
disposal of assets that were held for sale,
including our former Vigthamease sugar
and Colombian citric acid businesses
Net assets decreased by £22 million to
£1,036 milhon with profits generated in
the year and foreign exchange gans on
the translation of overseas subsicianes
being more than offset by actuanal losses
on our post-retrement schemas and
dividend payments

Post-retirement benefits

We maintain pension plans for our
employess in a number of countries Some
of these arrangements are defined benefit
pension schemes and, although we have
now closed the main UK scheme and US
salaned scheme to future accrual, certain
obhgations reman In the US, we also
provide medical and life assurance benefits
as part of the retirement package

In December 2012, the Trustee of the main
UK pension scheme agreed a £347 mullion
partial pensioner buy-in of approximately
43% of total pensioner liabilities with

Legal & General plc which effectively
hedges these liabilities in full

The net deficit of our post-retrement
obligations at 31 March 2013 of £265
miflion increased by £125 million from the
prior year (2012 - £140 millon) The
ncrease In obligations was a result of lower
discount rates used to value our obligations
and the accounting impact on plan assets
of the pensioner buy-in, partly offset by
cash contributions made to the schemes

Net debt

Net debt was marginally higher than the
pnor year at £479 millon (2012 — £476
million} Free cash flow from continuing
businesses of £110 milkon together with
disposal proceeds from the sale of
busmesses (£51 millior) were partially offset
by dwvidend payments of £117 million and
the repurchase of £23 mullron of ordinary
shares to satisfy the Group's share option
schemes (Note 24) There was an adverse
exchange rate i/mpact on net debt of £43
million principally as a result of the
strengthening of the US dollar exchange
rate against stering

In June 2012, at matunty, we repaid our

6 5% £100 milkon Guaranteed Notes from
cash resources Dunng the year, net debt
peaked at £526 milion in February 2013
The average net debt was £433 mifion,

a reduction of £21 million from £454 millien
N the pnor year

Cash flow

Operating cash flow from continuing
operations was £297 million (2012 - £233
milion) An cutflow within working capital
of £107 million included higher inventory
levels in the US due to higher corn pnices
and aflatoxin, and the requirement for
additiona) sucralose inventory {ofiowing
the restart of production at our Mcintosh,
Alabama facility

The cash flow impact of payments made
into the Group’s main pensicn schemes
amounted to £44 million (2012 — £80
million) with the prior year including a

one-off contnbution of £45 milien into the
main UK pension scheme following the
conclusion in June 2011 of the tnennal
valuation as at 31 March 2010

Year to 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Adjusted operating profit from
continuing operations 358 | 348
Depreciation/amortisation 28 91
Working capital before retrement
benefits and exceptional
cash tems {(107)| (121)

Net retrement benefit obligations |  (44) | (80)
Cash expenditure on

exceptional tems 21 (6)
Shars-based paymants 13 11
Operating cash flow 297 | 233
Capital expenditurs (134) | {130}
Operating cash flow less capital

expenditure 163 | 103
Net interest and tax paid 53)| (24
Free cash flow 110 79

Capntal expendrture of £134 mukon,
ncluding a £42 rillion investment in
intangible assets, was 14 times the
depreciation and amortisation charge

of £98 milion and, as in the pror year,
reflects expenditure on our business
transformation intiatives and in particular,
the mplementation of the global ISAT
system We expect the ratio of caprtal
expenditure to depreciation/amortisation
in the year ending 31 March 2014 to be
fugher than that of 2013

Net interest paid decreased by £5 milion
to £35 millon principally as a result of the
repayment of the £100 milion bend In
June 2012

Net income tax payments were £18 million
(2012 - £16 milion nflow), with the prior
year including a one-off US tax receipt of
£24 milion in relation to the recovery of tax
as a result of the sale of the mothballed
tacility at Fort Dodge, lowa

Free cash inflow {representing cash
generated from continuing operations after
working caprtal, interest, taxation and
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capital expenditure) at £110 milion was
£31 milion higher than the pnor year
prncipally as a result of lower contributions
to the main UK pensiocn scheme and lower
workmg capital outflows partially offset by
higher tax payments

Dunng the year we spent £23 million on
the repurchase of ordinary shares to satisty
share option schemes Parent company
cash dwdends pad were £117 milion,

£5 millon higher than the prior year

Financial risk factors

QOur key financial ngk factors are market
nsks, such as foreign exchange,
transaction and translation exposures,
and credtt and hquidity nsks Plaase refer
to Note 21 of the Financial Statements
for a discussion of these nsk factors

Off balance sheet arrangements
In the ordinary course of busmess, to
manage our operations and financing, we
enter into certain performance guarantees
and commitments for capital and other
expenditure The aggregate amount of
indemrities and other performance
guarantees, on which no matenal loss

has arisen, iIncluding those related to jont
ventures and associates, was £2 milion

at 31 March 2013 (2012 -~ £1 rmullion)

We aim to optimise financing costs in
respect of all financing transactions Where
It ts economically beneficial, we choose to
lease rather than purchase assets Leases
of property, plant and equipment where
the lessor assumes substantially all the
nsks and rewards of ownershup are treated
as operating leases, with annual rentals
charged to the income statement over

the term of the leaase Commitments under
operating leases to pay rentals in future
years totalled £189 million (2012 — £205
millon) and related pnmanly to ralcar
leases in the USA Rental charges for the
year ended 31 March 2013 in respect of
continuing operations were £19 millon
(2012 - £22 rnillion)

Use and fair value of financial
instruments

In the normal course of business we use
both dervative and non-dervative financial
nstruments The fair value of Group net
borrowings at the year end was £529
millon against a book value of £478 million
(2012 - farr value £518 million, book value
£476 millior) Dervative financral
Instruments used to manage the interest
rate and currency of borrowings had a far
value of £38 millon asset (2012 —£24
rulion asset)

Tha main types of nstrument used are
Interest rate swaps, interest rate optons
{caps or floors) and cross-currency interest
rate swaps The far value of other dervative
financtal instruments hedging future
currency and commodity transactions

was £nil {2012 - £1 million hability} When
managing CuUrrency exposure, we use spot
and forward purchases and sales, and
options The fair value of other derwvative
financial Instruments accounted for as

held for trading was a £21 milhon asset
(2012 - £1 milion asset)

Fair value estimation

The far value of derivative financial
instruments s based an the market pnce
of comparable instruments at the balance
sheset date if they are publicly traded The
far value of tha forward currency contracts
was detenmined based on market forward
sxchange rates at the balance sheet date
The fair values of short-term depcesits,
recenvables, payables, loans and overdrafis
with a maturity of less than one year are
assumed to approximate their book values
The farr values of bonds, bank and other
loans, including finance lease llabilities due
In more than one vear, are estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate
availlable to the Group for similar financial
instruments, adjusted for the fair valuation
effects of currency and interest rate nsk
exposures, where those instruments form
part of related hedgng relationship
agreements, financial and commodity
forward contracts and options, and
commodity futures The values of certamn
tems of merchandisable agncuttural
commodities that are included in
inventones are based on market pnces

Going concemn

The Group's business actnities, together
with the factors likely to affect its future
development, performance and posttion
are set out In this Business Review

The financial position of the Group, its cash
flows, iquidity position and borrowing
faciities are descnbed in the same sections
In addition, Note 21 to the Financial
Statements includes the Group's cbjectives,
policies and processes for managing its
caprtal, its financial nsk management
obyectvas, detalls of its financial Instruments
and hedging actvities, and its exposures

to credit nsk and quidity nsk

As set out in the sections and note
referenced above, the market conditions
of the areas n which the Group operates
have been affected, and are ikely to
continue to be affected, by large
movaments in Input pnces Howaever,
with some 70% of revenues from food
and beverage ingredients, the Group

has a measure of resihence (atthough

not immunity) to economic challenges

In addrtion, the Group has access to
constderable financial resources through
its facilities as descrbed in Note 21 to the
Financial Statements In making thew
assessment of the going concern basis,
the directors have reviewed the maturties
of these facities, the headroom available
from them and the Group's ability to meet
the covenant requirements of certain of
them As a conseguence, the directors
beleve that the Group 1s well placed to
manage its business nsks successfully

After making enquines, the directors have
areasonable expectation that the Company
and the Group have adequate resources

1o continue In operational existence for

the foreseeable future Accordingly, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis
n prepanng the Annual Repoert

MBIAGY [Buonesadp
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Risks

Managing the risks
we face effectively

Tate & Lyle is exposed to a number of nsks which might have a matenal
adverse effect on our reputation, operations and financial performance.

The Board has overall responsibility for the
Group's system of nsk management and
interna! control The schedule of matters
reserved to the Board ensures that the
directors control, among other matters,

all sigruficant strategue, financial and
organisational Issues

Approach

The Group's enterprnise-wide nsk
management and reporting process helps
management to identify, assess, prnortise
and mitigate nsk The process Involves a
roling programme of workshops, faciltated
by the nsk management function, held
around the Group The risks identified are
collated and reported through functional
and divisional levels to the Group Executive
Committee This culminates in the
dentification of the Group's key business,
financial, operational and compliance risks
with associated action plans and controls
to mitigate them where possible (and to the
extent deemed appropnate taking account
of costs and benefits) The output IS then
reviewed by the Board

Risk Impact and description

Responsibility for managing each key nsk
and the associated mrtigating controls 1s
allocated to an indmidual executive within
each business unit As part of the process,
senior executive management formally
confirms once a year that these key rnisks
are beng managed appropnately wrthin
their operations and that controls have
been examined and are effective The
confirmations and any exceptions are
discussed at the Audit Commettee and
Corporate Responsibilty Committes, and
where appropnate, reportad to the Board

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2013, the
Board and the Group Executive Committee
undertook an exercise to consider the
nature and extent of the Group's rnisk
appetite The results of this exercise are
used as part of the Group's strategic
planning activties, and in considenng
ongoing mitigating actions

The Group's nsk rmanagement process
continues to follow the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) Enterprise Risk
framework The COSO framework provides
a process to manage the nsk of falure 1o
achieve busmess objectives and assurance
against matenal loss or misstaternent

Key risks

Key nsks and uncertainties identified as
part of the nsk management process
undertaken dunng the year, together with
some of the mitigating actions that we are
taking, are set out below It 1s not possible
to identrty or anticipate every nisk that may
affect the Group Qur overall success as
a global business depends, in part, upon
our abilty to succeed in different economic,
social and political environments and to
manage and to miigate these nsks

Examples of mitigating actions

Safety
Failure to act
safely and to
matntain the
safe and
continuous
operation of
our facilities

The safety of our employees, contractors,
suppliers, and the communities in which
we operate IS paramount We must
operate within local laws, regulations,
rules and ordinances relating to health,
safety and the environment, including
emissions The operation of plants
Involves many nsks, which could cause
atemporary or permanent stoppage

n production and could have a matenal
adverse effect on tha Group

+ Central global function, Group Operational Efficiency and Sustainability,
outside business unit control, sets and monitors safety and environmentat
standards

* Health and safety policies and procedures at all faciities with dedicated staff
to ensure they are emtredded and measured

* Regular review of performance and policies by the Corporate Responsibility
Committee

+ Safety and environmental targets are included in employaes' performance
objectives

¢ Internal global compliance audts on safety and environment performed

« Business continuity capabilities in place to enable supply, as quickly
as practicable, of product to customers from atternative sources In the event
of a natural disaster or major equipment or plant failure backed by appropnate
INsurance coverage aganst business interruption
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Risk Impact and description Examples of miigating actions
Strategy The Group's strategy is 1o become the * Three platforms have been established in Innovation and Commaercial
Failure to leading global provider of specialty food Development — Sweeteners, Texturants and Health & Wellness - to drve
growin ingredients and sclutions Fallure to new product development and innovation in Speciality Food Ingredients
speciality food defiver on this strategy ovar the longer * New global Commercial and Food Innovation Centre opened in Chicago,
ingredients term would negatively affect the Group's USA in 2012 to promote closer collaboratton with speciality food ingredient
credibiity and reputation customers and to ink with the global network of applications and technical
services facilities
* [nvestments are being made to Increase the Group's sales and technical
resources in emerging markets
¢ Internal capabilities have been enhanced to help promote growth
through acquistion '§
¢ Open Innovation team actively scout for breakthrough technologies and 3
opportunities across Industries and urwversities s
¢ A second corporate venturs fund launched to invest in start-ups and g
expansion-stage companies In the globa! food science and investment 2
community ]
* Programmes in place to recruit new staff and develop existing staff to g‘
upgrade skill sets particularly in custorner-facing areas and innovation
Quality The safety of consumers of our products ~ + Central global function, Graup Operational Efficiency and Sustainability,
Failura to 15 criical Poor quality or sub-standard manages Group-wide quality process and procedures with dedicated staff
maintain the products or poor customer service could at all faciities o ensure they are embedded and measured
quality of our have a negative Impact on our reputation  * Product safety and quality policies and procedures in place to prevent
products and and relationships with customers contamination
high standards * Policies procedures and performance reviewed regularly by the Corporate
of customer Responsibility Committee
service ¢ Third-party audit programme in place, supplemented by interna! global
compliance audits
* Recall smulation exercises undertaken
People Performance, knowledge and skills of = Remuneration policies designed to atiract, retain and reward employees
Failure to employeses are central to success with ability and expenence to execute Group strategy
attract, develop  We must attract, integrate and retain the * Talent strategy to provide opportunitias for smployees to develop careers
and retam key talent required to fulfil our ambitons and * Single global performance appraisal process and system in place
personnel deiver the Group's strategy Inability to * increased Board-level focus on succession planning for key roles
retain key knowledge and adequatsly plan
for succession could have a negatve
impact on Company performance *
Legal and The Group operates in diverse markets * Regular monitoring and review of changes in law and regulation in such areas
regulatory and therefore 1s exposed to a wide range as health and safety, environment, quality, food and corporata governance are
Non-compliance of lega! and regulatory frameworks regularly monrtored and reviewed
with legisiation  YVe must understand and comply with + Glokal regulatory team supported by external consultants, monitors local
and regulation all applicable legislation Any breach regulatory requirements affecting our products and how these change
could have a financial impact and over time
damage our reputation * | egal teams mantain compliance policies in areas such as anti-trust
and anh-corruption laws, and provide ongoing training to employees
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Examples of mitigating actions

Risks continued
Risk Impact and description
Raw Margins may be affected by fluctuations in
matenals crop prices due to factors such as harvest

Fluctuations

in prices and
availability of
raw materials,
energy, freight
and other
operating inputs

and weather conditions, crop disease,
crop yields, alternative crops and
co-product values In some cases, due to
the basis for pneing In sales contracts, or
duse to competitive markets, we may not
be able to pass on to customers the full
Increase In raw matenal prices or higher
energy, fraight or other operating costs
Additionally, margin may be affected by
customers not taking volumes to which

New purchasing and storage practices developed to mintmise the impact of
aflatoxin (a fungus impacting corn quality caused by prolonged hot and dry
conditions, such as those experienced in certain parts of the US during

the year)

* Strategic relationships with suppliers and trading companies
+ Multiple-source supply agreements for key ingredient supplies
+ Balanced portfolic of supply and toling contracts in gperation with customers

to manage balance of raw matenal pnces and product sates pnces and
volume risks
Raw matenal and energy purchasing policies o provide securty of supply

* Network of gram elevators in place in the US to hold comn supphes
* Dernvatives used where possible to hedge exposura to movements in future

they previcusly committed prices of commodties
Key projects The Group has committad to a » Dedicated internal resources allocated to the project
Failure to programme to transform its operational * Programme subject to both internal and external audit and review
implement capabilties, pnmanly by implementing a + Formal steering committee {executrve management) and Board/Audtt
the Group's common global IS/IT ptatform and global Committes review of project progress against agreed milestones
programme to shared services If this programme s not and timeknes
transform its implementad as planned, this would have  + Retained services of expenenced external global implementation partners
operational an adverse impact on the Group's abtlity * Ongoing refinements to programme based on lessons leamnt in the process
capabilities to achieve its strategy
Reputation We must be fully prepared to counter ¢ Innovation and Commercial Development and regulatory experts substantiate
Failure to unexpected/unfounded negative publicity relevant product clams prior to launch
counter about our products * Media relations advisors monitor Group press coverage and action plans
negative to deal with any negatve publicity
perceptions of » Participation in trade organisations and industry-wide initatives to promote
the Group's and protect our products
products * When dealing with regulatory bodies, industry and consumer groups, and

the media, our regulatory and nutrition teams focus on credible, high quality
science o inform debatas on the benefits, risks or efficacy of our Ingredients

Finance We must manage our finances within + Capital expenditure proceduras to control and monitor allocation and spend
Failure to stnctly controlled parameters, parhicularty  + All new Investments are evaluated aganst clear strategic and financial cntena
manage the when external financial conditions are with greater scrutinity and clear execution milestones for approved investments
balance sheet, uncertain and highly changeabls + External resources and expertise used where reguired
particularly The change programme currently baing + Exposure to Iquidity nsk 1S managad by ensuring access 1S maintained
during periods undertaken by the Group consists of a to a wide range of funding sources, and by effective management of our
of economic number of capital expendiiure projects cash resources
uncertainty which, if not delivered successfully, could

negatively affect the Group's performance

and reputation
Finance Without effectve internal financial * Policies ensure that key tasks are segregated to safeguard assets
Faillure to controls, we could be exposed to financial ¢ Finance and capital expenditure manuals set out procedutre
malntain an rregulanities and losses from acts which + Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer undertake detalled quarterly
effective system could have a significant impact on the business and financial reviews
of internal ability of the business to operate We * Additional control processes, in¢luding external reviews by a third party, put in
financial must safeguard business assets and place duning the year in light of the Inmial Implementation of the new global 1S/
controls ensure accuracy and reliability of records IT systamn in the Single Ingredients business n Europe

and financial reporung
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Operational Review

Corporate Responsibility

Our sustainability journey

We think about corporate responsibility (CR) from a
stakeholder perspective, and so we define our reporting In
terms of our workplace, the environment, our marketplace,
and the communities of which we are a part

We want to continuously improve the way that we perform

In, manage and report on CR matters across all aspects

of our business.

Overview of the year

Management of corporate
responsibility
This year we

* reviswed and strengthened our
contractor safety programme

¢ rolled out our new Code of Ethics
to replace our Code of Business
Conduct

s reviewed and updated the CR
requirernents in our standard purchase
contract terms and conditions

+ mplemented a new sustamnability nsk
assessment and evaluation tool for our
product development pipeline

Reporting and communication
This year we

* raised the profife of CR matters with
employees, suppliers, customers and
investors, Including having discussions
with customers on CR issues to
explain our approach, to understand
each other's programmes, and to
explore ways of working together to
improve our collectve performance
completed the transition to
stakeholder-onentated reporting

in this Annual Repoert

ganed external assurance

over selected ervironmental

data in this Annual Report from
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

(ses page 36)

Performance
Thus year we

* continued 1o be above average for

safety performance compared with

our own and other industry sectors

We take safety very senously and

seek to continuously improve our

programmes and performance,

which is outhned on page 30

reduced CO» ermissions, water

use and waste to landfill at our

manufacturing faciities, per tonne

of preduction

* were included in the FTSE 350 Carbon
Disclosure Leadership Index, having
scored m the top 10% of FTSE 350
companies responding to the Carbon
Disclosure Project (COP 2012
information request

* developed new global community
irwolvement programmes and
partnerships

More online

Read more about our approach
to corporate responsibility at
www tateandlyle com

Workplace

The key CR considerations for us in terms
of our workplace are health and safsty,
and how we manage our relationship with
employees in line with our values, we
believe that everyone should be safe at
work and be treated fairly and with respect

Employee profile

At 31 March 2013, Tate & Lyle employed
4,326 people We have further developed
our emploves base in the last year through
the opening of our new global Commercial
and Food Innovation Centre in Chicago, USA
and by expanding our commercial teams

Employees by business unit
as at 31 March 2013

1 51% Bulk
Iingrachents

2 40% Specality
Food

Ingredients
3 8% Central
functions

Employees by geography
as at 31 March 2013

1 47% North

Amenca

2 37% Eurcpe,
Middle East
and Afnca

3 1% Latn Amenca

4 5% AsaPaciic

MOIAGY |eucneladQ
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Operaticnal Review

Corporate Responsibility continued

Safety

We have no higher prionty than safety, not
only for our employees but for everyone
who comes to our sites Our utbmate goal
15 no accidents or Injunes

Our Executive Safety Committee, chairad
by our Chief Executive, met throughout the
year 10 review our safety performance and
mprovement programmes Our senior
executives are personally involved in safety
management and undertake annual
executive audits at ocur major sites around
the world

Performance
We measure and report safety agamnst two
kay performance indicators

* Recordable incident rate
Employees and contractors combined
no change at 0.85

* Lost-work case rate
Employees and contractors combined
0.26 compared with 0 21 last year,
due to 19 lost-work cases globally in
calendar year 2012 compared to 16
in 201

Desprite a low number of accidents in the
spnng and early summer, and very good
results at many facilties, we ended the year
with the overall recordable incident rate
being the same as 2011 and the overall
lost-work case rate increasing due to three
more lost-work cases than last year

Many of our locations achieved excellent
safety performance a number of stes had
zero recordable incidents, several reached
milestonas of four million hours worked
without a lost-work case, and one site had
an accident in December after 20 years
without a lost-work case

Two of our US plants, both of which are in
Lafayette, Indiana, won US Corn Refiners
Association awards dunng the year
|_afayette South won three = Incident Rate
Excellence, One Milion Hours and Zero
Lost Work Days and Sagamore won cne —
Zero Lost Wark Days

i
Safety performance

Recordable incident rate
Number of injuries requinng treatment beyond first aid per 200,000 hours

Employees Contractors

US industry sector averages 2011' and Tate & Lyle overall 2012

Lost-work case rate
Number of injunes that resulted in lost-work days per 200,000 hours

Employees Contractors

US industry sector averages 2011' and Tate & Lyle overall 2012

1 Source US Department of Labor, October 2012
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Cperational Review

External benchmarking

To put our safety performance in
perspective and because many of our
employees are located in the US we
monrtar US industry averages In 2012 our
safety performance was better than the
average achieved by companies across our
own and other industry sectors, as shown
in the graphs on page 30

Safety projects and activities
During the year we made progress with a
number of safety inhiatives, these included

¢ Contractor safety programme we
have worked hard In the past year to
mprove contractars’ safety practices,
including reviewing therr safety
programmes, setting up a contractor
safety improvement task force, asking
contractors to share best practices,
revising our global contractor safety
expectations document, and addressing
spegific Issues by meeting the executive
managers of the relevant companies to
discuss performance and therr safety
improvement plans

Safety management systems-

we implemented new procedures for
hazardous activiies, we developed a
Code of Safety Leadership to ensure
colleagues are clear on what their
safety leadership responsibilities are,
and renewed Road Safety Guidelines to
promote safe driving and travel We also
further snproved machine guarding at
our faciities and enhanced training for
employees working at height, for example
on ladders or elevated platforms

+ Safety awareness: we held our
first global office and laboratory safety
conference, as well as our annual
Global Safety Week with many
employees and therr families taking
part across the Group

Occupational health and well-being
We contract with occupational health
professionals to monitor and safeguard
the health of employees at work, and to
provide iInformation, advice and support
to them on health matters

Looking ahead

Hawing seen employee hand and arm
safety incidents increase in 2012, we have
made this area a priority for 2013, along
with cur ongoing work on contractor safety

Relationship with employees

Our values define what we stand for and
how we behave with our customers,
supplers, mvestors, the commurnities we
operate in and with each other We believe
N equal opportunities for all, regardless

of gender, sexual onentation, age, marital
status, disability, race, religion or other
beliefs and ethnic or national ongin

Our Values

Qur policies, practices and procedures
for recrutment, traming and career
development promote equality of
opportunity An emplayee who becomes
disabled would, where appropnate, be
offered retraining for a more sutable role
We are committed to treating people with
disabiliies farly it all respects, including
regarding applications, fraining, promotion
and career development

Dhversity and inclusion

We believe in a cufture where all employees
contrnbute to the performance of the
Company and have the opportunity to
develop fully according to their indvidual
abilties As part of that, we aim to attract

a diverse workforce that reflects the
communities in which we operate In 2011
we established a Diversity and Inclusion
Council The Council works on creating
awareness of diversity and inclusion 1ssues,
establishing and tracking nclusion metncs,
and champiomng our diversity and
nclusion programme across the Company

Gender diversity
as at 31 March 2013

Board of Directors
1 70% Men
2 30% Women
H
o
o
Managers ]
<]
1 78% Men -
2 22% Women 2
All employees
1 76% Men
2 24% Women

Progress durng the financial year included

* contmued increase In awareness
among senior managers of diversity
and inclusion 1ssues, having included
consideration of these 1ssues in therr
annual performance obyectives

* taking the opportunity provided by
our new global Commercial and Food
Innovation Centre in Chicago and at
our new global Shared Service Centre
In Poland to recruit diverse workforces
at those two locations

* piloting of a diversity and inclusion

coaching programme for key staff

Tate & Lyle PLC Annual Report 2013
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Operational Review

Corporate Responsibility continued

Employee engagement

We believe that employees who are
engaged in the business, by which we
mean committed to the Group, its goals,
values and strategy, and to each other, are
happier and ultimately deliver better results
Goed internal communication is essental
to this We communicate with our
employeas in a number of ways, from
Company-wide media mcluding our
intranet and our quartsrly employee
magazine which 1s published in eleven
languages, to face-to-face dialogue such
as site-wide meetings, functional mestings
and small group or team meetings

In 2012, we conducted our first global
employea survey which was designed to
enzble employees to give candid opinions
about Tate & Lyle and to faciltate
conversations about how we can make
the Company a better place to work
Participation in the survey was encouraging
at 81%, and the overall survey score was
just above 3 5 on a scale of 1 to 5 (where
51s the best score) The resutts highlighted
clear strengths as well as areas where we
can do better, and have been translated
into achion plans for ndmdual teams as
well as the Company as a whole

Looking ahead

We are working to continue raising
awareness of diversity and inclusion,
provide more support to our leaders across
the Company to help them engage with
their teams, to iImplement a new sat of
global training courses for middle and
senior managers, and to strengthen further
our recrutment and induction processes

Environment

We seek to operate our business in a way
that 1s as environmentally sustainable as
practical By using resources such as
energy and water more efficientty, and
reducing waste, we aim to iImprove our
environmental sustainability further while
controlling operating costs

Our approach

Tate & Lyte’s environmental policy and
standards apply to all our activihies globally,
and we aim to integrate environmental
considerations into all major decisions

Qur facilities operate under local
enmvronmental authonsations and permits
and we reguirs strict compliance with these
at all tmes If a site inadvertently breaches
an operating limit we seek tc take steps
immediately to resolve the 1ssue and
prevent reoccurrence

We have procedures and programmas
i1 place to manage and minimise the
ermvironmental impact of our operations,
our packaging and our supply chain

We have internal and external auditing
processes Our annual internal global
compliance audit programme confirms
complhance with our environmental and
food safety, qualty and health and safety
management standards Addionally, our
roling programme of external, ndependent
environmental compliance audits agsures
complhance with regulatory requirements

We include annual environmental
sustainability targets in the performance
objectrves of employees from Executive
Comrmittee to plant level These include
energy use, water use and waste reduction,
amongst others

Overall, we are working to address
envircnmental considerations across the
Ife cycle of our products, from our
agncuttural supply chain to how our
products are packaged and transported

Within our own operations and joint
ventures we focus on those aspects of our
activities that have the greatest potential
impact on the environment, namely our use
of energy (and consequent ar emissions
and carbon footprint), our water use, and
waste management

Beyond our own operations we focus our
attention on our agnicuttural raw matenal
and ingredient supply chain, the
transportation of our products to our
customers, and our products' packaging

Operational performance
In catendar year 2012, compared with 2011

* Energy use per tonne of production
increased by 16% due to changes In
our producticn mix — with the
manufacture of more specialty products,
and site-specific factors such as the
installation of new ar emissions
control equipment

Since 2008 we have reduced energy use
per tonne of produchon by 10% Energy
efficiency projects mplemented this year
included optimisation of the steam system
at our joint-venture plant in Boleraz,
Slovakia, and the installation of energy
efficient Iighting at Sycamore, llinois

* Carbon footprint from energy use
decreased by 11% per tonne of
production due to changes in our fuel
mx, alongside energy efficiency projects
at many locations

Since 2008 we have reduced CO:
emissions per tonne of production
by 11%

* Water use per tonne of production
decreased by 2 1% due to various water
efficiency projects including at Dayton,
Ohio, where water re-use and recycling
implemented i 2012 will save up to 45%
of the plant’s annual water uss, and at
Decatur, llinois, which receved General
Electne’s ‘Returmn on Environment’ and
‘Proof not Promisas’ awards for water
saving intiatives in 2012

Since 2008 we have reduced water use
per torne of producton by 9%
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Qperational Review

* Waste to landfill decreased by 11%
per tonne of preduction, due to good
progress with waste reduction, re-use
and racycling programmes at many
faciites For example, at Lafayette
South, Indiana, external waste recovery
faciities, which use anaerobic digestion
to produce energy from waste, were
used to reduce our waste to landfill
following on from similar work at our
Sagamore plant in Lafayette, Indiana,
the previous year

Environmental performance

Energy use

G.J per ionne production

Primary carbon footpnnt

Tonnes CO: per tonne production

Since 2008 we have reduced waste 1o -g
landiill per tonne of production by 26% 2
Water use Waste to landfill g
Looking ahead &
We aim to improve envircnmental T -
performance in the coming year by uble meters par 1018 production Tornes per 000 tannes producton ]
focusing on the following areas g
* capnal projects and operational practices
to reduce our energy use, COz emissions,
water use and waste to landfill per tonne
of production
* working with our customers on reducing
our cambined environmental Impact
* working with our suppliers and others 1 Previously reported numbers for 201¢ and 2011 have been adjusted to remove the energy use, carbon
to promote sustainable agriculture footpnnt, water use and waste ansing from the Sucromiles joint venture, cur share in which was sold
duning calendar year 2012
2 Refers to 2012 data that has been assured by PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP (see page 36)
Environmental sustainability targets
We have four medium-term environmental sustainability targets
Target by end 0f 2016 Calendar year 2012 status Comment
Reduce CO: emissions from energy Lse 11% reduction in COz emissions per tonne In 2012 our joint-venture facility in Hungary
by 12 5% per tonne of productich of production versus 2008 started up a new biomass boiler
(paseline year 2008)'
Implement packaging reduction Programmes initiated with customers In 2012 we changed from a three-ply to a two-ply
programmes with customers reprasenting repressnting »9% of sales (K) paper sack for several products, reducing paper
>50% of sales {£) use by approximately 1,500 tonnes per year
Implement transport sfficiency Programmes intiated with customers In 2072 we piloted a new liquefied petrcleum gas
prograrmmes with customers representing representing >9% of sales (£) (LPG) truck design with a transport contractor In
>50% of sales {£) Europe which can reduce COz emissions by up
to 70% per trip
Implement sustainable agricultural In 2012 we evaluated our principal 25 agricultural A number of updated sustainable sourcing
sourcing programmes for cur top 20 raw matenals and ingredients and progressed crtena and new inibiatives are currantly in
agricultural raw matenals and ingredients sustainable agnculture initiatives development or implementation
by volume
1 Wa recognise that installing new arr emissions control equipment at severat locations over the next few years and tha manufacture of more speciality products will
make it more challenging to reduce our energy use and COz2 emissions in the medium term
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Operational Review

Corporate Responsibility continued

Marketplace

The food and beverage sector I1s our most
significant market comprising over 70%
of Group sales Other markets we sell

into Include industnal, animal feed, and
pharmaceutical and personal care Our
customers include many of the world’s
largest food and beverage manufacturers

Sustanability in the marketplace for us1s
about the safety and functionality of our
products, the origin of our agricultural raw
materials, the conduct of our commercial
relatonships, and standards within our
supply chain

Product safety and quality

Our products adhere to the highest
standards of food safety, quality and
traceability This is particularly relevant
when producing ngredients for
specialst customers such as baby food
manufacturers All our manufactunng
facilities are certified to the Global Food
Safety Initiative, and we have well-
established processes and procedures
across our manufactunng and R&D
facilities to ensure we comply with this
standard These include an annual internal
global complance audit programme and
annual external, Independent food safaty
audrts of every manufacturing site

Developing sustainable products
We want our products to be sustainable,
as well as the fact that our raw matenals
and ingredients are largely denved from
renewable agnculture sources {principally
corn), we aim 1o consider sustamnatuity
matters throughout the product ifecycle
To this end, for cur iInnovation pipeline, IN
2012 we developed a new sustainability
nsk assessment and evaluation tool

We use this tool to

* undertake a sustainability nsk
assessment at an early stage in the
product development process, In order
to identify any potential concerns in the
supply chain, manufacture or use stages
of the product Iife cycle

evaluate sustainability 1Issues as we
proceed with product development, to
avoid or reduce any potential adverse
impacts such as the use of energy
and non-renewable resources, and

to leverage positive impacts such as
product health and weliness benefits

In kine with our strategy, we are focusing
particularly on growing our Specality Food
Ingredients business unit, and as such the
majority of our new product developmernt
IS In this area For example, our Health &
Wellness platform delivers innovative
ingrechents with substantiated health
benefits to customers worldwide
Addionally, many of our speciality
sweeteners and fibres have health and
wellness benefits Our aim is to help our
customers provide consumers with healthy,
nutrious foods and beverages as part of a
normal balanced det We am to ensure that
our ingredients, and any claims we make
regarding ther benefits or efficacy, are
supported by clear, demonstrated scisnce

Our portfolio of speciality food ingredients
ranges from low-calone sweeteners to
soluble fibres For example, SPLENDA®
Sucralose 1s exceptionally stable, so that it
helps to extend consumer product shelf life
and thereby assists in avoiding food waste,
and SODA-LO® Salt Microspheres allow
food manufacturers to reduce salt levels

by 25-50% In varnous applications

Conduct of commercial
relationships

We are committed to ensuring a safe, open
and responsible culture in all our business
dealings wherever we operate, In line

with our newly-launched Code of Ethics
The Cede of Ethics, to be avalable in

14 languages, \s communicated internally
through several means including our
Intranet, and by local 'Ethics Ambassadors’
being appointed across the business
Externally, the Code of Ethics is being
integrated into our supplier and business
partner relationshtps, in particular through
the terms and condrtions of our standard
purchase contracts

Wa support our employees and business
partners in coming forward with any
information concerning actual or alleged
breaches of the Code of Ethics We provide
access to Safecall, an ndependent,
anonymous third-party reporting service,
through free phone numbers in 46
countnes and by emall Information on
accessing this service 1s communicated
across the Company and externally via
our intranet and our corporate website

Any issues reported through Safecall are
investigated by members of our Speak Up
Committee, a group of senior Tate & Lyle
executives who are responsible for
ensurng that any concerns flagged to
them through our nermal internal reporting
processes or via Safecall are investigated
and that appropnate action 1s taken

Standards 1n our supply chain

We require our suppliers to uphold
intemational business standards and to be
fully comphant with all applicable laws and
regulaticns, including but not mited to
those regarding freedom of association
and collective barganing, non-
discnimination, working hours and wages,
health and safety, protechon of the
environment, anti-corruption/anti-bribery,
and the prevention of child or forced labour

This year we reviewed and updated the
specific corporate responsibiity
requirements built into our standard
purchase contract terms and conditions

Looking ahead

We are currently focusing particularly

on sustainable agriculture, a growing area
of importance for the food and beverage
Industry and its stakeholders
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Cperational Review

Community

We have a strong history of community
involvement and during the year we
continued to support communities local to
our operations Additionally, we have made
good progress in implermenting our new
community involvement strategy as defined
last year, including the establishment of
new global programmes and partnerships

Community spend by area
Year to 31 March 2013

Global partnerships

During the year, we also started to develop
global partnership programmes in our three
community Involvement areas For
well-bemng, we have become a business
allance partner writh the Global Allance

for Improved Nutntion (GAIN), and for
environment we have become a corporate
partner of the environmental research and
achon chanty Earthwatch International We
are working with both chanties to set up our

Our approach own specific programme For education,
For Tate & Lyle, community involvement we expect to announce educational o
IS about having a positive and lasting partnershups dunng calendar year 2013 o
relationship with the community specificaly Local programmes/partnerships 3
changing things for the better in the areas of Ve am 1o engage with local communities | aoking ahead s
education, well-being and the environment  Where our manufactuning, R&D and office g recognise that being a responsible 2
faciiies are located Different locations can corporate citizen includes having a strong -
» Education to develop young people's ~ Make their own decisions as to the specific  ang forward-toaking community -]
knowledge and understanding of projects they support and the partnerships  yolvement programme 2
sciencs, technology, engineering and that they develop, thereby catering to
mathematics (STEM subjects), and ther  relevant local needs We plan to develop our community
preparedness for a career in a STEM- imvolvement programme by
based discipline, etther academically We support a wide range of intiatives and
or vocationally organisations in our local communities » expanding the geographical reach
» {urther daveloping our global and local
« Well-beng o provide practical * Education: we support local schools, partnership programmes
assistance In the area of well-being for example by assisting with new * making a larger financial commitment
from health issues ncluding nutrtion equipment or facilities, and provide
to general welfare, such as supporting scholarship funds to assist students
food banks 1o go to collegas and universities
* Envirenment: to promots environmental  * Well-being: we support a wide vanety
sustainability and good emvironmental of local health and well-being niatives
management, addressing 1ssues of
climate change, water resources and This year, our e-Chnistrnas card
conservation supported the homeless charity Crisis
at Chnstmas in London, UK and the
We aim to increase our Investment nthese  Northern llinois Food Bank in Chicago,
three areas each yearl n ||ne Wfth the USA B()th Of these Organ|sat|0ns
growth of cur business provided practical, mmediate assistance
1o those In need over the holiday period
Overview of the year )
In the year ended 31 March 2013, * Environment: we support a number
chartable donations were £376,000 of local environmental intatives
(2012 £308,000) We expect to increase
contributions further in the year to
31 March 2014
Tate & Lyle PLC Annual Report 2013 35




Operational Review

Corporate Responsibility continued

Corporate responsibility govemance

Governance of CR matters is overseen by the Comporate
Responsibility Committee (see page 49}, the responsibilities

of which include moritoning the Group’s approach to CR and
ensunng that it ahigns with Group strategy The Chief Execuive
Is the director with specific responsibility for CR matters

CR matters are integrated into the Group's enterpnse-wide
nsk management and reporting process (see page 26)

Corporate responsibility reporting notes
Here we outline the scope and definitions of the CR data
presented in this Report

» Safety and environmental data

- We report safety and environmental performance by
calendar year (1 January to 31 December) because we
are required to do so for regulatory reporting purposes

- We report safety data from Tate & Lyle-owned and joint-
venture manufactunng faciittes, and from our offices and
cther facilihes worldwide, for example, R&D centres

- We repeort environmental data from Tate & Lyle-owned
and joint-venture manufactunng faciities worldwide

— For our SPLENDA® Sucralose facility in Mcintosh, Alabama
where we rastarted production in March 2012, we inciude
safety performance data for calendar year 2012 in this
Annual Report We wilt start reporting emvironmenital
performance data once we have two full calendar years
of data to better assure reporting accuracy

» Employee and community involvement data

- We report employee and community involvement
performance by financial year (1 Apnl to 31 March) In ine
with the financial reporting systems providing that data

— Employee data compnses Tate & Lyle employees and a
percentage share of joint-venture employeeas in line with
the percentage of those businesses that we own, except
for gender drversity where a full share of all jont-venture
employees are included (Note 9)

— Community involverment data comprises Tate & Lyle-owned
and jont-venture operations and a percentage share of
joint-venture operations in ine with the percentage of those
businesses that we own

+ Internal assurance
— Our nternal audrt function carmed out a review of the CR
Information and data presented in this Report and confirmed
its accuracy

Independent assurance

This year we gained external assurance over selected
emaronmental data in this Annual Report from
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Full details of the principles and methodclogies we have used

in reporting CR performance in this Annual Report can be found
in the ‘CR Reporting Cntena Annual Report 2013" available

on the Company’s website, www tateandlyle com/CR2013

The selectad emvironmental data as referenced on page 33
has been subject to independent assurance by
PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP Therr assurance report

can be found on the Company's websiie,

www tateandlyle com/CR2013
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Govemance

Statement from the Chairman

We are committed to strong
governance which we believe is the
key to maintaining the trust that our
Investors and customers place in us

Sir Peter Gershon Chaiman

Dear Shareholder To maximise the potential of this talent, we  * The Group's innovation pipsline, and
put In place tallored induction programmes ¢ Talent management and succession
to help the new non-executive directors planning
contribute effectively as soon as possible
after joining the Board More information on Further information on the Board
the recrutment process and the induction  effectiveness review 1s on page 43
programmes can be found on pages 48
and 42 respectively In addition, | continued to hold a shart
discussion with the non-executive

m;?zv:t?‘t:g”f:ééa:;g:r?g Irgczl\?dr(lj??he Having undertaken an extemally-faciitated  drrectors collectively both immediately
composttion needs of the Board in ight review of Board effectiveness in 2011, tHled  before and after each scheduled Board
of the Group's strategy and the langth of the review process again thisyear Aspart  meeting These sessions help to continue
fanure of our drectors Dr Ajat Purt joined of the process, we agreed key areasof . to ensure that the Board operates

focus for the Board during the year ending  effectively and to prowide timely feedback

the Board on 1 Apnl 2012 and during the
year, we undertook further refreshment 31 March 2014, baing where appropriate

of the Board, a process which culminated Safety:
with the appointment of two new :
non-executive directors, Virginia Kamsky
and Anne Minte, on 1 December 2012

As Charrman, | am responsible for
ensunng the Board operates effectively
Throughout the year, we have continued
to develop our practices and change our
focus, reflecting the evolution of the
Group's business transformation

GJUBWI3AOY)

Sir Peter Gershon
= The performance of the Speciality Food ~ Chaiman
Ingredients business unt, 29 May 2013
s Strategic inmatives, including acquisiion
oppoertunities,

Iam very pleased that we have beenable  , ~ \omar engagement

fo attract strong and diverse talent to the
Board over the past 14 months
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Govermance

Board of Directors

Strong governance,
effective leadership

Our governance
structure

Certain responsibilties are
delegated to four Board
Committees, details of which
are given on pages 46 to 51

Audit Committee
Liz Asrey, Chawman
Douglas Hurt
Anne Minto

More online

Read full biographies of the
directors and members of the
Group Executive Committee
online at wwwtateandiyle com

1 Sir Peter Gershon CBE
Chairman and Chairman of the
Nominations Committee

Joned the Board as an iIndependent
Non-Executve Director and Chaiman
Designate in February 2009 Appointed
Charrman in July 2009 Aged 66

Skills and experience

Sir Peter has broad business experence
ganed in large and complex nternational
organisations and has held various
leadership rcles in the UK private and
publc sector He was formerly Chairman
of Premier Famell ple, Chief Executive of
the Cffice of Government Commerce,
Managing Director of Marconi Electronic
Systerns, and a member of the UK Defence
Academy Adwisory Board

Other directorships

e Charman of National Gnd plc

* Member of HM Government Efficiency
and Reform Beard

= Member of the adwisory board of
The Sutton Trust

2 Javed Ahmed

Chief Executive

Joined the Board as Chief Executive in
October 2009 Aged 53

Skills and experience

Javed has extensive intemational
expenence from a wide vanety of senor
management roles He started his career
with Procter & Gamble and then spent

five years with Bain & Co before joining
Benckser (later Reckitt Benckiser plc)

In 1992 where he gained significant
expenence of ntematonal consumer goods
markets and held posiions including Senior
Vice President, Northern Europe, President,
Nerth Amenca, Executive Vice President,
North America, Australia and New Zealand,
and Executve Vice President, Europe

Other directorships
None

Remuneration Committee Nominations Committee

Robert Walker, Charman Sir Peter Gershon, Charman
William Camp Javed Ahmed
Sir Peter Gershon Lz Arrey
Anne Mirto Willam Camp
Dr Ajai Pun Dougtas Hurt
Virgivia Kamsky
Anne Minto
Dr Aja Pun
Robert Walker

Tate & Lyle PLC Annual Report 2013




Govemnance

3 Tim Lodge

Chief Financial Officer

Jomed the Board in December 2008
as Group Finance Director Aged 48

Skills and expenience

Tim joined the Group in 1988 and has
held a number of serior operational and
financial reles, both in the UK and
intemationally, including Managing Director
of Zambia Sugar, Group Financial
Controller, Finance Director of the Food &
Industrial Ingredients, Europe dision,
and Director of Investor Relations He s

a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants

Other directorships
None

4 Liz Airey

Non-Executive Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Joined the Board in January 2007
Aged 54

Skills and experience

Liz was an investment banker and has
extensive financial experience in the UK
and nternationally She was formerly
Finance Dwector of Monument Oil and
Gas plc

Other directorships

* Chairman of the Unilever UK Pension
Fund

* Senor Independent Director of Juprter
Fund Management PLC

* Senior Independent Director of Dunedn
Enterprise Investment Trust PLC

5 Wilham Camp

Non-Executive Director and Chairman
of the Corporate Responsibiiity
Committee

Joined the Board in May 2010 Aged 64

Skills and experience

Bill worked for 22 years for Archer Daniels
Midland Company, before retinng in 2007,
and held a varety of management
positions mcluding Executive Vice
President, Asia Strategy, Executive Vice
President, Processing, and Senior Vice
President, Global Cil Seeds, Cocoa and
Wheat Milling

Other directorships
* Non-exscutive director of BioAmber Inc
* Seror Adwvisor, Naxos Capital

€ Douglas Hurt
Non-Executive Director
Joined the Board in March 2010 Aged 56

Skills and experience

Douglasis a Chartered Accountant He
held a number of financial and operational
roles, incluchng US and Eurcpean senior
management positons, at GlaxoSmithKiine
before joiming IMI plc as Finance Director

n 2006

Qther directorships
* Finance Director of IMI plc

7 Virginia Kamsky
Non-Executive Director

Joined the Board in December 2012
Aged 59

Skills and experience

Ginny 1s Charman and Chief Executive
Officer of Kamsky Associates, Inc She aiso
served as an Executive Vice President of
Foamex International, Inc and held a
vanety of leadership roles at Chase
Manhattan Bank

Other directorships

* Non-executive director of Dana Holding
Corporation

* Member of the US Secretary of the Navy
Advisory Panel

» Chairman of the Beard of Trustees of the
China Instriute in America

8 Anne Minto OBE
Non-Executive Director

Joined the Board in December 2012
Aged 60

Skills and experience

Anne was Group Director of Human
Resaurces at Centrica ple from 2002 unti
her retrement in 2011 She previously held
senior management roles at Shell UK and
Smiths Group plc and was Deputy
Drrector-General of the Enginearing
Employers’ Federation

Other directorships

* Non-executive director and Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee of
Shire PLC

» Trustee of the University of Aberdeen
Development Trust

¢ Non-executive director of ExIService
Holdings, Inc

9 Dr Ajai Puri

Non-Executive Director

Joined the Board in Aprl 2012 Chairman
of the Research Advisory Group Aged 59

Skills and experience

Ajarhas a PhD in Food Science from

the University of Maryland, USA He was
President - Ressarch, Development and
Product Integrity and a member of the
Executive Board of Koninkdyke Nurmice NV
from 2003 to 2007 Pror to this, Ajal

held various management positions with
The Coca-Cola Cormpany, culminating

in Senior Vice President Technical,

The Minute Maid Company

Other directorships

* Member of the supervisory board
of Nutreco NV

» Non-executive director of Barry
Callebaut AG

* Non-executive director of Britannia
Industnes Limited

10 Robert Walker

Senior Independent Director and
Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee

Joined the Board in January 2006
Aged 68

Skills and experience

Robert spent over 30 years with Procter

& Gamble, McKinsey and finally, PepsiCo,
where he was responsible for the
company's beverage operations in Europe,
the Middle East and Afnca

Other directorships

* Chairman of Travis Perkins plc

* Charman of Enterpnse Inns plc

* Chairman of Americana International
Holdings Lirnited

11 Lucie Gilbert

Company Secretary

Appoirted Company Secretary in August
2012 Aged 41

Skills and experience

Lucie was appointed Deputy Company
Secretary n 2008 and previcusly held senior
company secretanal roles in several listed
campanies, Includng Expenan PLC and Brit
Insurance Heldings PLC Lucie 1s a Fellow of
the Institute of Chartered Secretanes and
Admunstrators and an Associate of the
Chartered Insurance Institute

Other directorships

None
Corporate Responsibility Our Group Executive Javed Ahmed Rob Lujiten
(CR) Committee Commiittee Chief Executive Executive Vice President,
Willam Camp, Chairman The Group Executive Human Rescurces
Liz Arey Committee oversees the Tim Lodge
Sir Peter Gershan dovelo Chief Financial Officer Olivier Rigaud
pment and execution of Presidert, Specialty Food

Dr Ajaa Pun the Group’s strategy, and has ~ Robert Gibber Ingredients

overall responsibility for Executve Vice President,

achieving business resutts General Counsel Matt Wineinger

The members of the Commitiee
are listed oppostte

Karl Kramer

President, Bulk Ingredients

President, Innovation and

Commercial Development
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Corporate Governance continued

UK Corporate Governance Code
The UK Corporate Governance Code dated
June 2010 {the Code) and 1ssued by the
Financial Reporting Council 1s applicable
to companies with a premium listing on the
London Stock Exchange As such, we are
raquired to state how we have applied the
principles contained in the Cods and to
disclose whether we have complied with
the provisions of the Code during the year
Throughout the period from 1 April 2012

to 31 March 2013 the Company has been
in full compliance with the Code

This Report, together with the Directors’
Remuneration Report and the disclosures
contained in the Risks section on pages 26
to 28, provide detatls of how the Company
applies the principles and complies with
the prowisions of the Code Further
information on the Code can be found on
the Financial Reporting Council's website,
www frc org uk

The Board

The role of the Board

The Board 1s collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company
and for providing entrepreneurial leadership
within a framework of prudent and effective
controls that enable nsk to be assessed
and managed 1 sets the Company’s
objectives, ensures that the Company

has the necessary financial resources

and people to meet them, and reviews
management's performance The Board
also sets the Company's values and
standards and snsures that its obhigations
to shareholders and others are met

There Is a schedule of matters reserved
to the Board for decision, which include
approval of

* Group strategy

* Annual budget and operating plans

Major capital expenditure, acquistions

or divestments

¢ Interm dvidends

* Full-year and half-year results and intenrm
management statements

* Board and Company Secretary

appointments

Senicr management structure and

responsibilites

» Treasury policies

¢ Directors’ conflicts of interest

¢ Systems of internal control and nsk
management

Other responsibilities are delegated to
Board Committees, detalls of which can
be found on pages 46 to 51

In addition to the standing Board
Committess, the Group established in
2006 the Research Advisory Group {(RAG)
which s now chared by Dr Ajai Pun and
comprises external subject matter experts
and senior Tate & Lyle managers The
focus and composition of the RAG evolved
dunng the year and the RAG's remit now
covers reviewing the innovation pipeline
and prowiding insight into how leading-
edge sclence and technology can be
applied to enhance the Group's speciality
food ingredients portfolio The RAG mests
regularly, principally at the global
Commercial and Food Innovation Centre
in Chicago, USA and Dr Pun provides
regular updates to the Board on the work
of the RAG

The directors’ responsibilities for the
preparation of financial statements are

Key Board roles and responsibilities

explained in the Directors’ Statement of
Responsibilties on page 65 Therr statement
0N going concern 1S on page 25

Operation of the Board

Board meetings

The Board and its Committees meet
regularly according to a schedule inked

1o key events in the Company's corporate
calendar Ad hoc mestings are also
arranged to consider matters requiring
review and decision outside the schaduled
maetings Six scheduled Board meetings
were held dunng the year ended 31 March
2013, including one Board meeting held at
the glebal Commercial and Food Innovation
Centre i Chicago, USA Three ad hoc
Board meetings were also held at short
notice to consider proposals relating to

the Group's strategy and business
transformation programme The Board also
met offsite for one day to focus on strategy
and, as agreed as part of the 2012 Board
effectiveness review, held a conference
call to review operational performance
when the penod between Board meetings
exceeded two months

The roles of the Chairman, Chief Executive and Senior Independent Director are
separated and ther responsibilites are set out n wnting and agreed by the Board

The Charrman
Key responsibilities include

* The effective operation, ieadership and
governance of the Board,

* Ensuring the effectiveness of the
Board, and each director ndmdually,

¢ Setting the style and tone of the Board
discussicns, and

* Ensuring the directors recerve accurate,
tmely and clear mformation

The Chief Executive
Key responsibiities include

* Proposing strategy to the Board and
delrvenng it,

* Running the business,

* Communicating the Board's
expectations with regard to cutture,
values and behaviours, and

* Ensuring the Board 1s aware of
the executive directors’ views on
busness Issuss

The Senior Independent Director
Kay responsibilities include

* Aching as a sounding board for
the Chairman,
e Conduching an annual review of !
the Charrman's performance, and \
* Baing available to sharsholders if they
have any concerns that they have |
been unable ta resolve through the |
normal channels
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Directors’ attendance at
Board meetings

Directors as at
31 March 2013

Number of
meelngs
attended

Number of
meeatngs

Sir Peter Gershon
Javed Ahmed
Tim Lodgse

Liz Airey

Willam Camp
Douglas Hurt
Virginia Kamsky?
Anne Minto!

Dr Aja Pun
Robert Walker

©

D0 WWo oW oo
0O Ww-=-Nomwoao

Former directors
Evert Henkes? =]

(4]

1 Joned the Board on 1 Decembear 2012
2 Ceased 1o be a director on 30 November 2012

The rolling programme of tems for
discussion by the Board i1s reviewed at
each Board meeting and updated to reflect
topical matters All substantive agenda
ltems have comprehensive bnefing papers
which are distnbuted via the slectronic
Board portal, generally five working days
before the meeting In the few nstances
where a drector 15 unable to attend a
meeting, his or her comments on the
briefing papers are given In advance to
the Chairman

Meetings are structured to facitate open
discussion, and all directors parhicipate
In discussing strategy, trading, safety,
financial performance and rnigk
management Mermbers of exscutive
management attend Board meetings
and make presentations regularty

Summary of the Board’s work during
the year

During the year, the Board oversaw the
ongoing transformation of the Group's
culture and business and considered

all matters within its remit, focusing in
particular on the following

* safety,

* the performance of the Speciality Food
Ingredients and Bulk Ingredients
business units and the Innovation and
Commercial Development group,
including the impact of the global

Commercial and Foed Innovation Centre,

* the ongoing mplamentation of the
project to create one global ISAT
platform, and

= talent management and succession
planning actvities

In the 2014 financial year, the Board will
focus in particular on the areas listed on
page 37

Board allocation of time

The chart below shows the approximate
time the Board has spent discussing
agenda tems durnng the year, separated
Ino broad categones

Board effectiveness
Board diversity
As set out In the Board's statement on

diversity, published on the Group's website,

the Directors believe Board composthion 1s
a key element of Board effectiveness and
each member, and potential member, of

the Board must be able to demonstrate the

skills, expenence and knowledge required
to contnbute to the effectiveness of the
Board Subject to that overnding principle,
the Directors beheve that the Board's
perspective and approach can be greatly

enhanced through gender, age and cultural
diverstty It is the Board's policy to consider

overall Board balance and diversity when
appointing new directors

Board composition

At the date of this document, the Board
compnses ten directors with deep
knowledge and expenence n diverse
business sectors within global markets
the Chaiman, who has no executive
responstbilites, two executve directors,
and seven non-executive directors The

names and biographies of the directors are

on pages 38 and 32

Evert Henkes ceased to be a director on
30 November 2012, having compieted
three terms of three years each As
disclosed in the Annual Report 2012,

Dr Aja1 Pun joined the Board with effect
from 1 April 2012 Virginia Kamsky and
Anne Mintc were appointed as additional
non-executive directors with effect from

1 December 2012 Further information on
the selection process 1s contained within
the Nominations Committee Report on
page 48 and the tailored induction
programme is explained on page 42

Tenure of non-executive directors

Independence

With the exception of the Chairman, who
1s presumed under the Code nat to be
mdependent, the Board considers all the
non-executive directors to be independent
The Senior Independent Director, Robert
Walker, 1s avallable to shareholders if they
have any 1ssues or concerns which they
have not rescived through the usual
channels, and leads the annual review

of the Chairman's performance

The non-executive directors have a wide
range of skills and knowledge and combine
broad busmess and commercial expenence
with mdependent and objective jJudgement
The terms and conditions of appointment
of the non-executve directors can be
mspected at the Company's registered
office and will be avallable for Inspsction

at the Annual General Meeting

As part of the annual Board sffectiveness
review, each director goes through a formal
performance review process All directors
completed this process and, m line with the
Code, Robert Walker and Liz Airey, who
have served for over six years, have besn
subject to a particularly ngorous review

B8JUBLLIBAOE)
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Corporate Governance continued

Time commitment

All directors have disclosed any significant
axternal commitmeants to the Board and
confirmed they have sufficient time to
discharge ther duties to Tate & Lyle

The other significant commitmants of the
Directors are set out on pages 38 and 39
The tirme commitment of all non-executive
drrectors and the Charman is reviewed
annually and the Board 1s comfortable that
all continue to devote the necessary tme
to the Company

Advice and support

All directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, Lucie
Gilbert, who 1s responsible for ensunng
that Board processes are followed and
that applicable rules and regulations are
complied with The appontment and
removal of the Company Secretary s a
matter for the Board as a whole Thereis
also a formal procedure whereby, in the
furtherance of their duties, directors can

Information and professional
development

The Charrman, assisted by the Company
Secretary, 1s responsible for ensunng that
the directors receive accurate, timely and
clear information on all relevant matters

Directors receive ongoing training and
updates on relevant issues as appropnate,
taking intc account ther ndwdual
qualfications and experience Bespoke
training sessions were held durning the
year, including a session on specialty
food ingredients

The Company Secretary helps directors
undertake any other professional
development they consider necessary

to assist them in carrying out therr duties
Visits to external events or organisatrons
are also arranged for the Board to help
non-executive directors in particular to gan
a desper insight into the Group's operating
environment Dunng the year, in addtion to

the Board's USA wisit, as part of therr solo
site visit programme, the Charman and
the non-executive drrectors visited nine

of the Group's sites in Europe, the USA
and Asia Pacific between them These
visits prowide directors with the opportunity
to interact with local management and gain
In-depth knowledge about the challenges
being faced by the Group's operations
across the world Over the past three
years, directors have visited 22 of the
Group's key locations

Directors’ induction programme
Three new non-executive directors joined
the Board during the financial year On
appointment to the Board, each of the
directors receved background reading
about the Group and detalls of Board
procedures and other matters related to
governance The Company Secretary then
worked with each of the new directors to
deliver a tallorad induction pregramme,
as shown In the table below

obtain ndependent professional adwice,
if necessary, at the Company’s expense

Director Aim of induction programme

Details of programme

Dr Ajai Puri
Non-exacutive director and
Charrman of the Research

To increase Ajar's knowledge of the
Group's processes and its people
{in particular the innovation and

Ajai attended a formal education session led by an external expert, Jon
Edis-Bates, and the Company Secretary on the role and responsibilities
of a UK-listed company director He also visited the global Commercial
and Food Innovation Centre in Chicago, USA, the Innovation Centre in
Ldle, France and the London head office Dunng his visits, he met with
senior operational and functional management and membars of the
Research Advisory Group, which has since been restructured under
his charmansp

Advisory Group Commarcial Development group),
the opseration of the Research
Adwisory Group and the UK-listed
company environment

Virgima Kamsky To increase Virginia's knowledge

Non-executve director of the Group's business, processes
and its people (in particular the
Group's operations In China)

and the UK-lIisted company

anvironmant

Virginta attended a formal education session led by an external expert,
Jon Edis-Bates, and the Company Secretary on the role and
responsibilites of a UK-listed company director She also visited the
global Commerciat and Food Innovation Centre in Chicago, USA, the
Bulk Ingredients business unit's plant in Decatur, llincis, the Specialty
Food Ingredients business unit’s applications laboratory in Shangha,
China and the London head ¢ffice where she met with senior operational
management and key functional heads

Anne Minto
Non-executve drector

To increase Anne’s knowladge
of the Group's business, processes
and 1ts pegple

Anne visited the global Commercial and Food Innovation Centre in
Chicago, the Bulk ingredients business unit’s plant in Decatur, llitnois,
the Speciality Food Ingredients business unit’s plant in Koog, the
Netherlands and the Londen head office where sha met with senior
operational management and key functional heads Anne also held
addrhonal meetings with the Executive VP Human Resources and
members of his taarn to gain a detaled understanding of the operation
of the Group’s HR and remuneraticn policigs and processes
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Performance evaluation

A raview of the Board's effectivenass 1s undertaken each year The process s led erther internally or by an external faciitator The last
external review took place in 2011 In 2012 and again in 2013, the Board decided that the Chairman should facilitats the review

2012 Board effectiveness review

The progress made since the 2012 evaluation 1s summarised in the table below

Recommaendations

Update on actions

Strengthen understanding and knowledge of
the speciality food ingredients market

The Directors attended a training session on speciality food ingrediants and additional time 1s
now allocated to the consideration of the speciality food ingredients markets in Board meetings

Nominations Committee to increase its focus
on succession planning

The Nominatons Committee undertook a detaled review of succession planning for Executve

Committee members

Identify and implement opportunities for senior
Iine managers' involvement in the Corporate
Responsibility Committes

The Committee met with addtional senior managers as it rewiewed items such as business
continuty managemsent and product safety, opportunities for additional involvernent for senior

managers will continue to be dentified

Enhance arrangements for updating the Beard
whare there Is an interval of more than two
months betwean Board meetings

There was cnly one occasion whera the Board was not due to meet for over two months, briefing
papers from the Chief Executive and Chuef Finang:al Officer were circulated to all directors and a
conferance call was held to update non-executive directors on operational activities

Overhaul the roling Board agenda to reflect better

the Group's agreed strategy and focus

The rolling agenda was overhauled with increased emphasis on strategic 1ISsuss, it continues to

evolve

2013 Board effectiveness review:

As part of the 2013 Board review, the Charman held one-to-one meetings with each director, the Executive VP General Counsel and
the Company Secretary The main themes and observations were then summansed in a report that was discussed by the whole Board
It concluded that the Board continued to operate effectively but made a number of recommendations for iImprovements, as summarnsed
below The Company Secretary I1s monitoring progress which will be repeorted in the Annual Report 2014

Recommendations

Agreed actions

Increase the amount of time spent on
understanding the market and how customer
relationships are managed

The Board will meet regularly with global enterpnse account managers

Enhance knowledge of the innovation pipeling

Addtional time will be allocated to reviewing the development of the innovation pipeline

Increase the Directors' focus on talent
management and succession planning

Hawing focused on the Executive Committes in the year ended 31 March 2013, the Nominations
Commuttee will regularty review progress for key roles which are below the Exacutive Committee

Identify and implemeant improvemants to Board
reporting In respect of the performance of the
Specialty Food Ingredients business unit

Both reporting of performance and time allocated for Board discussions will be enhanced dunng

the year ending 31 March 2014

With regard to the performance of
indvidual directors, the review concluded
that all directors continue to make an
effective contribution to the Board's work,
were well prepared and informed about
1ssues they need to consider, and that therr
commitment remained strong The
Chairman also provided indmidual
feedback to each director

The perfarmance of the Chief Executive
and Chief Financia! Officer was considered
by the Nominations Cormmittee, in ine with
its terms of reference

Dunng the year, the non-executive directors  The Board agreed that the charrmen of the

met without the Chairman, under the
charmanship of the Semior Independent
Director, to appraise the Charrman's
performance In additon, the Charrman
held a private meeting with the non-
executive directors to apprase the Chief
Executive’s performance These reviews
also concluded that both the Charman
and Chief Executive continued to fulfil their
responsibilities effectively

Committees should lead the review of their
own committees’ effectiveness The results
of the reviews were discussed by the
Committees and then by the Board which
congluded that each Commuittee operated
effectively throughout the year

2IUBUIIAOD
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Corporate Governance continued

Re-election

The Board has agreed that all Directors
shall seek re-election on an annual basis
Details of the recommendations and
actiens ansing from the Board
effectiveness reviews carmed out in 2012
and 2013 are on page 43

Directors’ conflicts of interest

As permitted under the Companies Act
2006, the Company’s Articles of
Association allow directors to authonse
conflicts of Interest and the Board has a
policy and procedures for managing and,
where appropnate, authonsing, actual

or potential conflicts of INterest Under
those procedures, directors are required
to declare all drectorships or other
appointments to organisations that are not
part of the Group and which could resuft
In actual or potential conflicts of Interest,
as well as cther situations which could
result In a potential conflict of interest

The Board Is required to review directors’
actual or potential conficts of nterest at
least annually Directors are required to
disclose proposed new appointments
to the Chairman before taking them on,
to ensure that any potential conflicts of
Interest can be identified and addressed
appropriately Any potential conficts of
interest In relation to proposed directors
are considered by the Board prior to
therr appointment

Accountability

Internal control

The Board has overall responsibity for
the Group's system of internal control
and nsk management and for reviewing
its effectveness

The objective of internal control within

Tate & Lyle 1s t0 support efficient
implementation of the Group's strategy

and effective operations whilst snabling

it to respond appropnately to significant
business, operational, financial, compliance
and other nsks to achieving the Company's
objsctives The system of internal controls
1s designed to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to ensure the reliability of
financial nformation for both iIntermal use
and external publication and to comply with
guidance published by the FRC, ‘Internal
Control Rewised Guidance for Directors’

{formarly the Turnbull Guidance) The Board
recognises that internal control systems are
designed to identify and manage, rather
than eliminate, the nsk of falure to achieve
business cbjectives, and can cnly provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance
against matenal misstatement or losses
and the breach of laws and regulations

Internal control system

The Board determines the level of nsk that

it 1S prepared to accept in the organsaton
(nsk appebte) and oversees the strategies
for significant nsks that have been identfied
Executive management works within the nsk
appetite and develops the mechanisms and
processes to direct the organisaton,
through setting the tone and expectations
from the top, delegating authonty and
montonng compliance

Line management has primary responstbility
for compliance with Group policies,
principles and compliance requirements

In certain functions, notably safety and
product quakty, executive management has
also established separate assurance teams
to oversse the effective execution of controls

The nsk management function works with
exacutive management and the business
units to help identify, measure, monitor
and report significant nsks The units
report regularly on progress with the
implementation of the Group's strategy,
including the mpact an the nsk
environment, and the key nsks are reviewed
regularly by the Board Further information
on the Group's nsk management process
can be found on page 26

The intemal audrt funchon provides
independent and objectve assessment of
the appropnateness and effectivensss of the
Group's internal control systems to the Audit
and CR Committees, and to the Board

It has the authority to review any relevart
aspect of the business and a duty to report
on any matenal weaknesses The Group
has an annual nsk-based intemal audtt plan
which 1s approved by the Audrt and CR
Committees It 1s updated reguiarly to reflect
changes to the control environment

The findings from audits are discussed with
exacutive management and action plans
put in place where appropriate Progress

against these plans 1s monitored regularly
by the internal audrt function Summanes of
both audits and progress on any actions are
discussed regularly at mestings of the Audtt
and CR Committees

The Board also commissions extemnat
specialists as appropnate Given the
significant business transformation actmity,
n addition to regular reports from the
nternal audtt functon, the Board continued
to receve reports from external specialists
retained to review key elements of the
transformation programme

Koy features of the internal control system
The Group's internal control system has a
number of key features which ensure that
nsk 1s monitored and managed throughout
the year, including those hsted below

* The schedule of matters reserved to the
Board ensures that the Dwactars contral,
among other matters, alf sigruficant
strateqic, financial and organisational
1ssues

* A clear organisational structure and imits
of authonty in respect of tems such as
capital expendtture, prnicing and contract
authonsation

* A comprehensive planning and budgeting

system for all tems of expanditure with

an annual budget approved by the

Board Performance is reported monthly

against budget and prior year results,

significant vanances are investigated,
and revised forecasts for the current
financial year and financial projections
for future years are prepared regularly

The Group has comprehensive safety,

product qualty assurance and

environmental managsment systems

Where appropnate, these are

independently certified to internaticnally

reccgnised standards, they are also
subject to a regular independent

audit process

* Regular meetings of the Audit and CR
Committess to oversee the operation of
effective controls The Committees report
regularly to the Board In the event that
any signuficant losses are ncurred during
any year as a resutt of a falure of controls,
a detaled analysis would be prowided to
the Audit Commiitee, CR Committee (if
appropriate), and the Board
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Cantrols over financial reporting

The financial reporting control system
covers the financial reporting process
and the Group's process for preparing
consolidated accounts and includes
policies and procedures which prowvide
for the maintenance of records that, n
reasonable detall, accurately and fairty
reflect transactions including the acquisiton
and disposal of assets, reascnable
assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting
Standards, and reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthonsed use of the Group's assets

In addition, specific disclosure controls
and procedures are in place to support
the approval of the Group's financial
statements Twice a year representatives
from the busingss urits certify that ther
reported information provides a true and
fair view of the state of the financial affars
of the business unit and its results for the
penod The results of this financial
disclosure process are reported to the
Audit Committee

During the year, the Group rolled out the
naw global ISAT system across the majorty
of our European busmness As part of this
process, addmional control processes were
put in place to mitigate nsks ansing on
implementation of the system

Joint ventures

All matenal joint ventures follow either the
Group's formal systems of internal control,
or therr own internal control procedures
These separate procedures are subject

to review by the Group's internal audt
function and the Group works wath its
partners to ensure that action plans are

In place to address any 1ssues identfied
durtng those reviews

2013 review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control

Each year, the Board, with the assistance
of the Audrit and CR Committees, conducts
areview of the effectiveness of the systems
of nsk management and internal control

In 2013, this review was faciitated by the
internal audit functon and covered the
panod from the start of the financial year

to the date of this Annual Report In view
of the Group's recent evolution, including
the embedding of the CR Committee within
the governance frarmmework, the activity
following the relaunch of core values and
the first global employes engagement
survey, the annual review was redesigned
to provide insight into all these areas The
new process also included a two-stage
revtew to faciitate discussion The Audit
Committee, CR Committee and the Board
discussed the results of the two-stage
review at ther meetings in March and

May 2013

The 2013 review covered financial,
operational and compliance controls,
values and behaviours and the rnisk
management process and mcluded
queshonnaires and representation letters
completed by management The internal
audt function monitored and selectively
checked the results of this review, ensunng
that the responses from management were
consistent with the results of its work
during the year As part of this process,
areas for enhancements to internal
controls, and associated action plans to
deliver them, were identified and delivery
of these 1s being monrtored by the Audit
Committee or CR Committee as
appropnate The Board considers that
none of the areas identified for
enhancement m relation to the review
constituted a significant weakness

Remuneration

The Board has delegated to the
Remuneration Committee responsibility
for agreeing the remuneration policy for the
Chairman, Chief Executive, Chief Financial
Officer and senior executives The
Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages
50 to 62 sets out the principles for
remuneration at Tate & Lyle and includes
detalls of the role and actwities of the
Remuneration Committee

Relations with Shareholders
Shareholder communications

The Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer
and Group VP Investor & Media Relations
maintain a ragular programme of wisits and
presentations to institutional shareholders
both in the UK and overseas During the
year, the Chairman undertook separate
visits to institutional shareholders and the
Senior Independent Director also met with
a number of Institutional shareholders
Feedback on interaction with institutional
shareholders 15 provided to all directors

The Investor Relations department
provides the Board with & report on any
meetings with major instriutional
shareholders at each scheduled Board
meetng All directors receve copies of
analysts' reports on the Company and the
Board receves an annual briefing from the
Company's external acvisers on investors’
perceptions of Tate & Lyle and its investor
relations actvities The non-executive
directors are encouraged to attend the
full-year and half-year results presentations

The Company aims to present a
balanced and clear assessment in all

its communications with shareholders
Key announcements, financial reports
and other information about the Group
can be found on the Company’s website,
www tateandlyle com

S@IUBUIGA0YD)

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The 2013 AGM will be held at The Queen

Ehzabeth Il Conference Centre in London

on Wednesday 24 July 2013 at 11 00 am

Full details are set out in the Notice

of Meeting |

Shareholders have the opportunity to

put gquestions to the Board at the AGM on
matters relatng to the Group's operations
and performance All resclutions are
decided by means of a poll and the votes
receved in respect of each resolution,
together with the level of abstentions, are
notified to the London Stock Exchange
and publshed on the Company's website
Shareholders are offered the choice of
racenving shareholder documentaton,
ncluding the Annual Report, electronically
or in paper format as well as the choice of
submitting proxy votes aither electronically
or by post
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Corporate Governance contnued

Audit Committee Report

Dear Shareholder

Dunng the year, in addrtion to our usual
matters, iIncluding the financial results
for the full year, half year and the intenm
management statements, apphcable
accounting policies and going concem
assumptions, we continued with our
practice of conducting in-depth reviews
of key topics  The key topics we
reviewed included nsk management,
controls in the Speciality Food
Ingredients business unit and Group
financial control standards

Our policy on auditor independence
states that the lead engagement partner
15 required to rotate after a term of five
years The current lsad engagement
partner, Paul Cragg, will reach the end
of his five-year term at the forthcoming
AGM In the year, the Cormmitise
oversaw a process during which a
number of potential successors were
considered and then endorsed the
appointment of a new lead engagement
partner, John Waters A robust transition
programme has been agreed and as part
of this, John has attended Committes
meetings since autumn 2012

| also led a review of the Committee’s
effectiveness which concluded that the
Committee was operating effectively
and identified some areas for increased
focus As part of this process, we
agreed the topics for our programme
of detailed reviews mncluding a review
of the operation of the global Shared
Service Centre in £6dZ, Poland and {T
securty We also updated the terms of
referance to reflect changes in practice
at Tate & Lyle and the UK corporate
governance landscape

Liz Alrey
Charman of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee compnises three
non-executive directors, and oversees

the Group's financial reporting and internal
controls and provides a formal reporting
Iink with the external auditors Its terms

of reference, which are reviewed annually,
are available on the Company's website,
www tateandile com

Main responsibilities of the
Audit Committee

The main responsibilies of the
Cormmittes include

¢ Overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process and monitonng the
integnty of the financial statements
and formal announcements relating
to the Group's financial performance,
Reviewing significant financial reporting
1ssues and accounting policies and
disclosures in financial reports,
Reviewing the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control procedures
and nsk management systems,
Reviewing the effectiveness of the
mnternal audit function,
* Ovarsseng the Group's relationship
with the external auditors including
the tevel of fees,
Reviewing and monitoring the
external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audrt process, and
* Making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or reappointment
of the Group's external auditors

The Committee met five times dunng the
year Membership of the Committee and
attendance dunng the year were as follows

Number of
Directors as at Number of meotngs
31 March 2013 meetngs attended
LIz Airey
{Committee Chairman) 5 5
Douglas Hurt 5 5
Anne Minto' 2 2
Former directors
Evert Henkes? 3 3

1 Joined the Board and the Audit Commuttea on
1 Dacember 2012

2 Ceased to be a director and a member of the Audit
Committee on 30 November 2012
All the Committee members have extensive
managermeant expenence in large mtemational
organisatons It i1s a requirement of the
Code that at least cne Committee member
has recent and relevant financial expenence
Two of our members meet this requirement
Liz Arey was an investment banker and
former finance director of Monument Ol
and Gas plc and Douglas Hurt 1s Finance
Director at IMI plc

The Chief Financial Officer, VP Group Audit
and Assurance, Group VP Finance and
Control, Executive VP General Counsel
and representatives of the external auditors
are normally invited to attend each mesting
The Charrman of the Board and Chuef
Executive also attend mestings of the
Committee by rvitation in addition, the
Committee seeks to further enhance its
exposure to the business through rts
programme of key topics for review, which
nvolves cperational and other key semior
managers presenting to the Commrttee

The minutes of each meeting are circulated
to the Board The VP Group Audit and
Assurance and the external auditors have
direct access to, and meet regularly with,
the Charman of the Committee outside
formal Committee mestings

The Committee maintains a formal
calendar of tems for consideration at each
meeting and within the annual audt cycle
to ensure that s work 15 10 ine with the
requirements of the Code

Independence of the extemal
auditors

The Group's external auditors are
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC)

and the Committee operates a policy

to safeguard ther objectmity and
independence This policy sets out certan
disclosure requirements by the external
audrors to the Committes, restnctions on
the employment of the extemnal auditors’
farrmer employees, partner rotation, and
procedures for the approval of non-audt-
related services provided by the external
auditors During the year, the Committee
reviewed the processes that the external
auditors have in place to safeguard their
independence and also recenved a letter
frermn them confirming that, in thewr opinion,
they remamned independent

The Committee closely monrtors the level
of audit- and non-audt-related services
they provide to the Group Non audit
related services are normally imsted 1o
assignments that are clossly related to the
annual audrt or where the work 1s of such
a naturs that a detalled understanding of
the Group 1s necessary A policy for the
engagement of the external audrtors to
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supply non-audit-related sarvices sets out
these arrangements

The pelicy on auditor independence was
reviswed and updated during the year
The Committee also reviewed and
approved a number of proposals faling
under the remit of this policy including the
engagement of PwC in respect of the
review of certain disclosures contained in
the statement on Corporate Responsibility
on page 33 and the appontment of a
former PwC employee

A breakdown of the fees paid to the
external auditors In respect of audt- and
non-audit-related work 1s included in Note 8
of the financial statements The total amount
paid in respect of the Group audit, audt of
subsidianes and the hatf-vear review was
£1 9 millon and £0 3 million was paid in
respect of non-audit-related services

Work undertaken during the year
In addition to the actvibes outhined in the

and appropnate at this stage of the
process In the case of Whitefox, the
Group has received an offer to settle In
its favour and consequently the brought-
forward provisions have bean released

* The Committee reviewsd the
assumptions adwvised by the Group's
extemal actuary which have driven an
increase in the pension and healthcare
net habilty and accepted these to be
reasonable The Commities also
reviewed and agreed management’s
proposed method of accounting for the
November 2012 partial buy-in of the UK
Group defined benefit schems, relying
on calculations performed by the
extermnal actuary

= The valus of intangible assets, goodwill,
and tangible assets were reviewed
against management’s expectation of
future performance of the underlying
business units, including discussion of
the discount rates used, and forecast
assumptions and sensitvities
The Committee was satisfied that

recommended to the Board that PwC
continue 1o act as auditors to the Group
PwC have indicated ther wilingness to
continue In office, and a resclutron that
they be reappointed will be proposed at
the AGM The Cormmittee has discussed
the provisions of the September 2012
iteration of the Code which applies to the
Company’s next reporting penod and
includes a provision to tender the external
audit at least once every ten years, and
intends to compiy with this provision

The Committee 1s mindful of the FRC’s
commentary regarcing the tming of
tender processes and has already had
niwal discussions on the likely tming

of the tender

Internal audit

The Committee reviewed the remit,
organisation, annual plan and resources

of the internal audit function and undertook
a review of its effectveness The review
concluded that the function continued to
strengthen and make a significant

staterment from the Committee Chairman, no imparrment charges, or reversal contnibuton to the intemal govemance g
dunng the year and up to the date of this of imparments, were required ofthe Group A number of areas for 3
Annual Report, the work undertaken by * The key Judgements made in estimating  IMprovement I processes were identified B
the Commuittee fell under four mam areas the Group's tax charge including and following the review, the internal audrt 2
financial reporting, oversight of the external provisions relating to certain terrtories charter was revised to reflect the function’s
audrtors, oversight of the intemal audit where the Committes reviewed the responsibiliies to the Corporate
function and intermal control and nsk status of ongoing discussions with the Responsibiity Committee
management The Committee's workin tax authonties and supported
each of these areas I1s descrbed below management's position as reasonable Internal control and risk management
The Committee continued to recerve and
Financia! reporting External audit consider regular reports from management
At each of its meetings during the year PwGC (or ts predecessor firms) has been and the VP Group Audit and Assurance
the Audrt Committee reviewed accounting  the Company's auditors since 1989 on the effectiveness of the Group's risk
papers prepared by management and Followtng the conclusion of the audit for the  management system The reports from
determined, with the support of the year ended 31 March 2012, the Committee  the latter mcluded the findings from reviews
extemnal auditor, the appropnateness conducted an ntemal review of the of iInternal financial controls and actions
of accounting policies, estimates, and effectiveness of the auditors (the last to address any weaknesses in controls
Judgements The main areas of focus external review having been undertaken Throughottt the year, the Cormmittes
are isted below in 2010) As part of the process, the focused in particutar on the impact of the
Committes reviewed the audrors’ implementation of a new ISAT platform
* Management’s judgement of the level of  performance against cntena set at the in Europe and associated changes to the
provisions reguired in respect of ongoing  start of the audit, togsther with feedback control environment together with any
Imgation, in particular clams by Amencan  from management and the Public Report potential mpact on financial reporting
Sugar Holdings (ASR) relating to the onthe 2011/12 Inspecton of processes It also reviewed the Group
sals of the EU Sugars business, and by  PriceWaterhouseGoopers LLP issued by assurance map outlinng the key nsks and
Whitetox Technologies Limited in respect  the FRC in June 2012, and concluded that  associated assurance procsesses The
of the ongoing commercial dispute the external audit process was operating Committes also reviewed the output from
In the case of EU Sugars, based on effectively and PwC continued to provide a  the annual review of the effectiveness of
legal counsel's assessment of formal good service to Tate & Lyle, the Committee  internal financial reporting controls and
proceedings served by ASR, the subsequently agreed that there was no then reported to the Board on this review
Committee was satisfied that need to undertake a tender at present
management's provision IS reasonable Accordingly the Committee has
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Corporate Governance continued

Nominations Committee

Report

Dear Shareholder

Along with the usual matters we review,
such as diversity and the performance
of members of the Executve Committes,
we focused on two key areas dunng the
year Board compostion and exacutve
succession planning

Dunng the year, we recommended
the appointment of two new directors
Details of our process are set out below

We also addressed a key action ansing
from the 2012 Board effectiveness review,
namely executive succession planning
and we also enhanced our processes
relating to succession planning for

key non-gxecutive Board roles, in
parbcular the timelines for agreeng
successors for the chawmanshp

of the Board’s Committees

Dunng the year, | led a review of the
effectiveness of the Cormmittee which
indicated that the Committee was
functioning effectively, and the roling
programme of terns for consideration
was modified in ight of a number of
recommendations made dunng the
review process

Sir Peter Gershon
Chairman of the Nominations
Committee

Tha Nominations Commuttee compnses
the Chairman of the Cornpany, the Chief
Executrve and all of the non-executive
directors Its terms of reference, which are
reviewed annually, are available on the
Company's website, www tateandlyle com

The Committee met six times dunng the
year Membership of the Committee and
attendance duning the year were as follows

Number of
Directors as at Nurmber of meetngs
31 March 2013 meebngs attended
Sir Peter Gershon
{Committee Chaman) 8 6
Javed Ahmed 6 &
Liz Airey 6 6
Willam Camp G 4
Douglas Hurt 6 4
Virginia Kamsky! 2 2
Anne Minto! 2 2
Dr Ajai Pun 6 6
Robert Walker B B
Former directors
Evert Henkes? 4 4

1 Joned the Board on 1 December 2012
2 Ceased to be a drector on 30 Novermnbaer 2012

The Committee has a formal calendar of
itams for consideration at each meeting
and meets at least twice a year

Main responsibilities of the
Nominations Committee
The mam responsibilities of the
Committes include

* Reviewing the sizé and composition
of the Board, including succession
planming, and the leadership needs
of the Group generally,

* Recommending candidates for
appomntment as executive and non-
executive directors and as Company
Secretary, taking into account the
balance of the Board and the required
blend of skills and expenence, beanng
in mund the need for diversity,

* Making recommeandations on the

process for the appontment of

the Charman of the Board, and

Reviewing annually the performance

of each member of the Group

Executive Committee and reporting

on that review to the Remuneration

Commrttes

Work undertaken during the year

During the year and up to the date of this
Annual Report, the work undertaken by the
Nominatons Committes included

Board composition
Following the review of the Board's
composttion, the Committee drew up and

agreed specifications for two new non-
executive directors, one who could
strengthen the Board’s understanding

of the Chinese market and one who
would also serve on the Remuneration
Committee The Committea agreed to
retain two external search consultants to
focus on one role apiece, given the nature
of the two spacifications Egon Zehnder
and KornFerry Whitehead Mann were
subsequently appointed Both
organisations havs a good understanding
of the Group's business Egon Zehnder
assists in the ndentification of Individuals
to fill other senior executive roles and
KornFerry Whitehead Mann assists the
Group with talent management activties
In ne with the Board's stated policy, both
are signatones to the Executive Search
Firms Voluntary Code of Conduct Both
consuttancies then prepared a ‘long hist’
compnsing a diverse range of potential
candidates mesting the specification

The search consuftants and the Charrman
then identified a subset of this long st to
meet with the Charman Following these
inmal nterviews, the Chairman
recommended a short st of candidates
to be nterviewed by the Chief Executve
and two cther members of the Committee

The Committee subsequently discussed
the results of these interviews and also
reviewed the candidates’ anticipated ability
to provide the mecessary time commitrment
to Tate & Lyle The Committee
recommended that Virginia Kamsky and
Anne Minto be appointed as additional
non-executive directors This
recommendation, together with the
Committee membershups proposed for
both directors, was approved by the Board
and Virginia Kamsky and Anne Minto joined
the Board on 1 December 2012

Succession planning

The Committes reviewed succession plans
for Executive Committee roles and the
progress of action plans to address any
gaps The Committee will contnue to
review progress regularly

Performance evaluation

The Committee undertook a performance
evaluation of each of the members of the
Group Executve Committee and reported
its conclusions to the Remuneration
Committes
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Corporate Responsibility
Committee Report

Dear Shareholder

As explaned in the Corporate
Responsibility statement on page 30,
the Group has no higher pnority than
safety and we continued to review the
Group's safety performance at each
meeting While our recordable incident
rate remained the same, we had three
more lost-work cases in the year The
oversight of angomng safety intiatives
to address this 1s a key focus for the
Committee this year

We also undertook a detailed review

of the business continuty management
contrels and processes Sentor
managers with specific responsibiities
for these processes presented to the
Committee as part of this review
process, in hine with one of the key
actions anging from the 2012 Board
effectiveneass review (see page 43)

The Committee’s role within the Group's
governance framework continued to
evolve dunng the year and we updated
the terms of reference to clanfy the
Committee’s role in the Group's overall
system of iImernal control

The annual review of Committee
effectiveness indicated that the
Committee continued to operate
effectively, and also dentified some
process improvements We
subsequently restructured our annual
programme of tems for review and
instigated a revised approach to
management presentations at
Committee meetings

Wilham Camp
Chairman of the CR Committee

The Committee comprnises three non-
executve directors and the Chairman of the
Company Its terms of reference, which are
reviewed annually, ¢an be found on the
Company’s website, www tateandlyle com

The Commitiee met four times duning the
year Membership of the Committee and
attendance during the year were as follows

Number of
Directors as at Nuriber of mestngs
31 March 2013 meatings attended
Wiliam Camp
{Commrttee Chaiman)' 4 4
Lz Airey 4 4
Sir Peter Gershon' 4 4
Dr Ajal Pur 4 4

1 Willam Camp succeeded Sir Peter Gershon as
Chairman of the Committee on 1 August 2012

Main responsibilities of the
CR Committee

The main responsibilties of the
Committee include

* Monrtonng the Group's approach to
corporate responsibility and ensuring
it aligns with Group strategy,

* Reviewing the effectiveness of the
Group's policies and procedures
relating to a safe working ervaronment,

* Approving, or recommending to the
Board for approval, CR policies,

* Reviewing the mplementation of

appropriate environmental palicies,

Monttonng the effectiveness of

workplace policies concarning

employee relations, equal
opportunities, travel, entertainment
and conflcts of Interest,

* Reviewing whistleblowing
arrangements, and

¢ Satisfying rtself that the Group has
appropriate policies, systems and
controls m place in respect of the nsks
faling within the Committee’s remit

Work undertaken during the year
Dunng the year and up to the date of this
Annual Report, in addiion to the waork
outlned n the Committee Chairman’s
statement, the work undertaken by the
CR Committes included the following

Safety

The Committee reviewed the Group's
inmatrives to improve workplace safety
performance in general and contractor
performance in particular

Praduct safety continued to be an area of
focus and the Global VP Quality and Food
Safety provided an update on the operation
of the Group’s quality assurance processes

Diversity and inclusion

The Committee received an update on the
implementation of diversity and inclusion
inhatives and agreed the parameters for
external reporting on the Group’s

gender diversity

Business practices

The Committee reviewed the
implementation of the Group's new Code
of Ethics and agreed an ethics and
complhiance strategy for the Group which
will continue to be subject to regular review
by the Committee

in addmion, the Committee discussed the
increased use of the independent
confidential reporting (whistieblowing) ine
whuch had been achieved through the
implementation of actions in 2012 to
improve awarengss of that ine

Having approved the scope of a new global
Community Irvolvement Programme in
2012, the Committee recenved an update
on implementation and also approved two
new global partnerships, details of which
can be found on page 35

Environment

The Committee remained focused on the
mpact of the Group's operations on the
environment and reviewed the Group’s
environmental performance and ntiatives
on a regular basis

Internal control

The Committee recened regular reports
from management and the VP Group Audit
and Assurance in respact of the policies,
systems and controls in place mn respect

of the nigks falling within the Committee's
remit The Committee reviewed the output
from the annual review of the effectiveness
of controls fallng within its terms of
reference and then reported to the Board
on this review

Corporate responsibility pg 29
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Directors’
Remuneration Report

Dear Shareholder

As a Committee, we beheve that our
approach to remuneration provides a
relatively simple but effective overall
framework that 1s aligned with long-term
success and returns to shareholders, and

requires indmdual executives to nvest
in matenal long-term shareholdings

In that context, we have not made any
matenal changes 1o the remuneration
framework dunng the year However,
| would like to draw attention to some

headlines from the Report, to dlustrate the
Committee’s approach and the prnciples

that govern our decision making

Our approach to remuneration remains
a key part of the Company’s business
strategy, with the following key themes

« cultural change - Incentive
arrangements 1o keep executives

focused on long-term growth to deliver

enhanced value for shareholders

= clanty and simplicrty are important
- our Incentve arrangements are
clearty Inked to balanced financial
metrics over both the short and
long term

* personal Investment 1s a prominent

I led the annual review of the
Committee's effectiveness The 2013
review concluded that the Commitiee
appropriately fulfilled its role and carried
out ts duties against the responsibilities
descnbed in its terms of reference

Robert Walker
Chairman of the Remuneration
Committes

About this Report

This Report has been prepared in
accordance with the reguirements of
the Companies Act 2006 (the Act) and
Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium

Sized Companies and Groups {Accounts

and Reports) Regulations 2008 (the
Regutations), the Listing Rules of the UK
Listing Authority and the UK Corporate

Governance Code PricewaterhouseCoopers

LLP has audrited such content as required

by the Act {the tabular information on pages

6010 62) A resclution to approve this
Report will be proposed at the AGM on
24 July 2013

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commitiee comprises

feature —in companson with other
FTSE 100 companies, the executive
shareholding requirements we have
established are more dermanding and
extend to a greater number of senior
executives in the organisation

mndependent non-executive directors and
the Chaiman of the Board Evert Henkes
served as Chairman of the Committee until
30 Novernber 2012, and was succeeded
from 1 December 2012 by Robert Walker
The Committee met four times dunng the
year Membership and attendance dunng

The Committes’s key actvities dunng
the year included

« consultation with sharsholders ahead

of the renewal of our Parformance
Share Plan, with the inclusion of

claw-back provisions which will apply

from 2013, the PSP was approved
at the 2012 AGM, with 98% of
shareholders who voted in support
of the resclution

reflecting our commitment to

good corporate governance, we
reviewed the independent advisor
to the Commitiee as part of a
planned process

the year were as follows

Directors as Number  Mestings
at 31 March 2013: of mestings attendied
Robert Walker

{Committee Chairrmany)! 4 4
Sir Peter Gershon 4 4
Wilham Camp 4 3
Anne Minte? 2 2
Dr Ajas Pun 4 4
Former directors

Evert Henkes? 2 2

1 Robert Walker succeeded Evert Henkas as

Charman of the Committee on 1 December 2012

2 Joned the Board and tha Rermunaration
Committee on 1 December 2012

3 Ceased to be a drector and Charman of the

Remunerabon Committee on 30 November 2012

The Company Secretary servas as
secretary to the Committee The Chief
Executve, the Executive Vice President,
Human Resources, the Vice President,
Global Compensation and Benefits and the
Executve Vice President, General Counsel
are normally invited to attend meetings

to assist the Committee, although none is
present or nvolved when his or her own
remuneration 1s discussed The Committee
has apponted ndependent external
adwiscrs, as descnbed below

The Committee has a formal calendar of
terns for consideration The Committes’s
terms of reference, which are reviewed
annually, are available on the Company’s
website, www itateandlyle com

Main responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee
The main rasponsibilties of the
Committee include

* Assessing the appropnateness of
axecutive remuneration in the context
of the Company's strategy, pnonties
and competitiveness, taking nto
account data from independent,
external sources,

« Setting the detatled remuneration of

the executive directors, designated

members of senior management,
and the Company Chairman {in
consultation with the Chief Executive),
ncluding base salary or fees, annual
bonus, iong-term incentives, benefits
and terms of employment including
those relating to the termination of
services,

Setting performance targets for

awards made to semor executives

under the annual bonus plan and

the long-term incentive plan and

reviewing performance quicomes, and

Reviewing the broader cperation of

the annual bonus and Performance

Share Plans, including participation

and overall award levels
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Committee activihies during the year
As part of the review of the Committee’s
effectiveness referred to abovs, the
Committee considers the proportion of
its ime that has been allocated to vanous
matters under its terms of reference For
the calendar year 2012, thus 1s ilustrated
in the chart below

Time analysis - year to
31 December 2012

1 14% Senior execuive
remuneration

2 21% Annual honus plan

3 21% Share plans

4 13% Communications’

5 8% Markat practice/
regutatory
consuitations?

6 23% Other — including
review of adwisors®

-

'Communications’ includes consulting with
shareholders on the renewal of the
Performance Share Plan and the preparation of
the Directors Remuneration Report as welt as
shargholder engagement ahead of the AGM

‘Market prachce/regulatory consultations
ncludes bme spent contnbuting to the
government consultations on executive
ramuneration proposals and the Committee s
update on market practice (led by the

external advisor)

'Cther includes matters of routine business
as welt as the rewew of external adwvisors that
was ¢onducted dunng 2012

n

(4]

Committee advisors

Hewitt New Bridge Street (MNBS) was
appointed by the Committee in the role

of ndependent advisor and served in that
capacity from 2005 until November 2012
Dunng the year, the Committee conducted
a review of its external adwvisor as part

of a planned process, In keeping with

Tate & Lyle's commitment to good
corporate governance The review resulted
in Deloitte LLP being appointed by the
Committee to replace HNBS with effect
from November 2012 Both HNBS and
Delortte are signatones to the Remuneration
Consultants' Code of Conduct, gmng
addtional confidence to the Committee
that their advice i1s objective and that they
are independent of conflicts of interest

In addition to market remuneration data
provided by HNBS and Deloitte, the
Committee receved total shareholder

return data from Kepler Associates, and
Linklaters provided general legal acvice

on remunerahon and share plan matters
During the year ended 31 March 2013,
HNBS and Kepler Associates provided no
other services to the Group, Delortte LLP
provided advice on internal audit, corporate
finance, systerns and tax compliance and
Linklaters provided legal advice on a range
of matters

Remuneration strategy and policy
The remuneration strategy and policy
descnbed here were established in 2010
following a review which included extensive
consultation with major shareholders Both
strategy and policy are carefully aligned
with the Company's business strategy,

by placing a clear emphasis on dnving
Company performance, through incentives
that are aligned with the key performance
indicators which in turn ink directly to our
business strategy In this way, we mantain
a kean focus on delivering long-term
growth, thereby enhancing long-term
value for shareholders

Strategy

The Company’'s remuneration strategy

15 to provide packages that attract, retain
and maotivate high-calibre individuals to
deliver superor operational performance
and outstanding financial results These
cutcomes must be achieved in a way
that aligns with the Group's core values
and Code of Ethics, and that fosters
sustainable, profitable growth To achieve
these aims, packages must be

* aligned to shareholders’ interests

» sufficiently competitive

+ designed to encourage a focus on
long-term, sustained performance and
risk management

* far and trangparent

» consistent across the Group

Policy

To achieve the strategy, the policy for the
remuneration of executive directors and
senior executives includes

* setting base salanes arcund the market
median

* rewarding genuinely stretching, supenor
performance with upper guartie levels
of remuneration

* providing an appropnate balance
betwesn reward in the short and
long term, and between reward that
1s fixed and variable

* providing a competitive, balanced
package of benefits

We intend to retatn this policy in the
coming year

Employee and investor
perspectives

Broader employment conditions
within the Company

The Committee takes into account the
general pay and employment condiions
of other employees of the Company when
determining executive directors’
remuneration for the relevant financial year
This includes considenng the levels of
base salary increase for employees below
executive level, and ensunng that the same
prnciples apply in setting performance
targets for executves’ incentives as for
other employees of the Group

Investors’ views and corporate
governance

As noted above, the remuneration strategy
and poitcy descnbed here were established
in 2010 following a review and extensive
consultation with major shareholders

The Committee (led by the Committee
Charman) engages with our major
nstitutonal sharehotders each year
specifically on remuneration topics,
alongside the Board's wider-ranging
shargholder engagement programme
Following consultation, sharsholders
overwhelmingly approved both our
rermuneration policy and the continuing

use of the Performance Share Plan as our
long-term incentive at the AGM in 2012 The
Committes also receives regular updates on
invastors” views and corporate governance
matters These lines of communication
ensurs that smerging best practice
prnciples are factored into the Committee's
decision making during the year

SAUBLIBACY
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Directors’ Remuneration Report contnued

Overview of remuneration arrangements
The current remuneration package for executive directors consists of base salary, annual bonus, long-term incentives, and retirement
and other benefits as described n the table below

Component Purpose Time frame  Fixed/variable Description
Base salary To providse fixed Short term Fixed * Base salanes are positioned at around the median of
remuneration that {paid monthiy} the relevant market (the S0th to 130th largest UK-listed
reflacts the market companies), and taking account of personal performance
value of the indnidual, * Base salary reviews take into account increases awarded to
tharr skills and expenence employses below executiva level, and the impact on pensien
and performance and other consequences of Increasas
Employment To provide benefits in Short term Fixed + Retirement benefits are defined contnbution in nature the
and retiremant ling with the market, {paid/accrued Chisf Executive has a cash allowance of 35% of base salary;
benefits and, in the case of monthly) the Chief Financial Officer has a cash allowance of 25% of
pensions, with low base salary
financial risk to the + Other employment benefits iInclude car {or car allowance),
Company health insurance, group Income protection and, where
appropnate, Iife cover
Short-term To support the Short tarm Performance- * Three performance metrnics apply- profit growth s given
incentive Company's strategy {annually) related {vanable) the greatest weighting, followed by sales growth and cash
annual bonus by rewarding the conversion
achiavement of the * Targets for @ach metnc are set at the start of each financial
Company’s annual year, taking account of the business strategy, performance
performance objectves in previous years, market expectations and the prevaiing
relating to profit growth, economic climate
salas growth and cash * A mirvmum profit hurdle applies before any bonus 1s payable
conversion aganst any of the metrics, {or the maximum bonus to be
payable, performance In all three metnics 1s required to be
outstanding
+ The maximum cash bonus 1s 100% of salary; any annual
benus abyove 100% of base salary 1s delivered in
Tate & Lyle PLC shares which are defarred for two years,
maximum cash and share bonus i1s 175% of salary
+ 'Claw back’ provisions apply, which means cash and share
alements may be recouped in specific circumstances
Long-term To support the Company's  Long term Performance- * Performance shares that vest after three years, subject to
incentve strategy by incentmising {three years) related {vanable) demanding performance requirements
Performance sustained profit growth * Two periormance metrics apply growth in earmings per share
Share Plan and capnal efficiency over and return on caprtal employed
successive threa-year ¢ The Committes has flexibility to make awards of up to 300%
performance penods, of base salary if appropriate to ensure market
and to help retam senior competitvensess and taking account of the Comparny’s
axscutve talent performance
* Only 15% of the award vests at threshold performance,
outstanding performancs 1s required for 100% vesting
* 'Claw-back’ provisions apply to awards made from 2013,
which means they may be recouped In specific
crrcumstances
Personalshare  To strengthen Long term Vanable * The Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer have
ownership lang-term alignmant {minimum {directly affected targst share ownership requirements of four and three tmes
requirements of interasts between holdings by share price base salary respectively
senicr executives retained for performance} ¢ Similar share ownership requirements extend to Executive
and the Company’s the duration Committee mambers (at three tmes salary), and to a broader
shareholders of employment) group of executves in sanior leadershep roles (at a level equal

to their salary)

b2
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Balance between fixed and

performance-related components

The relatve proportions of fixed and

performance-related remuneration for the
Chief Executive and the Chief Financal
Officer are shown below These are valued
at both target and stretch performance
levels, Including base salary, annual bonus
and the potential value from long-term
incentive awards under the Company's

Performance Share Plan

Target performance
Chief Executive

1 53% Fixed pay
2 47% Vanable pay

Chief Financial Officer

1 58% Fixed pay
2 42% Vanable pay

Stretch performance
Chief Executive

1 22% Fixed pay
2 78% Vanable pay

Chief Financial Officer

1 21% Fixed pay
2 79% Vanahle pay

The followang sections provide moare detail about each component of remuneraton

Base salary

Executive directors’ salanes are reviowed annually, with effect from 1 Apnl At the 2013
reviaw, the Committes agreed that no changes would be made to executive directors’
salanes for the year ahead, taking current market positoning into account The average
mcrease awarded to other UK-based employees was approximately 3%

Executive directors’ base salanes are shown in the table below

Asat 1 Apnl

2013 2012

£ £

Javed Ahmed 721000 721 000
Tim Lodge 405 820 405 820

Annual bonus
Three performance factors determine annual bonus awards, as shown in the table below

Performance
metric Deafinrtion Ratlonale
PBTEA Adjusted profit before tax, Measures the underlying profit generated by

exceptional items, amortisation  the business and whether management 1s
and post-retirement benefit converting growth into profit effectively
interast

Net sales less  Gross sales net of associated  Measures whether management 1s growing the

cost of raw selling costs, less the costs business by assessing growth after deducting

matenals of raw materials used in the cost of raw materials, this metnc better
production reflects the value added by the business

Cash The number of days between  Measures whether the business 1s managing its

conversion disbursement of cash and working capital and converting profit into cash

cycle collection of cash, taking effectively

account of nventory, payables
and recewvables, It 1S based on
the average of the four
quarter-end numbers

These metrics are measured on the basis of constant exchange rates for the Group's
continuing operations The Committee reviews and approves the performance
outcomes, considers the Group's safety performance and then may make adjustments
on an exceptional basis to ensure that the results are a true reflection of the actual
performance of the Company

The bonus structure descnbed here applied to the year ended 31 March 2013, we
propose to retain this structure for the coming year

How the bonus is determined
Before any bonus 1s payable, a mmnimum leve! of profit has to be achieved by the
Company, regardless of performance agamnst other metncs

For each performance metnic, there is a corresponding mutiiplier, which vanes between
threshold, target and stretch levels of performance Once the minimum profit threshold 1s
achieved, bonuses are calculated by appiying the ‘muttiphers’ which have the effect of
ncreasing or decreasing the value of lthe bonus depending on performance aganst each
metric in turn

BSIUBLIBAOL)
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

To achieve the maximum payout, performance against all three factors must be at or above the stretch level

Target bonus PBTEA Net sales Cash Bonus

(% of base salary) performanca leas cost of conversion achioved
Chigt Exacutive (75%} 0 multipliar raw materials cycle as % of
Chigf Financial {once profit exceeds the performance porfcrmancs base salary
Officer {50%) minimum theashold) muttipller multipliar

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3

Relative weighting of bonus metrics

PBTEA 1s the most important of the three metncs, so muttipliers for the PBTEA factor are more heavily ‘geared’ than for the other two
metncs, that 1s, Improvements in PBTEA have the greatest impact on bonus payments All multiphers and their weightings are agreed
by the Committee when targets are set at the start of the year, reflecting the importance of each of the metrics in the context of the
progress made against the Company's long-term business strategy

The following charts illustrate the relatve weighting asscciated with each metne at threshold, target and stretch levels of performance

Threshold Target Stretch

1 Profit
2 Net sales growth
3 Cash conversion

Bonus outcomes for the year ended 31 March 2013
The table below shows, for each metnc, the performance required to achieve maximum bonus and the actual 2013 result relatve to
the pnor year's performance It also shows the coresponding bonus outcome All numbers are shown at constant exchange rates

Performance
requirement
to achieve
Performance maximum Actual
factor bonus performance Performance
PBTEA +8 3% 3.9% Between Operahng profit growth in Bulk Ingredients of 7% {strong US and EU) lquid
threshold sweeteners offset by weaker US ethanol and aflatoxin), Speciality Food Ingredients
and target profit In ine with the pnor year with 8% sales growth offset by step change in fixed
costs associated with the rastart of our SPLENDA® Sucraloss facility in Mcintosh,
Alabama and business transformation inttiatives, net interest broadly in line
Net salesless  +73% 4 6% Between Pass through of higher corn ¢osts In maost product knes including iquid
cost of raw threshold swesteners and industnal starches in the US, starch-based speciality Ingredients
matanals and target in SF, offset by challenging markat conditions in US sthanol and higher corn
prices in the EU during the secand half (which we are unable to hedge)
Cash Improve by ‘Worsen' Beltow This langthened due to an increase in working caprtal ansing from higher
conversion 76% 13 5% threshold inventory in the US impacted by higher corn prices and aflatoxin, and higher
cycle sucralose inventory following the restart of production at our SPLENDA®

Sucralose facility in Mcintosh, Alabama

On the basis of these performance outcomes, an annual bonus was awarded by the Committee of 32% of base salary for the
Chief Executive and 22% of base salary for the Chief Financial Officer

Any bonus amount up to 100% of base salary s paid In cash Any excess above 100% of base salary 18 pard in the form of deferred
shares The sharss are released after two years subject to the executive remaining in service with the Company, and carry the night
to receive a dndend equivalent between award and release
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Ctaw-back provisions

Both the cash and share elements are subject to ‘claw-back’ provisions, which means that they may be recouped in whole or in part,
at the discretion of the Committee in the exceptional event that results were found to have been misstated or if an executive commits
an act of gross misconduct

Long-term incentive - Performance Share Plan

The structure of the current Performance Share Plan (PSP) was developed in 2010 to reflect the business strategy following detailed
consultation with major shareholders The PSP closely aligns executive directors’ and senior executives’ mnterests with the strategy and
the interests of sharsholders over the long term, and 1s therefore an Important component of the overall package

Ahead of the AGM In 2012, we consulted with shareholders representing approximately 45% of our 1ssued share capital on a specific
resolution to approve a renewal of the PSP, as sharehclder approval for the 2003 PSP would expire at the end of its ten-year ife No
changes to key terms of the PSP were proposed as part of this process, including the maximum award levels that had been permitted
since 2010 and the choice of performance conditions that apply (as descnbed below) Shareholders voted overwhelmmgly to approve
the renewal of the PSP at the 2012 AGM, with 88% of shareholder votes cast in support of the resolution

Maximum award level

Since the 2010 AGM, awards to the executive directors and other senior executives have been granted at the discretion of the
Committee, with flexibility for the Committee to make awards of up to 300% of base salary where necessary to ensure market
competitrveness, while taking Company performance into account

Performance conditions

The release of awards depends on the Group's performance during the three-year performance penod begmning on 1 Aprilin the year
of the award For awards made since 2010, the performance conditions compnsed two elements, explaned n the table below,
consistent with the prninciples estabhished following the review and consultation with shareholders at that time

Performance
measure Welglﬂg Definition Rationale
Adusted diluted 50% * Performance I1s measured by companng the compound annual growth rate The Committes
earnings per share {CAGR) of the Company’s adjusted diuted EPS from continuing operations selacted this metnc as
EPS) over the thres-year performance period agamnst pre-determened targets it 15 & key determinant
of sharsholder valug
creation
Adjusted return on 50% + Parformance 1s measured by the adjusted ROCE on continuing operations The Committee
caprtal employed achieved at tha end of the three-year performance pencd agamnst the selacted this metnc
{ROCE) pre-determined targets as 1t 1s a good indicator
* |Importantly the ROCE outcome would be adjusted downward n the of the effectiveness
svent of any asset impairment, by adding this back into capital employed, of strategic Investment
this 1s to encourage a prudent Investment strategy decisions and of the
* For this reason, In the event of there being an impairment of assets qualty of eamings
dunng the performance period, the ROCE figure for PSP purposss generated
can be significantly lower than the unadjusted ROCE number reported
In the Company's accounts

The Committee reviews the appropriateness of targets ahead of the grant of awards in any year to ensure these remain sufficiently
stretching In practice, no changes to the performance targets have been made since they were established in 2010, and accordingly
shares awarded under the PSP 1n 2010, 2011 and 2012 vest in accordance with the schedule set out in the table below

CAGR of adjusted diluted EPS Adjusted ROCE at end

during the performance perod of performance period

Percentage of award vesting {50% of award) {50% of award)
0% Below 6% Below 13 4%
15% 6% 13 4%
On a straight line betwaen 15% and 100% Between 6% and 15% Between 13 4% and 15 4%
100% 15% or more At 16 4% or above

Before any shares are released. the Committee must also be satisfied that the level of vesting determined by perfarmance against these
targets 15 justified by the broader underlying financial performance of the Company

SJUBLUBAOD
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Awards vesting by reference to performance to 31 March 2013. 2010 PSP award
PSP awards mads in 2010 were dependent on EPS growth and ROCE targets as described above, with each condition applicable
to half of the award Performance agamnst these conditions and the vesting outcome 1s indicated in the table below

Level of vesting

Performance Proportion of Performance for this element

condrtion total award  outcome of the award Combined vesting outcome

EPS growth 50% 16 0% growth 100% Based on the combination of EPS growth over the period and the
ROCE 50% 170% growth  100% level of ROCE achieved in the year ended 31 March 2013, 100%

of the PSP awards made in 2010 have vested

The Committee also considered the broader underlying financial performance of Tate & Lyle over the performance period, to ensure
that vesting results based on the performance outcomes were consistant with a broader view of the financial health and performance
of the business

Awards granted in the year to 31 March 2013
Dunng the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company made awards under the 2003 PSP, and the Committes approved awards to
executive directors of up to 300% of base salary, taking Into account competitive need and Company performance to date

Claw-back provisions

Awards made under the PSP from 1 Apnl 2013 are subject to ‘claw-back’ provisions for a period following the vesting date and
extending to the fifth anniversary following the date of grant During this period, the Committee may determine that an award will

lapse wholly or in part {or may require that a participant shall repay up to 100% of the value of any award that has vested by virtue of
performance), in the event of circumstances including the following material misstatement of financial results, misconduct which
Justifies, or could justify, summary disrmissal of the participant, or If iInformation has emerged which would have atfected the value of the
onginal award that was granted to a parucipant, or the level at which the performance conditions were judged to have been satisfied

Additional share plan disclosures

Potential impact of mergers and acquisitions or other corporate activity

In the: context of a merger or acquisition, or other relevant corporate activity, any potential mpact on the schemes would be specifically
considered by the Committee In such circurnstances, the Committee retains the authority to vary the performance target or the vesting
outcome to ensure that outcomes are equitable for both the participant and shareholders

Change of control and voting

All of the Company's share plans contain provisions relating to a change of control Qutstanding awards would normally vest and
become exercisable on a change of control, subject to the satisfaction of any performance conditions at that time, and in propartion
1o the time served dunng the performance penod

Sharesave Plan

The Company operates a Sharssave Plan which is open to all employees in the UK, and provides a mechanism for employees to
purchase shares at a discounted pnce through savings that accumulate from menthly deductions in salary Executive directors are
entiled to participate because the plan must be open to all employees in the UK The value of Indmdual grants is capped (monthly
savings/deductions from salary rmay not exceed £250), and no performance conditions are attached to awards because ¢t 1s an
all-employee scheme

Dilution

Shareholder approvals to operate our share Incentve plans carry imits on the number of new shares that may be 1ssued to satisfy
awards over ime These restrictions are referred to as imits on shareholder ‘dilutior’, and the remaining capacity to use newly Issued
shares within the imits approved by shareholders 18 referred to as ‘headroom’ In the ten-year penod to 31 March 2013, awards made
under the executive schemes represented 1 73% of the Company’s 1ssued ordinary share capital, leaving available dilution headroom
of 3 27% Awards made under all share schemes represented 196% of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital leaving availlable
dilution headroom of 8 04% The Company will use shares that have been purchased by the Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy awards
made to the Chief Executive pror to 2012 and deferred share awards made under the Annual Bonus Plan (as described on page 54)

Tate & Lyls PLC Annual Report 2013




Govemance

Personal share ownership requirements (policy on executive share ownership)

The Committee and executive management believe that personal investment in Company shares 1s an important part of our overall
remuneration framework Matenal personal Investrent in Company shares serves to strengthen the long-term alignment of interests :
betwaen senior executives and the Company's shareholders

Compared with similar companies in the FTSE 100, our executive shareholding requirements are more demanding and extend to
& greater number of senior éxecutives in the organisation

The Chief Executve has a target share ownership requirement of four times base salary, and his shareholding currently sxceeds
this target The Chief Financial Officer has a target shareholding of three times base salary, which has been met

Other Executive Committee members are subject to the share ownership policy, with target holdings at three times salary From 2011,
this policy was extended to a broader group of executives who have senior leadership roles within the Company The shareholding
target for this group 15 equal to ther base salary

The Committee moanrtors progress aganst the share ownership requirements annually

Service contracts of executive directors

The policy in determining service contracts 1s to take account of market practice, and to ensure that provisions in relation to notice
penods or termination payments are not excessive The following table summanses the key provisions of the executive directors’
service contracts

Provision Chief Executive - Javed Ahmed Chief Financ:al Otficer - Tim Lodge
Notice penod
+ By the director * 5 months * 6 months o
+ By the Company = 12 months = 12 months ]
Termination payment * The Company has the option to pay in lieu of notice * The Company has thg option to pay In lieu of notice 5
the base salary and pension allowance that would the salary, pension and other contractual benefits B
have been payable during the notce penod ansing dunng the notice panod ] ‘

The Company has the contractual nght to phase
the paymaents and to reduce them if the executive
mitigates his loss

Holiday * 30 days * 30 days

Restnctive covenants {non- = For the pencd of 12 months {less any garden * For the penod of 12 months {less any garden leave
compete/non-soliciation) lsave penod) following termination of employment penad) following termination of employment
Contract commencement date  * 1 October 2009 * 4 December 2008

Executive directors’ external appointments

The Board believes that the Company can benefit from executive directors holding external non-executive directorships Such
appointments are subject to approval by the Board and are normally restricted to one position for each executive director Fees may be
retained by the executive director concermed Neither of the executive directors currently holds an external non-executive directorship

Chairman and non-executive director arrangements

Terms of appointment

The non-executive directors de not have service contracts or notice perieds, but, under the terms of ther appointment, they are usually
expected to serve on the Board for between three and nine years, with a review of therr terms of appantment every three years, subject
to therr re-election by shareholders The non-executive directors do not participate in the Group's incentive or pension schemes, do not
receve other bensfits, and have no nght to compensation an the early termination of therr appointment
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Chairman’'s fees

The Committee (excluding the Chairran) reviews the Charrman’s fees each year, taking into account the current market positton,

the individual's éxpensnce and contribution to the Group

Following the most recent review of fees, the Committee approved an increase in the Charman's fees of 3% to £315,950 effective

from 1 April 2013, in line with the rate of increase applicable to the UK smployee population

Non-executive directors’ fees

Non-executive directors’ fees, reviewed annually by the Chairman and executive directors of the Board, arg set at a level to retain
indmduals with the necessary expenence and ability to make a substantial contnbution to the Group Fees paid are commensurate
with those paid by other UK-listed companies In addition to the basic fae for each non-executive director and the Senior Independent
Director, supplements are paid to the Charmen of the Audit, Corporate Responsibility and Remuneration Committees to reflect the extra
responsibiities required by these postions A supplement 1s also paid to the Charman of the Research Adwvisory Group

Taking into account the competitiveness of current fees against the comparable market position, and the time commitment required
of the non-executive directors, the executive directors and the Chairman agreed that an adjustment to increase non-exacutive
drrectors’ fees by 3% would be made with effect from 1 Apnl 2013, in ine with the UK employee population The fees are shown in

the following table

Basic fees (per annum)

At1 Apnl 2013
£

AL1 Apmi 2012
£

Non-executive director
Senior Independent Director

61550
68 600

59750
66 600

Supplemental fees (per annurm)

At 1 April 2013 At 1 Apnl 2012

£ £

Charman of Audit Committee 16 300 15850
Chairman of Rermuneration Committee 10850 10550
Charman of the Corporate Responsibility Committes 10 850 10 550
Charman of Research Adwvisory Group 22 800 22150

Executive directors’ total remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2013

The following tables show the remuneration packages of the executive directors for the year ended 31 March 2013, and illustrate the

potential value in different performance scenanos

Actual remuneration for the year (shown in the nght-hand column) includes the value of Incentive awards vesting by referance to
performance in the year ended 31 March 2013 Gven the Group's EPS and ROCE perfermance in the panod to 31 March 2013,
awards will vest at maximum The value of share awards vested in the year as shown in the nght-hand column of the table (‘actual
earned/vested') also reflects approximately 84% share price apprectation over the performance period

Chief Executive (Javed Ahmed)

Projections remuneration in the year ta

31 March 2013 at different performance scenanos Actual eamed/
Hament/ivalue (£000S) Ealow threshold At threshold Af target At stretch vested’
Base salary 721 721 721 721 721
Annual bonusg (cash and detferred shares)? 0 0 541 1262 233
(0% of (75% of (175% of
base salary) bese salary) base salary)
LTI - face value of 2012 PSP grant 0 324 1244 2163 -
(vesting based on performance ta March 2015) (15% vesting}| (57 5% vesting}|  {100% vestng)
LTI vesting for performance to 31 March 2013
(Long-term incentive award B) - - - - 4021
Pansion allowance 252 252 252 252 252
Other benefits 20 20 20 20 20
Total value 993 1317 2778 4418 5247
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Chief Financial Officer {Tim Lodge)

Projecttons remunsration in the year to

31 March 2013 at differant parformance scenanos Actual sarmed/
Element/valus (£000s) Below threshold At threshold Al target At stretch vestad'
Base salary 406 406 406 406 406
Annual bonus {cash and deferred shares)? 0 0 203 710 ar

0% of (50% of basa | {175% of base

basa salary) salary} salary)
LT - face value of 2012 PSP grant 0 183 700 1297 -

{vesting based on performance to March 2015) (15% vesting) | (57 5% vesting) | {100% vesting)
LT vesting for performance to 31 March 2013 {2010 PSP grant) - - - - 1,899
Pension altowance 101 101 10 101 i
Other benefits 14 14 14 14 14
Total value 521 704 1424 2448 2507

1 Actual earned/vested includes annual bonus earned in respect of 2013 financial year (as descnbed on page 60) and LTV/share awards which vest subject to
performance up to and including the financial year anded 31 March 2013 which are valued using the closing share price of 850 00p on the last working day of the year
For Javed Ahmed the LT award that vests based on performance to 31 March 2013 relates to a long-term incentrve award of shares ('long-term ncentive award B'),
in accordance with the incentrve arrangements agreed at the hime of his appontment (as described in the Annual Report 2009) with a face value of £2 082 000
at the ime of award freferenced to three times salary at the time the 2010 PSP awards wera made), and subject to the same performance conditions as applicable

to those awards

For Tim Lodge the LTI award shown here ts the 2010 PSP grant, which was made over shares with a face value of £983 000 at the date of grant

Thess LTI awards are subject to the same performance conditons and will vest at maximum, based on the EPS and ROCE performance recordad in the period to
31 March 2013 {as discussed on page 55) The value of these awards at 31 March 2013 as shown in the table reflects significant share price appreciation over the

performance penod
2 Any porton of the annual bonus that exceeds 100% of base salary 15 defarred nto Tate 8 Lyle PLC shares for two years

g
]
2

Tate & Lyle share price (pence) Total shareholder roturn performance §

The value attributed to share awards shown as actual The graph below, as requirad under the Regulations, illustrates

earned/vested dunng the year to executive directors the cumulative TSR performance of Tate & Lyle against the

In the table on page 61 reflects considerable share price FTSE 100 Index over the past five years The FTSE 100 Index

growth to 31 March 2013 OQver the three-year IS considered to be an appropriate benchmark for this purpose

performance measurement period which apphes to since it i1s a broad equity market index with constituents

2010 PSP grants, Tate & Lyle's share pnce increased by comparable in size to Tate & Lyle The graph shows the value

84%, generating £1 8bn in valus for shareholders of £100 invested in the FTSE 100 Index and Tate & Lyle in the

five years from 31 March 2008
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Information subject to audit
Directors' emoluments (audited)

The following table shows the directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2013

Pension Annual Annual  Total yaar Total year
Salary and other bonus bonus to 31 March 1o 31 March
andfees  allowances' Bensefits? ~gash  —deferred® 2013 2012
2000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £00D
Chairman
Sir Peter Gershon 307 - - - - 307 298
Executive directors
Javed Ahmed 721 373 233 - 1332 1780
Tim Lodge 406 114 1 87 - 608 a0s
Non-executive directors
Liz Airgy 7% - - - - 76 73
Witham Camp 67 - - - - 67 58
Douglas Hurt 60 - - - - 60 58
Virgina Kamsky* 20 - — - - 20 -
Anne Minto* 20 - - - - 20 -
Dr Ajas Pun# 82 - - - - 82 -
Robert Walker 70 - - - - 70 65
Former directors
Evert Henkas® 47 - - - - 47 68
Total 1876 487 6 320 - 2 689 3309

1 Other allowances include car allowance which in the casa of Javed Ahmed is £15 000, with a further £105,690 representing payments in heu of dvdands on an award

of shares as disglosed in the share awards table on page 61
Bensfits for the axecutive directors include health insurance
Deferred nto Tate & Lyla PLC shares for two years and subject to senice ¢ondibions

Joined the Board on 1 December 2012
Joined the Board on 1 Agnl 2012

DL N

Directors’ pension provision (audited)

Ceased to be a dwector on 30 November 2012

As a deferred member of the Group Scheme, Tim Lodge's total accrued pension from the Group Scheme at the end of the year
amounted to £188,000 per annum {£181,000 — 31 March 2012} The Scheme was closed to future accrual from Apnl 2011, the
year-on-year change relates only to the inflation-linked contractual uplift in deferred pension values that apples under the Scheme
rules The transfer value of the accrued pension at the end the year amounted to £3,265,000 compared to £3,345,000 at the start
of the year, representing a decrease of £80,000 All amounts are caiculated in accordance with actuanal assumptions applicable

at each reporting date
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Share awards (audited) .
The table below sets out the current position of share-based awards made to executive directors

Market Market

Awards Awards Awards Awards price price
granted vested lapsed  exsrcrsed As at on date on date
As at durng dunng dunng dunng 31 March awards awards
1 Apnil 2012 year' year? year’  the year 2013 granted vestad
{rumber)  {number)  {umber)  {number) {number)  {number) (pence) {pence) Vesting data
Javed Ahmed
Share-incentive arrangements
on recruitment
Compensatory Award A* 418 403 - - - - 416403 444 90 632 50 01/10/11
Compensatory Award C° 97 369 488 ~| 357870 1618 | 100000 | 257 870 444 90 676 50 28/05/12
Long-term incentive Award AS 8 659 809 -~ | 656640 2969 - | 656640 44490 676 50 29/05/12
Long-term incentive Award B¢ ¢ 473 042 - - - —-| 473042 440 20 — | After 31/03/13
Long-term incentrve Award C8 ° 378337 - - - -| 378337 58050 — | After 31/03/14
Performance Share Plan®
2012 ~| 310567 - - - 310567 87100 - | After 31/03/15
Deferrred shares from annual
bonus™
2011 bonus year - 2010 - - - 2010 676 50 - 29/05M14
Tim Lodge
Performance Share Plan®
2008 26088 - - - - 26088 394 25 61100 24/05/11
2009 152 687 - | 151999 688 - | 151999 204 25 676 50 29/05/12 g
2010 223381 - - - -| 223381 440 20 - | After 31/03/13 %
2011 212950 - - - -i 212850 590 50 = | After 31/03/14 ]
2012 -] 174805 - - - | 174805 67100 — | After 31/03/15 §
Deferred shares from annual
bonus™
2010 bonus year 51683 - - - - 51 683 61100 - 24/05/13
2011 bonus year - - - -~ - 1131 676 50 = 29/05/14
1 The performance conditions for PSP awards made in 2011 and 2012 are adjusted dluted EPS, against which 50% of the award will be measured and adjusted
ROCE for the remaining 50% of the award
2 Thevesting of 2009 PSP awards was based on a combmnation of relative TSR performance against a specific comparator group and EPS growth over the penod
1 April 2009 to 31 March 2012, as described in the Annual Report 2012
3 On 28 May 2012 a proportion of the awards lapsed because the performance condibons applicable to PSP awards made m 2009 were not met in fuli
4 This award to compensate Javed Ahmed for certain long-term ncentives given up by him as a consequence of leaving his former employer 1s nat subject to
performance conditions The shares were avallable to exercise from 1 October 2011 being the second anniversary of Javed Ahrmed joining the Company and will
ramain exercisable unbl 30 September 2017 Pending delivery, ha receves a payment in heu of dvidend on these shares which 1s subject to the deduction of tax
In the event of a change In control the shares will be delivered immediately
5 This award was subject to the same performance conditions as those which applied 1o awards made under the PSP in 2009
6 The three-year performance period for all these awards beging on the first day of the financial year m which the award 1s granted
7 Theshare price at the date these shares were exercised was 841 00p (21 June 2012)
8 This award rs subject to the same performance conditions as those which apply to awards made under the PSP in 2010
9 This award ts subject to the same performance conditions as those which apply to awards made under the PSP in 2011
10 Deferred shares granted under the annual bonus scheme (as described on page 54) The full value of these awards have baen disclosed previously in the
emoluments tablels) in the relevant bonus year(s) (For example, the values of deferred shares relating to performance in the year ended 31 March 2012 are included
m the emoluments table for the year ended 31 March 2012 (contaned within the Annual Report 2012))
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

All-employee schemes (audited)
Details of the directors who were in office for any part of the financial year, and who hold or held options to subscribe for ordinary
shares of the Company, are set out in the table below

Savings-related share options are options granted under the HMRC-approved Sharesave Plan Options are not subject to performancea
conditions and are normally exercisable during the six-month penod following the end of the relevant {three- or five-year) contract

Opbons Options Optons Asat
As at granted exercised lapsed 31 Mareh Exerarse
1Aprl 2012  dunngyear dunngysar  dunng year 203 pnce Exercise
{pumber) {pumber) {number) (number) {number) (pance) penod
Chief Executive (Javed Ahmed])
Savings-related options 2009 3720 - - - 3720 41800 [01/03/15to
31/08/15
Chief Financial Officer {Tim Lodge) 01/03/13 to
Savings-related options 2007 4253 - 4253 - - 395 00 31/08/13
01/03/M18to
Savings-related options 2012 - 2 471 - - - 60700 | 31/08/18

1 This award was axercised dunng the year (on 1 March 2013} when the market share price was 825 00p

The market price of the Company's ordinary shares at the close of business on the last day of the financial year was 850 00p, and the
range dunng the year to 31 March 2013 was 633 50p to 850 00p

Directors’ Interests {(audited)

The interests held by each person who was a director at the end of the financial year In the ordinary shares of 25p each in the Company
are shown below All of the Interests set out In the table are beneficially held and no director had interests in any class of shares other
than ordinary shares The table also summanses the interests in shares held through the Company's varicus share plans

Ordnary shares L Optiong 2 2

1 Apnl 3! March 1 April 31 March 1 Apri 31 March
Number of ordinary shares of 25p each 2012 2013 202 2013 2012 213
Chairman
Sir Pater Gershon 67 736 70138 - - - -
Executive directors
Javed Ahmed 914860 | 1050915 | 22898799 2497 8697 3720 3720
Tim Lodgse 51723 57 814 666 789 842 037 4253 247
Non-executive directors
Lz Aurey 16 000 16 000 - - - -
Wilkarn Camp 800 1600 - - - -
Douglas Hurt 10000 10 000 - - - -
Virginia Kamsky - 5000 - - - -
Anne Minto - 5000 - - - -
Dr Asai Pun - 2018 - - - -
Robert Walker 11382 11786 - - - -

1 Includes shares awarded under the Annual Bonus Plan PSP and the special arrangements that were put in place to faciiiate Javed Ahmed s recruitment which are
subject to performance conditions

2 Granted under the Sharesave Plan
3 Includes shares which are not subject to performance conditions {sea page 54 for details)

There were no changes in directors’ interests In the penod from 1 Apnl 2012 to 29 May 2013
On behalf of the Board

Robert Walker
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
29 May 2013
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Other Statutory and Governance Information

Principal activities of the Group
The principal actmvity of Tate & Lyle PLC and
its subsidiary and associated undertakings
together with its joint ventures is the global
prowvision of Ingredients and solutions to
the food, beverage and other industnes

Results and dividend

A review of the results can be found from
the mside front cover through to page 36
An interim dividend of 7 4p per ordinary
share was paid on 4 January 2013

The Directors recommend a final dvidend
of 18 8p per ordinary share to be pad

on 2 August 2013 to shareholders on the
register on 28 June 2013, subject to approval
at the 2013 Annual General Meeting (AGM)
The total dmdend for the year 1s 26 2p per
ordinary share (2012 — 24 9p)

Articles of Association

The Articles of Association set out the ntemal
regulation of the Company and cover such
matters as the nghts of shareholders, the
appointment or removal of directors, and
the conduct of the Board and general
mestings Copies are availlable on request
and are displayed on the Company's
websrte, www tateandlyle com

In accordance with the Articles of
Association, directors can be appointed or
removed by the Board or by shareholders
In general meeting Amendments to the
Articles of Association have to be approved
by at least 75% of those voting In person

or by proxy at a general meeting of the
Company Subject to UK company law and
the Articles of Association, the directors
may exercise all the powers of the
Company, and may delegate authorities to
committees, and day-to-day management
and decision making to indvidual executive
directors Details of the Board Committees
can be found on pages 46 to 51

Shareholders’ rights

Holders of ordinary shares have the rights
accorded to them under UK company law,
including the nghts to receve the
Company’s annual report and accounts,
attend and speak at general meetings,
appoint proxies and exercise voting nghts

Holders of preference shares have imited
voting nghts and may not vote on the
disposal of surplus profits after the dvidend

on the preference shares has been prownded
for, the election of directors, their
remuneraticn, any agreement between the
directors and the Company, or the alteration
of the Articles of Association dealing with
any such matters Further details regarding
the nghts and obligations aftached to share
classes are contained in the Articles of
Association which are avallable on the
Company's website, www tateandiyvle com

Restrictions on holding shares
There are no restrictions on the transfer of
shares and pnior approval is not required
from the Company nor from other holders
for such a transfer No Iimitations are
placed on the holding of shares and no
share class cames special nghts of control
of the Company There are no restrictions
on vohing nghts cther than those outlined
above on preference shares

The Company Is not aware of any
agreements between shareholders that
may restnict the transfer or exercise of
voting nghts

Re-election of directors

The Company’s Articles of Assaciation
requirs all drrectors to sesk re-election by
shareholders at least once every three
vears Inaddition, any directors appointed
by the Board must stand for re-election

at the first AGM following his or her
appointment Any non-executive directors
who have served for more than nine years
are subject to annual re-election

The UK Corporate Governance Code
provides that all directors should sesk
re-election on an annual basis and
accordingly, all directors will seek
re-election at the forthcoming AGM

The directors standing for re-election,
with the excephion of Javed Ahmed and
Tim Lodge, do not have service contracts

At no time dunng the year has any director
had any materal interest in a contract with
the Group, being a contract of significance
in relation to the Group's business A
statement of directors’ interests in
Company shares 1s on page 62

Directors’ indemnities and
insurance cover

As at the date of this Annual Report,
indernnhes are in force under which the

Company has agreed to mdemnify the
directors, to the extent permitted by the
Companies Act 2006, against claims from
third parties in respect of certain llabilities
ansing out of, or n connection with, the
execution of therr powers, duties and
responsibilites as drectors of the Company
or any of ts subsidianes The directors are
also indemnrfied against the cost of
defending a cnminal prosecution cr a clam
by the Company, its subsidiaries or a
regulator provided that whers the defence
18 unsuccessful the director must repay
those defence costs These ndemnrties
are qualfying iIndemnity provisions for the
purposes of Sections 232 to 234 of the
Compantes Act 2006 and copies are
avallable for inspection at the registered
office of the Company dunng business hours
on any weekday except UK public holidays
Equivalent indemnities remain in force for
Evert Henkes, who ceased to be a director
on 30 November 2012

The Company also maintains directors’
and officers’ kability insurance cover, the
level of which is reviewed annually

Share capital

As at 31 March 2013, the Company had
nominal Issued ordinary and preference
share capital of £119 millon compnsing
£117 milhon in ordinary shares, including
£0 5 mullkon n treasury shares and

£2 milkon in preference shares

To satisfy obligations under employee share
plans, the Comparty issued 32,381 ordinary
shares dunng the year and reissued
2,703,843 ordinary shares from treasury
The Compary 1ssued 520 shares during the
penod from 1 Apnl 2013 to 29 May 2013
Further information about share caprtal 1s
inNote 24 Informahon about options
granted under the Company’s employee
share schemes Is in Note 26

The Company was given authonty at the
2012 AGM to make market purchasss of up
10 46,592,720 of its own ordinary shares
The Company purchased 2,000,000 of s
own ordinary shares dunng the year ended
31 March 2013 This authonty will expire at
the 2013 AGM and approval will be sought
from shareholders for a similar authority to
be grven for a further year

SIUBUIIADE)
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Other Statutory and Governance Information continued

Substantial shareholdings

As at 29 May 2013, the Company had been notified under Rule 5 of the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules of the following holdings of voting rights in its shares

Number
of sharog' % hald'
Black Rock, Inc 51202 984 1098
Schroders plc 23284299 499
AXASA 22 890 148 498
Artemis 23207 193 497
INVESCO Limited 23111 061 495
Uoyds Banking Group plc 22 854 608 489
TIAA-CREF Investment Management, LLC and
Teachers Advisors, INC 19070922 409
Barclays Global Investors 17 568 133 359
Legal & General Group Plc 14 120 697 302

1 As at the date in the notification to the Compary

Change of control

The Company has a comrmitted bank
faciity of US$800 million, which matures
n 2018 Under the terms of this facilty, the
banks can give notice to Tate & Lyle to
prapay outstanding amounts and cancel
the commrtments where there 15 a change
of control of the Company The Company 1s
the guarantor of a £200 rmilhon bond 1ssue
by its subsidiary, Tate & Lyle international
Finance PLC, dated 25 November 2009,
which 1s repayable in 2019 Under the
terms of the bond 1ssue, notehclders have
the option to request an earty repayment
whaere there 1s a change of control of

the Company

All of the Company's share schemes
contan provisions relating to a change of
control Further information 1s on page 56

Essential contracts and other
arrangements

In hight of the scope and diversity of the
Group's activities, there are no contracts or
arrangements considered to be essenhal to
the operation of the business or the Group
as a whole

Research and development

Tha Group spent £32 million (2012 - £29
milion) on research and development
dunng the year

Donations

Worldwide chantable donations during the
year totalled £376,000 (2012 — £308,000),
of which £55,000 (2012 - £6,000) was
donated n the UK More detalls of the
Group's commurnity mvolvernent can be
found on page 35

Again this year, in ine with the Group's
policy, no poliical donations were made

in the European Union (EU) In 2013, the
Group's US business made contnbutions
of US$19,000, £12,000 (2012 - US$8,300,
£5,000) to political organisations in the US

In accordance with the Federal Election
Campaign Act in the USA, Tate & Lyle
continues to support an employee-
operated Political Action Committes (PAC)
funded entirely by US employees The PAC
1S not controlled by Tate & Lyle, employee
contributions are entirely voluntary and no
pressure 1s placed on employees to
participate No funds are provided to the
PAC by Tate & Lyle, but under US law, an
employes-funded PAC must bear the name
of the employing company This year, a total
of US$8,000, £5,000 (2012 - US$11,000,
£7,000) was donated to poltical
organmisations by the Tate & Lyle PAC

Payment to suppliers

Tate & Lyle PLC s a holding company and
had no amournts owing to trade credrors at
31 March 2013 The Group's creditor days
outstanding at 31 March 2013 were 48
days (2012 - 53 days), based on the ratio of
Group trade creditors at the and of the year
to the amounts invoiced during the year by
trade creditors

Post balance sheet event

On 17 May 2013, the Company acquired
Biovelop, a Swedish manufacturer of cat
beta glucan

Business Review

The Companies Act 2006 requires the
Directors’ Report to include a Busness
Review which must contan a far review
of the Company's business dunng the
financial year ended 31 March 2013,
including an analysis of the posttion of
the Group at the end of the financial year,
and a description of the principal nsks
and uncertanties facing the Company

The information that fulfils the Business
Review requirements can be found in
the following sections

¢ Our Business Model onpages 410 5
= Qur Strategy on pages6to 7

* Key Performance Indicators on pages
8t09

Chief Executive’s Review on pages
12to14

Speciality Food Ingredients on pages
15to 17

Bulk Ingreciients on pages 18 to 18

Innovation and Commercial
Development on page 20

Group Financial Results on page 21

* Additicnal Financial Information: on
pages 22 t0 25

Risks on pages 26 to 28

Corporate Responsibility on pages 29
to 36
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Directors’ Statement of Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparng
the Annual Report, the Directors'
Remuneration Report and the Financial
Statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to
prepare financial statements for each
financial year Under that law the directors
have prepared the Group Financial
Staternents in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Urion, and the
Parent Company Financial Statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law) Under company law the
directors must not approve the financial
staternents unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and farr view of the state

of affars of the Company and the Group
and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that period

In preparing these financial statements,
the directors are required to

» selact surtable accounting policies

and then apply them consistently,
* make Judgements and accounting
astimates that are reasonable and
prudent,
state whether IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and with regard to
the Parent company financial statements
and applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject
to any matenal departures disclosed
and explained in the Group and Parent
company financial statements
respectively, and
prepare the financial statements on
the going congern basis unless it 1s
inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financtal position of the Company and the
Group and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements and the Directors'
Remuneration Report comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards

the Group financial statements, Article 4
of the IAS Regulation They are also
responsible for safequarding the assets

of the Company and the Group and hence
for taking reasanable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities

The directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the
Company’s website Legislation in the
UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may
drffer from legislation in other junsdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and
functions are listed on pages 38 to 39,
confirms that, to the best of tus or her
knowledge

= the Group Financial Statements, which
have been prepared N accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and the
Parent Company Financial Statements
1 accordance with UK Accounting
Standards, give a true and far view of
the assets, labilities, financial postion
and profit of the Group and Parent
Company, and

* the overview and operational review
sections contained in the Directors’
Report include a far review of the
development and perfarmance of the
business and the position of the Group,
together with a description of the
principal nsks and uncertainties that
it faces

Disclosure of information

to auditors

So far as each director 1s aware, there 1s
no relevant audit information of which the
Company's auditors are unaware, and he
or she has taken all the steps that he or
she ought to have taken as a director in
order to make himself or herself aware

of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company’s aucitors
are aware of that information

The Directors’ Report from the inside front
cover to page 65 of this Annual Report was
approved by the Directors on 28 May 2013

On behalf of the Board =

T=SS el

Lucie Gilbert
Company Secretary
29 May 2013

S3UBLLIBACY
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Financial Statements

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Tate & Lyle PLC

We have audited the Group financial statements
of Tate & Lyle PLC for the year ended 31 March
2013 which compnse the Consclidated Income
Statermant, the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Incoms, the Consclidated
Statement of Financial Position, the
Consoldated Statement of Cash Flows,

the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Shareholders” Equity and the related Notes

to the consolidated finangial statements The
financial reporting framework that has been
apphed in their preparation 1s apphcable law
and Intarnational Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of
directors and auditors

As explaned more fully In the Directors'
Staterment of Responsibilities set out on

page 65, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the Group financial statements
and for being satisfied that they gve a true and
fatr visw Qur responsibility 1$ 1o audit and
express an opmnion on the Group financial
statemnents In accordance with applicable law
and Intarnational Standards on Auditing {UK
and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

This Report, including the opinions, has been
prepared for and only for the Company's
members as a body In acoordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 and for no other purpose We do not,

In giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibiiity for any other purpose or to any
other parson to whom this Report 1s shown or
into whose hands it may come save whare
expressly agreed by our prior consant in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial
statements

An audit involves obtaining ewdence about

the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by

fraud or error This Includes an assessment of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the Group's cirgumstances and havs been
consistently applad and adequately disclosed,
the reasonableness of significant accounting
astimates madle by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In
addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial infermaton in the Annual Report
2013 to 1dentify matenal inconsistencies with
the audited financal statements If we become
aware of any apparent matenal misstaterneant

or ncensistencias we consider the imphcations
for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opiien the Group financial statements

- gwve atrue and farr vew of the state of the
Group's affars as at 31 March 2013 and of its
profit and cash flows for the year then ended,

- have been properly prapared In accordance
with [FRSs as adopted by the European
Union, and

~ have been prepared in accordance with the
requiremsnts of the Companies Act 2006
and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matter
prescnbed by the Companies Act
2006

In our opimion the iIntormiabion given in the
Dirsctors' Report for the financial year for which
the Group financial statements are prepared 1s
consistent with the Group financial statements

Matters on which we are required
to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respact of the
following

Under the Companies Act 2008 wa are required
1o raport to you «f, In our opimion

- cartain disclosures of Directors' remunsration
specified by law are not made, or

= we have not recaved all the information
and explanations we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required
1o reviaw

- the Directors' statement, set out on page 25,
In relation to going concern,

- the part of the Corporate Governance
statement relating to the Company's
compliance with the nine provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code specified for
our review, and

- cartain alements of the report to shareholders
by the Beard on Directors’ remuneration

Other matter

Wa have reported separately on page 119 on
the Parent company financial statements of
Tate & Lyle PLC for the year ended 31 March
2013 and on the information in the Directors'
eration Report that 1 described as

Paul Cragg {Senior Statutory Auddr)

for and on behalf of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

29 May 2013

Notas

(a) The maintenance and intagnty of the Tate & Lyle
PLC website and any other electronic media
used to present the financial statements, 1s the
responsibility of the Cirecters the work carned
out by the auditors does not invoive considaration
of these matters and, accorgingly, the auditors
accept no responsibiity for any changes that may
have gcourred to the financial statements since
they were inally presented on the website or
any cther electronic media

(b} Legisiation in the United Kingdom goverring
the preparation and dissemination of financial
staternents may differ from legistation in other
Junsdictions
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Consolidated Income Statement

Year to 31 March

2013 2012
Notas £m £m
Continuing operations
Sales 4.5 3256 3088
QOperating profit 4.6 336 404
Finance iIncome 10 3 8
Finance expense 10 {30) (33)
Profit before tax 309 379
Income tax expenss 11 {29 {72
Profit for the year from continuing operations 260 307
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 12 18 2
Profit for the year 278 309
Profit for the year attributable to
- owners of the Company 277 305
- non-controling interests 12 1 4
Profit for the year 278 309
pence pence
Earnings per share attributable to the owners of the Company
from continuing and discontinued operations 13
- basic 597 B5 &
- ciluted 585 64 3
Earnings per share attributable to the owners of the Company
from continuing operations 13
=basic 560 658
- diluted 54 9 646
Analysis of adjusted profit before tax from continuing operations £m £m
Profit before tax 309 3r9
Adjust for
- excephional items 7 12 68)
- amaortisation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 15 10 12
- post-retirement benefit interest 10 {2) (5)
Adjusted profit before tax, exceptional tems, amortisation of intangible asssts
acquired through business combinations and post-retirement benefit interest 329 318
The notes on pages 72 to 118 forrn part of these Group financial statements
n
8
a
B
4
5
3
3
]
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year te 31 March

2013 2mz2

Notes €m £m
Profit for the year 278 309
Actuanial losses In post-employment benefit plans 30 (153} &9
Deferred tax relating to actuanal losses in post-employment benefit plans 1 (3) 33
Net farr value losses on cash flow hedges 25 3) 2)
Cash flow hedges reclassified and reported In the iIncome statement dunng the year 25 4 3)
Valuaticn losses on avallable-for-sale financial assets 18 1) (1)
Net exchange differences 27 (30)
Iltems recycled to the Income staterment on disposal 37 (14) {11)
Deferred tax relating to the other above components 1 (6) (6)
Other comprehensive expenss for the year, net of tax (149) {107)
Total comprehansive Incoma for tha year 129 202
Total continuing operations 17 2N
Total discontinued operations 12 9)

129 202
Attributable to
- owners of tha Company 127 198
- non-controfing interests 2 4
129 202
pence pence
Dividends per share 14
- intanm pard 74 71
— final proposed 188 178
26 2 249

The notes on pages 72 to 118 form part of these Group financia! statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Yegr to 31 March

SULWOIS BB

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets 15 356 325
Property, plant and eguipment 16 258 922
Investments in associates 17 6 5
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 18 27 23
Dernvative financial instruments 20 54 57
Deferred tax assets 29 8 37
Trade and other recaivables 23 3 2
Retirement benefit surplus 30 12 146
1424 1517
Current assets
Inventones 22 510 450
Trade and other recavables 23 383 332
Current tax assets 4 3
Dermvative financial nstruments 20 88 80
Cash and cash equivalents 33 3798 424
1362 1289
Assets held for sale 18,38 1 100
1363 1389
TOTAL ASSETS 2787 2 906
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the owners of the Company
Share capital 24 "7 17
Share premium 24 406 406
Capital redemption reserve 8 8
Other reserves 25 139 128
Retained earnings 3668 374
Total shareholders’ funds 1036 1033
Non-controling interests - 25
TOTAL EQUITY 1036 1058
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 27 3 4
Borrowings 28 821 805
Derwvative financial instruments 20 21 19
Deferred tax habilities 29 24 25
Retirement benefit deficrt 30 277 286
Prowvisions for other llabiities and charges 31 15 18
1161 1157
Current liabilities \
Trade and cther payables 27 382 382
Current tax labilties 53 49
Borrowings and bank overdrafts 28 75 141
Darnvative financtal instruments 20 60 94
Provisions for other llabiliies and charges 3 20 10
590 676
Liabiliies held for sale 38 - 15
590 691
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1751 1848
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2787 2906

The Group financial statemants on pages 67 to 118 were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 May 2013 and signed on its behalf by
Javed Ahmed, Tim Lodge Drectors
The notes on pages 72 to 118 form part of thase Group financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year to 31 March

2013 2012

Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax from continuing operations 309 379
Adjustmants for
— dspreciation of property, plant and equipment 6,16 o 85
— exceptional tems, net of cash flow impact 9} 84)
- amortisation of intangible assets 6,15 17 18
- share-based payments charge 9,26 13 1"
- finance income 10 3 8
- finance expense 10 30 33
Change in werking capital a2 (107} (121)
Change n net retirement benefit obligations {44) 80)
Cash generated from continuing cperations 297 233
Interast paid (36) 43)
Income tax {paid)/raceved (18) 16
Cash generated from discontinued operations 12 8 25
Net cash generated from operating activities 251 231
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 2
Interest received 1 3
Purchase of avallable-for-sale financial assets 18 (£ (8
Disposal of avallable-for-sale financial assets 18 - 18
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired 37 - {7)
Disposal of joint ventures, net of cash disposed a7 15 -
Disposal of businesses, net of cash disposed 37 36 1
Purchase of property, plant and equtpment 92) {102
Purchase of intangible assets and other non-current assets {42) (28)
Net cash generated from investing activities in discontinued operations 12 - 2
Net cash used in investing activities (83) (117}
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary and treasury shares 1 3
Repurchase of ordinary shares 24 (23) {19)
Cash outflow from repayment of borrowings 17 (188)
Cash inflow from additional borrowings 24 8
Cash outflow from repayment of capitat element of finance leases {2) 5
Dvidends paid to the Company's owners 14 {117 {112}
Dividends paid to non-controling interests (2) -
Net cash used in financing activities in discontinued operations 12 - 2}
Net cash used in financing activities (236) (315}
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 34 (68) {201)
Cash and cash equivalents
Balance at beginning of year 448 654
Efiect of changes in foraign exchange rates 1 4]
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (68) (201
Balance at end of year 33 379 446
As presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
Cash and cash equivalents 379 424
Assets held for sale 38 - 22
Batance at end of year 33 are 446

The notes on pages 72 to 118 form part of these Group financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Share capital Attnbutable to
and share Capital Other the owners Non-
premum  rademption reserves Retaned of the controling

[Mote 24) reserve {Note 25) earnings Company interests  Total equrty

£m £m £m £m fm £m £m

Balance at 1 Apnl 2011 523 8 175 244 950 23 ar3
Other comprehensive expense for the year - - @n (60} (107) - (107)
Profit for the year - - - 305 305 4 309
Total comprehenswve (expense)/income for the year - - 47) 245 198 4 202
Share-based payments charge, Including tax - - - 13 13 - 13
Share repurchase - - - (19} (19) - {19)
Proceeds from sharaes issued - - - 3 3 - 3
Dnvidends pard - - - (12} {112} ] (114)
Balance at 31 March 2012 523 8 128 374 1033 25 1058
Other comprehensive Income/{axpenss) for the year - - " (161) {150) 1 (149)
Profit for the year - - — 277 277 1 278
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - 11 116 127 2 129
Share-based payments charge, Including tax - - - 15 15 - 15
Share repurchase - - - {23) (23) - (23)
Proceeds from shares issued - - - 1 1 - 1
Non-controlling interests disposed - - - - - (25) (25)
Dvidends paid - - - {117) {117} {2) (119)
Balance at 31 March 2013 523 8 139 366 1036 - 1036

Retained sarnings at 31 March 2013 include a deduction for own shares held by the ESOP trust of £15 million (2012 — €5 million)
The notes on pages 72 to 118 form part of these Group financial statements
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Financial Staternents

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Presentation of financial
statements

General information

As set out on page 63, the principal activity

of Tate & Lyle PLC is the global provision of
ingredients and solutions to the food, beverage
and other ndusiries It operates from more
than 30 production {acilhes around the world

The Company 1s a public imited company
incarporated and domiciled in the United
Kingdom The Company has its premum listing
on the London Stock Exchange

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements are
presented on the basis of international Financiat
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted by the
European Union and interpretations issued

by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committes (IFRIC) and have
been prepared in accordance with the Listing
Rules of the UK Financial Services Authonty
and the Companies Act 20086, as applicable

to companigs reporting under IFRS The
Directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to continue
to operate for the foreseeable future The Group
therefore continues to adopt the going concern
basis in prapanng its consolidated financial
statements which has been applied consistently
throughout the year

These consolidated financial statements

have been prepared In accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2 and
under the historical cost convention modified
to include ravaluation of certain financial
Instrumants and commodities (including
dervatives) at far value through profit and loss

These consolidated financial statements are
prasented In pounds sterling, which 1s the
functional currency of the Parent and the
presentaticnal currency of the Group

The preparation of inanctal staterments in
canformity wath IFRS requires the use of certain
cntical accounting estimates It also requires
management to exercise Its judgement in the
process of applying the Company's accounting
policies The areas involving a higher degree

of judgement or complexity and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant

to the consoldated financtal statements are
disclosed in Note 3

The Group operates two business units

within continuing cperations Speciality Food
Ingredients and Bulk Ingredients These
business units meet the definition of an
operating segment under IFRS 8 Central costs,
which include head office, treasury and
rensurance actvities, do not meet the operating
segment defintion under IFRS 8 but have

been disclosed as a repertable segment in
Note 4 to be consistent with internal
management reporting

Discontinued operations include activities
relating to businesses that formed part of the
former Sugars segment

Use of adjusted measures

Tate & Lyle presents adjusted profit before tax
and adjusted earnings per share infarmation
These measures are used by Tate & Lyle for
internal performance analysis and incentive
compensation arrangements for employees
The terms ‘adjusted’ and ‘exceptional tems’
are not defined terms under IFRS and may
therefore not be comparable with similarly
titled measures reported by other companies
They are not Intended to be a substitute for,

or supenor to, statutory measurements of profit
The term ‘adjusted’ refers to the relevant
measure being reported, excluding exceptional
items, the amortisation of intangible assets
acquired through business combinations and
post-retirement benefit nterest Exceptional
Items are explained in Note 7 A reconcitation
of statutory to adjusted information 1s provided
In Note 43

New IFRS standards and
interpretations adopted

From 1 April 2012 the Group has adopted the
following new and amended IFRSs and IFRIC
nterpretations

- Amendment to IFRS 7 Financial instruments
Transfer of financial assets

~ Amendmsent to IFRS 1 First time adoption
on hypennflahon and fixed dates

= Amendmenit to LAS 12 Income taxes on
deferred tax

The adoption of these revised standards has
not had a material impact on the Group's profit
for the year and equtty

New IFRS standards and
interpretations not adopted

The following standards, amendments and
Interpretations are not yet effective and hava
not been adopted early by the Group

- Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of
financial statements — other comprehensive
Income {gffectve 1 July 2012)

— Amendments to IAS 19 Employee benefits
{effectve 1 January 2013)

— Amendments to |AS 32 Financial instruments
presertanon effactive 1 January 2014)

— Amendment to [FRS 7 Financial Instruments
Disclosures on offsetting (effective
1 January 2013}

- Annual improvements 2011 (effective
1 January 2013)

- IFRS 8 Financial Instrurments (effective
1January 2013)

— IFRS 10 Consoldated financial statements
{endorsed 1 January 2014)

- IFRS 11 Jont arrangements (endorsed
1 January 2014)

— IFRS 12 Disclosure of interest in other entities
(endorsed 1 January 2014}

- IFRS 13 Faw value measurement {sffective
1 January 2013)

The adoption of these standards, amendments
and interpretations 1s not expected to have a
matsnal iImpact on the Group's result for the
year or equity other than the amesndment to
1AS 19 and IFRS 11 The amendment to IAS 19

changes the basis on which the financing
charge 1s calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net defined benefit cbligation and
the presentation of costs within the iIncome
statement For the year ended 31 March 2013,
the new requirements would have raduced
operating profit by £2 milkon (2012 — £2 million)
and increased net finance costs recognised
outside adjusted earnings by £6 millon

(2012 —£9 million} Under ts current accounting
palicies the Group recognises actuarial gains
and losses directty In other comprehensive
Income, as requred by the new standard

In May 2011, the IASBE 1ssued IFRS 11

Joint Arrangemaents which, s effective for
accounting penods beginning on or after

1 January 2014 While the net result and net
assets will remain unchanged, the presentation
of tha Consolidated Incoms Statement,
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
and Consolidated Statemeant of Cash Flow will
change significantly as IFRS 11 prohibits
proporhonate conschdation of joint ventures
which 1s the Group's current accounting policy,
as allowed under |AS 31 Under IFRS 11, joint
ventures will be equity accounted Operating
segment results will remain unchanged and
contnue to proportionately consolidate joint
venturas reflecting internal reporting to the
Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker with
a reconcihation 1o the IFRS presented figures
The adoptions of the other standards may affect
disclosures in the Group's financial statements

Tha Parant Company, Tate & Lyle PLC, has not
adopted IFRS as s statutory reporting basis
Audited financial statements for the parent
company, prepared in accordance with UK
GAAP, are set out on pages 120to 125

2 Group accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

{a} Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating pohcies, generally accompanying a
sharsholding of more than one half of the voting
nghts and taking inte account the exstence

of potential voting nghts  Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control

15 transferred to the Group They are
de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases The purchase method of accounting

15 used to account for the acquistion of
subsidiaries by the Group Tha recognised
dentfiable assets, labilities and ¢contingent
labites of a subsidiary are measured at therr
far values at the date of acquisition The interest
of minority sharehclders is stated at the
non-controlling interest's proportion of the far
values of the dentifiable assets, latulities and
contingent abilities recognisad Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial staterments of subsidianes to bring

the accounting policies used Into ine with
those used by the Group All inter-company
transactions and balances between Group
entities are eliminated on consolidation
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2 Group accounting policles
continued

(b) Transactions and non-controlliing
Interests

The Group treats transactions with
non-controlling interests as transactions with
equity owners of the Group For purchases
from non-controling interests, the difierence
between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquied of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded

In equity Gains or losses on disposals to
non-gcontroling interests are also recorded
In equity

{c) Joint ventures

An entity 1s regarded as a Joint venture if the
Group has joint control over its operating and
financial policies The Group's interests in
Jointly controlled entities are accounted for

by proportionate consolidation, whereby the
Group’s share of the joint ventures' income and
expenses, assets and labilties and cash flows
are combined on a Ine-by-line basis with similar
items in the Group's financial statements
Where necessary, adjustmenits are made to the
financial statements of joint ventures to bring
the accounting policies used INtc lne with those
used by the Group The Group recognises the
portion of gains or losses on the sale of assets
to the joint venturs that 1s attributable to the
other venturers The Group does not recognise
tts share of profits or losses from the joint
venture that result from the Group’s purchase
of assets from the joint venturs until 1t resells
the assets to an external entity However, if a
loss on the transaction provides svidence of a
reduction in the net realisable value of current
assets, or an mparrment ioss, the loss I1s
recognised immed ately

{d) Associates

An gntity 1S regarded as an associate f the
Group has significant influence, but not contral,
over Its operating and financial policies
Significant influence generally exists where the
Group holds more than 20% and less than 50%
of the shareholders’ voting nghts Asscciates
are accounted for under the equity method
whergby the Group's Incoma staterment
includes is share of their profits and losses
and the Group’s statement of financial positton
includes its share of their net assets Where
necessary, adjusiments are made to the
financial statements of associates to bring the
acceounting policies used into hng with those
used by the Group When the Group's share

of losses In an associate equals or exceeds

Its Interest In the associate, iIncluding any other
unsecured recevables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate Unrealsed gains on transactions
between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's Interest
In the assoclate Unrealised losses are also
elminated on the same basis unless the
transaction provides evidence of an Impairment

of the asset transferred The Group's share
of post-acquisition movernents In other
comprehensive Income 1s recognised In other
comprehensive INCome

Foreign currency translation

{a) Functional and presentational currency
ltems included in the financial statements

of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary econormic
environment It which the entity operates

{the ‘functional currency’) The consolidated
financial statements are presented in pounds
sterling, which 1s the functional currency of
the Parent and the presentational currency
of the Group

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are transtated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
Foreign exchange gans and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at period end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recagnised N the Income statement, except
when recegnised in other comprehensive
ncome {OCH as qualfying cash flow hedges,
gualifying quasi-equity balances or qualifying
net iInvestment hedges

(c) Group entities

From 1 April 2004, the results and financial
position of all the Group's entities that have
a functionat currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows

(i  assets and liabilities, including goodwill
and farr value adjustments for each
statement of financial position presented,
are transtated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position,

() ncome and expenses for each Income
staterment {Including components of
comprehensive Incoma) are translated
at waighted average exchange rates as
a reasonable approxmation to the rates
prevailling on the transaction dates, and

{m) a¥resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate cormponent

of equity within OCI

Prior to 1 April 2004, exchange differences were
recognised in retained earnings

On conselidation, exchange differences
anising from borrowings and other currency
nstruments designated as hedges of such
nvestments, are taken to equity

When a foreign operation 1s sold, such
exchange differences that have accumulated
since 1 Apnl 2004 are recognised In the Income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale
These exchange differences compnse the
axchange differences on all ameunts deemed
to be part of the net investment in the foreign
operaton, which are recycled to the income
statement when a disposal occurs

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings mainly comprise
manufacturing sites and administrative facilities
Plant and machinery mainly comprise
equipment used in the manuiacturing and
operating process Assets under the course

of construction comprnse property, plant and
equipment which 1s in the process of being
completed and not ready for use

Property, plant and equipment I1s stated at
histoncal cost less accumulated depreciation
and imparrment Historical cost Includes
expenditure that 1s directly attributable to the
acquisition of the tems Subseqguent costs are
included In the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future econcmic
benefits associated with the expenditure will
flow to the Group and the cost of tha itam

can be measured reliably All repairs and
mantenance expenditures are charged to

the income statement during the financial

year in which they are incurred

Depreciation s calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of each asset to its
residual value over its useful economic Ife as
follows

Freshold land

Freehold buldings
Leasehold property
Bulk iquid storage tanks
Plant and machinery

No depreciation
20 to 50 years
Pencd of the lease
12 to 20 years
310 28 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed at each statement of financial
position date and adjusted If appropnate
An asset's carrying amount 1s wniten down
Immediately to its recoverable amount If the
asset's carnyng amount Is greater than it
estimated recoverable amount

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by companng the disposal proceeds with

the carrying amount and are included in the
INngcome statement

Leased assets

Leases of property, plant and equipment whers
the Group assumes substantially all the nsks
and rewards of ownership are classified ag
finance leases Assets held under finance
jeases are capitalised at the lower of the farr
value of the leased asset and the present

value of the mimimum lease payments The
corrésponding leasing commitments, net

of finance charges, are included in habilities

Leasing payments are analysed between capital
and interest components so that the interest
elernent s charged to the iIncome statement
over the period of the lease at a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the hability outstanding

Depreciation on assets held under finance
leases is charged to the iIncome statement,
and depreciated over the shorter of the leasa

SUSWRE)S [E1OUeUIl]

Tate & Lyle PLC Annual Report 2013

73



Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

2 Group accounting policies
continued

term and its useful ife All other leases are
treated as operating leases with annual rentals
charged 10 the Income statement, nst of any
Incentrves granted to the lessee, over the tarm
of the lease with incentives recognised over the
penod of the lease at a constant periodic rate

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwillis calculated as the difference
between the farr value of the consideration
exchanged in a business combination,
excluding directly attnbutable acquistion costs,
and the net farr values of the identffiable assets
and habilties acquired and s capitalised if
positive Where the acquired interast in the net
farr value of the identifiable assets and habilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination,
the excess Is recognised immediately in the
income statement Goodwill 15 tested for
imparrment annually and whenever there 1s

an indication of iImpairment, and 1$ carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses

Gans and losses on the disposal of a business
component include the carrying amount of
goodwill retating to the entity sold

Goodwill 1s allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of mpairment testing The
aflocation 1s made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating unrts that
are expected to benefit from the business
combinatign in which the goodwall arose

{b) Patents and other intellectual property
Patents and other intellectual property are
shown at historical cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses Where
the assets are acquired as part of a business
combination, historical cost 1s based on ther
fair values as at the date of the combination
Amortisation of the assets Is recognised

on a straight-line basis over the period of
therr expected benefit which ranges from
three to 15 years

{c) Other acquired intangible assets
Other acquired intangible assets are intangible
assets arising on consolidation of acquired
businesses and include brands, recipes,
customer relationships and supplier networks
They are measured at histoncal cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses Amortisation of the assets 1s recognised
on a straight-line basis over the penod of

therr expected benefit which ranges from
three to 15 years

{d) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are shown at historical
cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses Other intangible assets
mainly inclucle certain development
expenditure, software costs and assets under
construction relating to the common globat ISAT
system Costs iIncurred on development
projects (refating to the development design
and testing of new or improved products) are
recognised as intangible assets when all the IAS

38 recogrition critena are met Capitalised
development costs are amortised from the
commencement of the commercial production
of the product on a straight-line basis over the
penod of its expected benefit Research and
other development expenditures are recognised
as an expense as incurred Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset In a subsequent penod
Capitalised costs in respect of the common
global 1S/IT systern are amortised once it 1s
deployed into the businesses Amortisation of
the assets Is recognised on a straight-lne basis
over the pernod of therr expacted benefit which
ranges from three t0 Seven years

Impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful ife are not
subject to amortisatron and are tested at least
annually for impairment No intangible assets
other than goodwill have an indefinite life In
addition, assets in the course ¢of construction
are not depreciated and are subject to annual
imparrmant review where thers 1s an indication
of Imparrment Assets that are subject to
amartisation or depreciation are reviewed for
impairment whenaver events or changes in
cireumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not ba recovarable An
impairment loss 1s recogrised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recovarable amount Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impatrment in
previous penads are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairrment at sach reporting
date The recovarable amount is the higher

of an asset’s farr value less costs to sell and
value In use

For the purpeses of assessing impairment,
assets other than goodwill are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separatety
dentfiable cash inflows {cash-generating units)
Goodwill 1s allocated to units expected to
benefit from the synergies of the business
combinations Further detalls are given

inNote 3

Financial instruments

{a) Available-for-sale financial assets
Equity instruments held by the Group and
designated as avallable-for-sale are carmed

at far valua, with movements in far value
recognised directly in equity Where far value
cannot be reliably measured, the assets are
approximated at cost Cumulatrve farr value
gains or losses on an asset ara racycled through
the incoma statement when the asset s
disposed or impaired A significant or prolonged
decline in the far value of the secunty below

its cost 1s considerad as an indicator that the
securities are impared Impairments are
recognised in the income statement

{b) Loans and receivables

Non-current and current receivables and loans
granted are recognised inthally at fair value
and thereafter carned at amortised cost less
provisions for impatrment Movements in
carrying value are recognised in the income
statement

{c) Borrowlings

Borrowings are recognised intially at fair value,
net of transaction costs ncurred Where
borrowings are designated as hedged items
under farr value hedges, they are subsequently
rameasurad for farr value changes in respect of
the hedged nsk with such changes recognised
In tha ncome statement Ctherwise, borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost,

any difference between the proceeds (nat of
transaction costs) and the value I1s recognised
In the iIncome statement over the penod of the
borrowings using the effective interest rate
method Borrowings are classified as current
llabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defar settlement of the hability for at
least 12 months after the statement of financial
position date The dividends on preference
shares are recognised in the Income statement
as Interest expenss

(d) Derivatives held for trading

Commedity instruments acquired for trading
purposes are initially recognised at fair value
on the date a denvative contract is entered into
and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value Movements in far valus are recognised
in the incoma statement

{e} Commodity and treasury hedging
instruments

Under IAS 39, hedging relationships are
categonsed by type and must mest strict
critana to qualify for hedge accounting

{i Cash flow hedges
Hedges of firn commitments and hughly
probable forecast transactions, including
forecast intra-group transactions that are
axpected to affect consolidated profit or
loss, are designated as cash flow hedges
To the extent that movements in the fair
values of these Instruments effactively
offset the underlying nsk being hedged
thay are recognised in other
comprehensive incorme until the period
dunng which the hedged forecast
transaction affects profit or loss,
at which paint the curmulative gain or loss
15 recognised in operating profit, offsetting
the value of the hedged transaction

()  Far value hedges
Hedges against the movement in farr value
of recognised assets and habilities are
designated as farr value hedges To the
extent that movements in the fair values
of these Instruments effectively offset the
underlying rnsk being hedged, they are
recognised In net finance expense offset
against the hedged transacton
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2 Group accounting policies

continued

{n} Hedges of net investments
Hedges of a net investment in a foreign
operation are designated as net investment
hedges To the extent that movements
in the farr values of these instruments
effectively offset the undertying risk being
hedged, they are recognised in the
tranglation reserve untl the period dunng
which a foreign operation is disposed of
ar partially dispased of, at which point the
cumulative gain or loss 1S recognisad i
profit or loss, offsetting the cumulative
difference recognised on the translation
of the net Investment

Hedge accounting is discontinued at the

point when the hedging relationship no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting In the case of
cash flow hedging relationships, the cumulative
movement in the fair value of the hedging
instrument previously recognised in equity up
0 that point 1s retained there untit the forecast
transaction affects profit or loss, unless the
hedged transaction 15 no longer expectad to
ocecur, In which case the cumulative movement
in fair value 1s transferred to profit or loss
immediately Movements in the farr value of
hedging instruments where the relationshtp fails
to mest the |AS 39 hedge accounting critena or
where the movement reprasents the ineffactive
portion of a qualifying hedging relatonship

are recognised In the Income staterment
immediately as other income and expeanse

or net finance expense, as appropriate

{f) Embedded derivatives

Where an embedded dervative 18 not closely
related to the host contract and where the host
contract itself is not already recognised at fair
value, movaments in the far value of the
embedded dervative are separated from the
associated transaction and, except where the
embedded dernvative 1s designated as a cash
flow hedging instrument, recognised in the
income statement

{g) Fair values

Fair values are based on market valuss whera
they are available For unlisted secunties, the
Group establishes farr value using valuation
technigues These include the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, reference to other
similar instruments and discounted cash

flow analysis

Where no market pnices are available, the far
value of financial labilities s calculated with
reference to discounted expected future
cash flows

Inventones

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value with the exception of
certan items of merchandisabls agncultural
commodities which are stated at markat
value, in line with regional industry
accounting practices

Cost comprises direct matanals and, where
applicable, drect labour costs and thoss
overheads that have beanincurred in bnnging
the inventones to therr present location and
condrion Cost Is calculated using the “first in
- first out’ or weighted average cost methods,
appropnate to the matenals and production
processes involved Net realisable value
represents the estimated seling pnce less all
estimated costs to complstion and costs to be
incurred In marketing, selling and distnbution
Prowvisions are made for any slow moving,
obsolete or defective Invantories

Trade recelvables

Trade recevables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for Impawrment A provision for
impairment of trade recevables 1s established
when there 1s objective evidence that the

group will not be able 1o coltect ali amounts
due according to the onginal terms of the
recevables Significant financial difficutties

of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and default or delinquency In payments are
considered indicators that the trade recewvable
1s impaired The amount of the provision Is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the onginal effective
interest rate The carrying amount of the asset
18 reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss Is
recogrused in the iIncome statement within
‘operating ¢osts' When a trade recervable

18 uncollectible, it 1s written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables
Subsequent racoveries of amounts previously
written off are credrted against ‘operating costs’
in the Income statement

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equwalents include cashin
hand, deposits held at ¢all with banks and cther
short-termn highly iquid investments wath original
maturties cf three months or less and, for the
purposes of the cash flow statement only, bank
overdrafts whare the legal nght of offset exists

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
Issue of new shares are shown In equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from tha proceeds

Where any Group company purchases the
Company's equity share capital and holds
that share erther directly as treasury shares
or indirectly within an ESOP trust, the
consideration paid, including any directly
attnbutable incremental costs {net of Income
taxes), 1s deducied from equity attnbutable

1o the Company's ownars until tha shares are
cancelled, raissued or disposed Where such
shares are subsequently sold or reissued,
any consideration recewved, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and
the related Income tax effects, is included in
aquity atiributable to the Company’s owners

These sharas are used to satisfy share options
and long-term share incentive pans granted
to employees under the Group’s share option
schemes The trustee of the ESOP trust
purchases the Company’s sharas on the open
market using loans made by the Company

or other loans guaranteed by the Company

Trade payables

Non-current and current trade payables
arg recognised invbialty at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effactive interest rate method

Provisions

Prowisions for other liabilities and charges are
recognised when the Group has a present lsgal
or constructive obligation as a rasult of past
avents, 1t 1s more likely than not that an ocutflow
of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount can be reliably
measured [f the effect is matenal, provisions
are measured using expected future cash flows
discounted at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and, where approprate, the nsks specific to the
iabiity The impact of unwinding any discount
1s taken to finance expense

Provisions are not recogmised for future
operatng losses A provision for onerous
contracts 1s recognised when the expected
benefits to be derved by the Group from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost
of mesting 1ts oblgations under the contract
The main provisions held by the Group include
Insurance provisions, rastructunng and closure
provisions, and other provisions which relate
pnmanly to legal matters and previously
disposed businesses

Income taxes

The charge for current tax 1s based on the
results for the year as adjusted for tems which
are non-taxable or disallowed It 1s calculated
using rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the statement

of financal pesition date

The tax for amounts presented in cther
comprehensive INncome or the statement of
changes in sharehelders’ equity are recognised
in the respective statement

Deferred tax 1s accounted for using the
statement of financial position hability method
In respact of temporary differences ansing from
differences between the carrying amount of
asgsets and labiities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax basis used in the
computation of taxable profit In principle,
deferred tax labltes are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences {except as noted
below) and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable
profits will be avatlable against which deductible
temporary differences can be utiised Such
assets and liabiities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arise from goodwill

or from the inittal recogrution (other thanina
business combination) of other assets and
llabiimes in a transaction which aHacts nerther
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit
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2 Group accounting policies
continued

Deferred tax habilites are recognised for taxable
temporary differences ansing on Investments

In subsidianes and associates, and interests in
joint ventures, except where the Group 1s able to
control the reversal of the temporary differenca
and ¢ I1s probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeabls future

Deferred tax ts calculated using the enacted or
substantrvely enacted rates that are expected
to apply when the asset or lability 1s settled
Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the
Income statement, except when it relates to
Items credited or charged directly to equtty,

In which case the deferred tax i1s also dealt

with in equrty

Deferred tax assets and labilitias are offset
when they relate to Income taxes levied by the
same taxatron authority and the Group intends
1o settie its current tax assets and labiities on
anet basts

Revenue recognition

{a} Sales of goods and services

Sales comprise the amount recewvable in the
ordinary course of business, net of value added
and sales taxes, for goods and services
provided [t comprises the far value of the
consideration receved or recevable for the sale
of goods and services Sales are recegnised

at the point or points at which the Group has
performed its obligations In connaction with
the contractual terms of the sales agreement
pamanly at the point of delivenng to the
customer, and in exchange obtains the nght

to consideration

(b) Interest income

Interest Income 1s recognised on a tme-
proportion basis using the effective interast
rate method

(c) Dividend income
Drvidend income 1s recognised when the nght
to receve payment 1s established

Employee benefits

{a) Pension obligations

Group companies operate various pension
schemes The schemes are generally funded
through payments 10 iInsurance companies,

or trustese payments 10 Insurance companies

or through trustee-adminstered funds,
determined by penodic actuarial calculations
The Group has both defined benefit and defined
centribution plans

A dsfined benefit plan i1s a pension plan that
defines an amount of pension benefit that an
employea will receve on retirerment, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age,
years of service and compensation

A defined contnbution plan s a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contnbutions
Into a separate entity The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contnbutions once these contributions have
been paid

The amounts recognised n the statement of
financial position in respect of defined benefit
pension plans are tha net deficit or the net
surplus being the present value of the defined
bensfit obligation at the statement of financal
postion datea less the farr value of plan assets,
together wath adjustments for actuanal gains or
losses charged or credited to equity and past
service costs The defined benefit obligation

1s calculated annually by independent qualified
actuanes using the projected unit credit
method The present value of the defined
benefit obligatron 1s determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using
intarest rates of high-quality corporate bonds
that are dencminated In the currency in which
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to tha terms of the
related pension hiability Past servica costs are
racognised immediatsly in the Income
statement, unless the changes to the pension
plan ars condtional on the employees
remaining n service for a specified pernod of
time {the vesting penod) In this case, the past
service costs ara amortised on a straight-line
basts over the vestng penod

Any gains or losses from settlement or
curtalment are recognised in the Income
statement when the curtatment or
settlement occurs

Actuanal gains and losses ansing from
axpenence adjustments and changes in
actuarnal assumptions are charged or credited
immediately through the consolidated
statement of comprehensive Income

Where the actuanal valuation of a scheme
demenstrates that the scheme is in surplus,
the racognisad asset is imited to that for
which the Group expects to benefit in future
by refunds or a reduction m contnbution

Fer defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contnbutions to publicly or privately
administered pension nsurance plans on

a mandatory, contractual or voluntary hasis
The Group has no further payment cbligations
once the contnbutions have been paid The
contributions are recogrised as employee
benefit expense when they are dus Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future paymants is available

{b) Other post-employment obligations
Some Group companies provide post-
employment healthcare benefits to therr retirees
The enttlement to these benefits 1s usually
conditional on the employee remaining in
service up to retirement age and the completion
of a mintmum service penod The expected
costs of these benefits are accrued over the
period of employment using an accounting
methodology similar to that for defined benefit
pension plans Actuanal gains and losses
ansing from expenence adjustments and
changes in actuanal assumptions are charged
or credited iImmediately to the consolidated
staternent of comprehensive iIncome These
obligations are valued annually by independent
qualfied actuaries

(c) Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settied,
share-based compensation plans The far value
of amployee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options Is recognised as an
expense The total amount to be expensed over
the vesting penod I1s determined by referenca to
the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact ot any non-market vesting conditions
{for example, earrings targets) Non-market
vesting conditions are ingluded In assumptions
about the number of ophions that are expected
to become exercisable At each statement of
financial position date, for options granted

with non-market vesting conditions, the Group
revises Its estmates of the humber of options
that are expected to become exercisable It
recognises the impact of tha rewision of onginal
estimates, if any, In the income statement,

and a corresponding adjustmant to equity

The proceeds receved net of any directty
attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital and share premium when the
ophions are exercised

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly arising from the
purchase, construction or production of an
asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset Dunng the year £2 miflion of borrowing
costs have been capitatised (2012 — £1 million)
atarate of 3 8% (2012 -3 7%)

Exceptional items

Exceptional tems compnse items of income
and expense, Including tax tems, that are
matenal in amount and unlikely to recur and
which ment separate disclosure in order to
providde an understanding of the Group's
undertying financial performance Examples of
events gmvng nse to the disclosure of matenal
tems of incorme and expense as exceptional
tems inciude, but are not imited to, Imparment
events, significant business transformation
activibes, disposals of operations or significant
individual assets, liigation claims by or against
the Group and tha restructuring of components
of the Group's operations See Note 7 for
further details

Dividend distribution

Final dvidend distnbutions to the Company's
owners ara recognised as a lability in the
Group's financial staterments In the penod

n which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders, while intenm dividend
distributions are racognised in the period In
which the dvidends are declared and paid
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2 Group accounting policies
continued

Segment reporting

IFRS & Operating Segments requires that
entrties identify and report the financial
performance of these operating segments
Segment information 1s reported for those
components for which separate financial
information 1s avallable and which management
uses internally for allocating resources and
assessing performance |n addition to receiving
information relating to the operating performance
of the business, principally sales and adjusted
operating performance, the Chief Operating
Decision Maker, which s deterrmined to be the
Board, receves information on the segmental
net working capital in order to assess the
performance of the segments

Discontinued operations and assets
held for sale

Business components that represent separate
major Ines of business or gecgraphical areas
of operations are recognised as discontinued
If the operations have been disposed of, or
meet the entena to be classified as held for
sale under IFRS 5

Assets and disposal groups are classified as
hekd for sale f ther carrying amount will be
pnncipally recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use This
condrticn 1s regarded as met only when the sale
15 highly probable, expected to be completed
within one year and the asset (or disposal
group) 1s avallable for mmediate sale In its
present condition Operations held for sale are
held at the lower of therr carrying amount on the
date they are classified as held for sale and far
value less costs to sel

3 Critical accounting estimates
and judgements

In order to prepare these consolidated financial
statements m accordance with the accounting
policies set out In Note 2, management has
used estimates and judgements to establish the
amounts at which certain items are recorded
Cntical accounting estimates and judgements
are those that have the greatest impact on the
financial statements and require the most
difficult, subjective and complex judgements
about matters that are inherently uncertain
Estimates are based on factors including
histoncal experience and expectations of
future events that management beleve to be
reasonable However, given the jJudgemental
nature of such estimates, actual resuits could
be different from the assumptions used The
criical accounting estmates and judgemeants
are set aut below

Impairment of assets

Asset mpairments have the potential to
significantly impact operating profit in order

to determine whether imparments are required
the Group estimates the recoverable amount

of the asset This calculation i1s usually based
on projecting future cash flows over a five-year
period and using a terminal value to Incorporate
expectations of growth thereafter A discount

factor 1s apphed to obtain a current value
{'valug Inuse’) The ‘far value less costs to sell’
of an asset 1s used If this results n an amount
In excess of ‘value In use’

Estimated future cash flows for mparment
calculations are based on management's
expectations of future volumes and margins
based on plans and best estimates of the
productivity of the assets in their curent
condition Future cash flows therefore exclude
benefits from major expansion projects
requiring future capital expenditure where

that expenditure has not been approved at
the statement of financial position date

Future cash flows are discountad using a
discount rate based on the Group's weighted
average cost of capital, adjusted If appropnate
for circumstances specific to the asset being
tested The weighted average cost of capital i1s
impacted by estimates of interest rates, equity
returns and market- and country-related risks
The Group's weighted average cost of capital
1s reviewed on an annual basis

If the cash flow or discount rate assumptions
were to change because of market condrtions,
the level of mpairrment could be different and
could result in the asset impairment being
Increased or reversed, in part or in full, at a future
date Goodwill mpairment Is never reversed

Sensitivities are performed around the discount
rate and operating profit growth which are
considered the cntical assumptions in the review

Further details are set out In Notes 15 and 18

Retirement benefits

Amang the range of retirement benefits
provided in businesses around the Group are
a number of defined benefit pension plans
and an unfunded healthcare benefit scheme
inthe WS The amounts recorded in the
financial statements for both of these types
of arrangement are based en a number of
assumptions, changes te which could have
amaterial Impact on the reported amounts

Any net deficit or surplus ansing on defined
benefit plans and the liability under the
healthcare plan 1s shown in the statement of
financial posiion The amount recorded 1s the
difference between plan assets and labiiities

at the statement of financial position date The
Group only recognises a surplus to the extent

it has an uncondiional nght to a refund or a
reduction in future contnbutions  Plan assets
are based on market value at that date The
annuity purchased for the partial pensioner
buy-in 1s measured in accordance with the
defined benefit obligatron of the affected
pension membership Plan labilites, ncluding
healthcare habilies, are based on actuanal
estimates of the present value of future pension
or other bensfits that will be payable to
members The most sensitive assumptions
Invelved in calculating the expected liabirties are
mortality rates and the discount rate used to
calculate the present value if the mortality rates
assumption changed, a one-year Increase to
longawity at age 65 would increase the labulity
by £70 midlien The main firancial assumption

13 the real discount rate, being the excess

of the discount rate over the rate of inflation

If this assumption decreased by 1%, the gross
plan labilittes would increase by approximately
£255 milion

The income statement generally comprises

a regular charge to operating profit for open
defined benefit plans, which represents the
service cost of providing the benefit for the
year, and a finance result, which represents
the net of expected income from plan assets
and an interest charge on plan labiities These
calculations are based on expected outcomes
at the start of the financial year The income
statement 1s most sensiive to changes in
expected returns from plan assets and the
discount rate used to caloulate the interest
charge on plan liabilities A 1% increase n the
assumption of the discount rate would increase
the net finance expense by approximately

£11 millien

Full details of these assumptions, which are
based on advice from the Group’s actuaries,
are set out nNote 30

Provisions

The Group recognises a provision where

a legal or constructive obligation exists at
the statement of financial position date and
a relable estimate can be made of the likely
outcome Where appropriate, future cash
outfiows that are expected to arise over a
number of years are discountsd 1o a present
value using a relevant discount rate

At the statement of financial position date,
provisions included amounts for iInsurance
claims payable by the Group's reinsurance
company, iegal matters, employee termination
and cther restructunng costs

Although provisions are reviewed on a regular
basis and adjusted for management's beast
current estimates, the jJudgemental nature of
these terns means that future amounts settled
may be different from those provided

Further details are set out in Nots 31

Taxation

The Group operates In a large number of tax
junsdictions around the world Tax regulations
generally are complex and in some jurisdictions
agreeing tax llabilities with local tax authonties
can take several years Consequently, at the
statement of financial position date, tax habilities
and assets are based on management’s best
astimate of the future amounts that will be
settied While the Group ams to ensure that
the estimates recorded are accurate, the actual
amounts could be different from those expected

Deferred tax assets mainly anse from asset
mpatrments and retirement benefit obligations
that the Group expects to recover at some time
in the future and by therr nature the amounts
recorded are therefore dependent on
management’s Judgement about future events

Further detals are set cut in Notes 11 and 28
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

4 Segment information

The Group operates two business units within continuing operations Speciality Food Ingredients and Bulk Ingredients These business units maet
the defirution of operating segment under IFRS 8 Central costs, which include head office, treasury and reinsurance actwvities, do not meet the
operating segment definition under IFRS 8 but have been disclosed as a reportable segment in the tables below to be consistent with internal
management reporting

In the current year, there has been a change to internal managemant reporting which alminates intar-segment salas
Discontinuad operatiens compnse businessas that formed part of the former Sugars segment (Note 12)
The segment results for the year to 31 March 2013 are as follows

Continuing operations

Total from
continuing
Speciality Discontinued and
Food Bulk Central operations  discontinued
Ingredients Ingrediants costs Total {Note 12) operations
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Sales
Total sales 947 2309 - 3256 10 3266
Inter-segment sales - - - - - -
External sales {Note a) 847 2309 - 3256 10 3266
Operating profit/{loss)
Before exceptional tems and
amortisation of iIntangible assets
acquired through business
combinations 213 182 37 ass8 {8} 350
Exceptional tems 7 {3) 8 (17 {12) 26 14
Amortisation of intangible assets
acquired through business
combinations 15 (10) - - {10) - (10)
Operating profit/loss) 200 180 (54) 338 18 354
Finance mncome before post
retirement benefit interest 10 1 - 1
Finance expense 10 (30) - {30)
Post-retrement benefit intarest 10 2 - 2
Profit before tax 309 18 327
Segment assets (Note b) 304 566 23 893 3 896
Unallocated assets
- non-current assets 1421
= current agsets 470
Total assets 2787
Segment liabilities (Note b) {115) {223) {46} {384) () (385)
Unallocated habilittes
- nen-current habilities (1 158)
—current labilities {208}
Total habiwhes {1 751)
OCther segment information
Net working capital 189 343 23) 509 2 51
Capital investments (Note ¢) 43 66 34 143 - 143
Depreciation 16 36 52 3 )] - o
Amortisation of iIntangible assets 15 15 1 1 7 - 17
Share-based payments 9, 26 3 3 7 13 - 13

(a) There were no customers that contributed more than 10% of the Group’s external sales from continuing operations for the year ended

31 March 2013

{b) Segment assets and habiities compnse contrellable working capital (trade and other receivables. inventonies and trade and other payables),
as reported to the Chief Operating Decision Maker All other assets and llabilities are reported within segment information as unallocated as
these are not reported to the Chief Operating Decision Maker at segment level

(c) Caprtal nvestments compnse capital expenditure on property, plant and squipment, intangible assets and nvestments  These Items Include

amounts arsing on acquisition of businesses
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4 Segment information continued

The segment rasults for the year to 31 March 2012 are as follows

Continuing operations

Total from
continuing
Specalty Discontinued and
Food Bulk Cantral operations discontinued
Ingredients Ingredients costs Total (Note 12) operations
Notes £m m £m £m £m £m
Sales
Total sales 992 2277 - 3268 72 3341
Inter-segment sales (105) 78) - (181} - (181)
External sales {Note a} as7 2201 - 3088 72 3160
Operating profit/{loss)
Before exceptional items and
amoertisation of intangible assets
acquired through business
combinations 214 172 (38) 348 353
Exceptional tems 7 70 7 {9) 68 il 78
Amortisation of intangible assets
acquired through business
combinations 15 {12) - - (12) - (12)
Operating profit/loss) 272 179 (a7) 404 16 420
Finance income before post-retirement
benefit interest 10 3 2 5
Finance expense 10 {33) M (34)
Post-retirement benefit interest 10 5 - 5
Profit before tax 379 17 396
Segment assets (Note b) 258 513 13 784 40 824
Unallocated assets
—non-¢current assets 1515
- current assets 567
Total assets 2906
Segment liabilities (Note b) n7) (222) 47) (386) ) (395)
Unallocated liabilties
- non-current labilities (1 153)
- current liabilties (300)
Total habdities (1 848)
Other segment information
Net working capital 141 23 {34 398 31 429
Capntal investments (Note ¢ 70 52 30 152 1 153
Depreciation 16 30 53 2 85 2 87 -
Amortisation of Intangible assets 15 18 - - 18 - 18 93
Share-based payments 9, 26 3 2 6 " - 1 g
{8) There were no customers that contributed more than 10% of the Group’s external sales from continuing operations for the vear ended 31 March %’
2012 Sales between segments were carned out at arm's length i
(b} Segment assets and labimes compnses controllable worlang capital {trade and other recevables, Inventeries and trade and other payables), ?,
as reported to the Chisf Operating Decision Maker All other assets and liabilities were reported within segment information as unallocated, as %
these were not reported to the Chief Operating Decision Maker at segment level
() Capitalinvestments comprise capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investments These items include
amounts arising on acquistion of businesses
The United Kingdom 1s the home country of the Parent Company Sales {from continuing operations} and non-current assets, other than financial
nstruments, defarred tax assets and retirement benefit assets in the prncipal termtories are as follows
External sales by destination External sales by ongin Location of non-current assets
Year to 31 March Year to 31 March Year to 31 March
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m £m £m
United Kingdom 63 64 23 18 38 39
United States 1965 1849 2404 2216 829 767
Other European countries 502 526 528 512 309 302
Rest of world 726 649 301 342 147 146
Total 3256 3088 3 256 3088 1323 1254
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5 Sales from continuing operations

Analysis of sales by category
Year to 31 March
2013 2012
Note £m £m
Sales of goods (excluding share of sales of joint ventures) 2780 2617
Share of sales of joint ventures 17 476 an
Total 3258 3088
6 Operating profit
Continuing operations
Analysis by nature
2013 2012
Notes £m Em £m £m
External sales 5 3256 3088
Staff costs g 256 250
- of which relate to cost of sales 125 121
Inventones
- cost of Inventories recognised as an expense (included in cost of sales) 2066 1952
Depreciation of proparty, plant and equipment
~ owned asssts 16 87 84
- of which relate to cost of sales 86 81
- leased assets {(included In cost of sales) 16 4 1
Exceptional tems 7 12 68}
Amortisation of intangible assets
—intangible assets ansing through business combinaticns 15 10 12
- other intangible assets 15 7 6
COperating lease rentals
- plant and machinery 19 22
Research and devalopment expenditure 32 29
Imparment of trade recevables 23 1 1
Impairment of mventones 22 - 1
(Profitloss on disposal of property, plant and equipment {1) 1
Other operating and seling expenses 427 393
Total 2920 2684
Operating profit from continuing operations 336 404
Discontinued operations
Analysis by nature
2013 2012
Notes £m £m £m £m
External sales 12 10 72
Staff costs 9 - 2
- of which relate to cost of sales - 1
Inventones
—cost of Inventories recognised as an axpense (included in cost of sales) 6 60
Depreciation of proparty, plant and equipment
—owned assets 16 - 2
— of which relate to cost of sales - 2
Exceptional tems 7 {26) {11)
Impairment of trade recewables 23 2 -
Prafit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 41} -
Other operating and seling expenses 1 3
Total 8) 56
Operating profit from discontinued operations 18 16
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7 Exceptional tems
Exceptionat terns are as follows

Year to 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Continuing operations
Gain on disposal — Sucromiles {Nots a} 8 -
Business transformation costs (Note b) (20) (15
Reversal of fixed asset impairment (Note c) - 60
Reversal of provision — Mgclintosh (Nota ¢) - 23
Total {12) 68
Discontinued operations
Gain on disposal - Vietnam {Note d) 21 -
Gain on disposal -~ Molasses {Note g) 5 -
Gain on disposal of minority holdings — International Sugar Trading {Note f) - 1
Total 28 11

Continuing operations

@

(b}

)

On 1 August 2012, the Group completed the disposal of its share In Sucromiles SA (Sucromiles), its Colombian citnc acid joint venture, to is
former joint-venture partner, Organizacion Ardia Lule  After recycling foreign exchange revaluation gains previously held in reserves to the
Income statement, a gain on disposal of £8 millon was recorded and 1s reported in the Bulk (ngredients segment Further details are set out
in Note 37

The Group has recognised an exceptional charge of £20 million {2012 — £15 mullion) m ralation to business transformation costs The Group
incurred £18 milion (2012 - £9 mulion) of costs that did not meet the capitalisation critena associated with the implementation of a common
global ISAT platform and global Shared Services Centre, and £2 million (2012 — £5 million) In relation to the relocation of employees and
rastructuring associated with the new Commercial and Food Innovation Centre In Chicago, USA In the prior year, a further €1 milion of closure
and other restructunng costs wars incusred In relation to the Food Systems business These costs are reported n the Speciality Food
Ingradients segment {£3 million, 2012 - £6 million) and within Centrat costs (£17 millon, 2012 ~ £9 million)

In the pnor year, the Group took the decision to re-open the mothballed facility in Mcintosh, Alabama and restart the production of sucralose,
which resulted In the reversal of £53 milllon of the imparment charge previously recognised aganst property, plant and squipment In addition,
£23 million of the prowision in respect of obligations relating to the mothballed faciity was no longer required and was also reversed These
axceptional tems were reported within the Speciality Food Ingredients segment

In addmon, in Novernber 2010 the Group signed an agreement with Amyns, Inc to manufacture trans-beta-famesene using assets located
at the Decatur, llinois plant that were previcusly redundant In the prior year, commercial wabilty of the new production process was proven
resulting in a £7 million reversal of the write down previcusly recognised against property, plant and equipment This exceptional item was
reportad within the Bulk Ingredients segment

The tax Impact on continuing net exceptional items 1s a £5 million credit {2012 - £31 million charge) Tax credits on exceptional costs are only
recognised to the extent that losses incurred will result In tax recoverable i the future

In the pror year, the Group recognised an exceptional tax credit of £10 mullion which represented the recegnition of a deferred tax asset in respect
of foreign tax credits recognised in association with the disposal of the ethanol facility in Fort Dodge, lowa

Discontinued operations

{d) On 29 June 2012, the Group completad the sale of Vietnam Sugar to TH Milk Focd Stock Company After recycling foreign exchange revaluation
gains previously held in reserves to the income statement, a gain on disposal of £21 million was recorded Further details are set out in Note 37 -n
{e) On 20 March 2013, the Group completed the sale of the land and bulldings relating to the former Molasses business, resulting in a gain on 2
disposal of £5 millon being recognised Further details are set out In Note 37 3
o
) Inthe prior year, the Group complsted the sale of its minonty holdings in the former Intarnational Sugar Trading business In Egypt and P
Saudh Arabva After recycling revaluation gans previously held in reserves to the iIncome statement, the Group recorded an exceptional gain g
of £11 million g
The tax mpact on discontinued net exceptional items for the penod 1s Cnil (2012 - £ni) Tax credits on exceptional costs are only recognised to the ‘é
axtent that losses incurred will result in tax recoverable in the future
In the prior year, the Group recognised an exceptional tax charge of £15 milion in respect of outstanding tax matters associated with the starch
facilities that formed part of the former Food & Industnal Ingredients, Europe segment, which are in the process of ingation Theses facihes were
disposed of by the Group m the year ended 31 March 2008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

8 Audrtors’ remuneration

Dunng the year the Group {including its overseas subsidiaries) obtained the fallowing services from the Company's auditors as detalled below

Year to 31 March
2013 22
£m £m
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and its associates for the audit of the parent company and
consolidated financial statements 07 08
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and its associates for other services
—the audit of the Company's subsidianes 12 12
—audit-related services 03 05
- other services - a1
Total audit fees 22 24
Fees in respect of the audit of the Group pension schemes 01 Q1
Total 23 25
9 Staff costs

Staff costs {or the Group during the year were as follows

Yaar to 31 March 2013

Year to 31 March 2012

Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued

operations operations operations operations

Notes £m £m £m £m

Wages and salaries 210 - 204 2

Sccial security costs 22 - 24 -
Qther pension costs

- defined benefit schemes 30 4 - 4 -

- defined contnbution schemes 4 - 4 -

—reliremeant healthcare benefits 30 3 - 3 -

Share-based payments 26 13 - ik -

Total 256 - 250 2

The avarage monthly number of people employed by the Group, excluding associates’ employees and including a proportionate share of people

employed by joint ventures, 15 set out below As required by the Comparues Act 2006, this includes pant-time employees

Year to 31 March
By business segment 2013 202
Speciality Food ingredients 1731 1693
Bulk Ingredients 2187 2247
Central 404 346
Total 4 322 4 286

In addition, the average number of people employed relating to discontinued operations was 60 (2012 - 278)

The number of people employed by the Group at 31 March 2013 was 4,326 (2012 - 4,636} Included in these numbers are nil (2012 - 253) employees
relating to discontinued operations

Central inciudes shared service employeas who perform actmties for the whole Group, ncluding the Speciality Food Ingredients and Bulk Ingredients
segments

Key management compensation
Yoar to 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Salaries and short-term employee bensfits 5 7
Post-employment benefits 1 1
Share-based payments 6 6
Total 12 14

Key management 13 represented by the Group Executive Committee and the Company's directors Remuneration detalls of the Company's directors
are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 50 to 62 Members of the Group Executive Commitiee are given on page 39

The aggregate emelumants of directors in respect of qualifying services to the Company were £2 million (2012 - £3 milion)

As required by the Companies Act 2006, the aggregate gamns made by the directors on the exarcise of share options were £1 milion
(2012 — £1 million)
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10 Finance income and finance expense

Year to 31 March

2013 2012
Continuing operations Notes €m £m
Finance income
Interest recervable 1 3
Net finance income ansing on defined benefit retrerment schemes
- expected return on plan assets 30 ka2 78
- Interest cost a0 {69) (73)
Total finance income 3 8
Finance expense
Interest payable on bank and other borrowings (28) 31
Finance leasa charges (2) {1
Fair value gains/{losses) on interest-related dervative financial nstruments
- interest rate swaps - farr value hedges - 20
- denvatives not designated as hedges {n @
Fair value adjustment of borrowings attnbutable to Interest rate nsk 1 (18)
Total finance expense (30) B33
Net finance expense (27) 23

Finance expense i shown net of borrowing costs capitalised within intangible assets (Note 15) of £2 million {2012 - £1 milion caprtalised within
property, plant and equipment) at a capitalisation rate of 3 8% (2012 — 3 7%)

Interest payable on other borrowings includes £0 2 milion (2012 - £0 2 milion) of dvidends In raspect of the Group's 6 5% cumulative preference shares

Discontinued operations

Included within the profit for the year in relation to discontinued operations {Note 12) 18 net financs Income of £mil {2012 — £1 million)

11 Income tax expense
Analysis of charge for the year

Year to 31 March

2013 2012
Continuing operations Note £m
Current tax
In respect of the current year
- UK - _
- overseas 23 7
Adustments in respact of previous years = -

23 7

Defarred tax 29
Deferred tax charge 30 73
Adjustments In respect of previous years 4) 2
Excephional tax credit - (19)
Income tax expanse 49 72

The income tax charge relating to continuing operations for the year to 31 March 2013 1s £49 millon (2012 - £72 millon) and includes a credit of
£5 mullion in respect of pre-tax exceptional tems {2012 — £31 muillion charge)

The effective tax rate for the year, calculated on the basis of the total Income tax charge relating to continuing operations as a proportion of profit
before tax, 1s 15 8% {2012 - 19 0%) This compares with the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 24% {2012 - 26%) The effective tax rate
retating to continuing operations on profil before excepbional tems, amorusation of iImMangible assets acquired through business combinations,
post-retirement benefit interest and exceptional tax tems 15 17 9% (2012 — 18 2%}

Included wathin deferred tax Is a crednt of £4 milion {2012 = £2 million charge) principally relating to the settlement of prnor year tax obligations In a

number of junsdictions

In the prior year the exceptional tax credit of £10 million represents the recognition of a deferred tax asset in respect of foreign tax credits recognised

SILLISIE)S [EIDUBUIY

In association with the disposal of Fort Dodge, lowa
The standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom has reduced from 24% to 23% from 1 Apnl 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

11 Income tax expense continued
The tax on the company’s profit before tax differs from the standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom as follows

Year to 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Profit before tax 309 379

Corporation tax charge theraon at 24% (2012 — 26%) 74 99
Adjusted for the sffects of

- axceptional tax credit - {10)

- rtems not {taxable)/deductible for tax purposes (5) 3

- losses not recognised 9 4

— adjustments to tax in respect of previous years 4} 2

- diffarent tax rates applied on overseas earnings (25) (26)

Total 49 72

Discontinued operations

The income tax charge in respect of discontinued operations {Note 12) in the year to 31 March 2013.1s €nil {2012 - £15 millien charge} The
comparative period compnised a £15 million exceptional charge increasing the provisions relating to outstanding tax matters associated with starch
facities that formed part of the former Food & Industnal Ingredients, Europe segment, which are in the process of litigation These facilities were
disposed of by the Group i the year ended 31 March 2008

Tax charge relating to components of other comprehensive income
Year to 31 March

2013 2012

Notes £m £m

Retirement benefit obligations 3) 33
Cash flow hedges {1) -
Tax losses (5) 6)
Tax (charge)/credrt relating to components of other comprehensve INcome (91 27
Deferred tax 28 {9) 27

Tax on items recognised directly in equity
Yaar to 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Current tax credit on share-based payments 3) -
Deferred tax charge/{credit) on share-based payments 1 {2)
Tatal {2) 2

12 Discontinued operations

The results of the former Sugars segment are presented as discontinuad operations in both the current and comparative year In the current year,
the Group completed the sale of its Vietnam Sugar operations, its ramaining Israel Sugar assets and other assets relabng to Sugar operations which
are discontinued Further details can be found in Note 37 In the prior year, Other also includes £15 millon of ncome tax expense in respect of
outstanding tax matters associatad with the starch facilites that formed part of the former Food & tndustnal ingredients, Europe segment, which
are in the process of iigation

‘Year to 31 March 2012

Vietnam Sugar Other Total

Notes £m £m £m

Sales 9 1 10
Operating profit{loss) before exceptonal items 3 (1) (8)
Exceptional items 7 21 5 26
Operating profit/loss) 24 {6) 18
Prefit/(loss) bsfora tax 24 8 18
Incoma tax expense 11 - -
Profit/{loss) for the year 24 (6) 18
Non-gontroltng interests Q) - m
Profit/{loss) attnibutable to owners of the Company 23 (6) 17
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12 Discontinued operations continued

Year to 31 March 2012

Vietnam Sugar Other Total

Notes £m £m

Sales 3 a4 72
Operating profit/{loss) before exceptional items 7 2 5
Exceptionat tems 7 - " 1"
Operating profit 7 a 16
Finance income 10 2 - 2
Finance expense 10 - ()] 1)
Profit before tax 9 8 7
Income tax expense 1 - (15) {15)
Profitf{loss) for the year g N 2
Non-controling Interests ) - @
Profit/{loss} attributable to owners of the Company 5 [v4] {2)

Net cash flows from disconbnued operations are as follows

Year to 31 March 2013

Vietnam Sugar Other Total

£m £m £m

Net cash generated from operating activities 4| 4| 8
Year to 31 March 2012

Vigtnam Sugar Other Total

£m £m £m

Net cash generated from operating activiies 10 15 25
Net cash generated from investing activiies 2 - 2
Net cash used in financing activities 2 — )]

13 Earnings per share
Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dmvding the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in 1ssue during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by the Company and held in the Employes Share Ownership Trust or

In Treasury
Year to 31 March 2013 Year to 31 March 2012
Continuing  Discontinued Contiruing Discontinued
operations operations Total operations operations Totat
Profit/loss) attnbutable to owners of the
Company {Cmillion) 260 17 277 307 ] 3085
Waighted average nurnber of ordinary shares in
1ssue {millons) 464.2 464 2 464.2 4657 4657 4657
Basic earnings/loss) per share 56 Op 3I7p 59.7p 65 8p {0 4p 65 5p

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share s calculated by adjusting the weaighted averags number of ordinary shares in 1ssue to assume conversion of all potential
dilutive ordinary shares Potential dilutve ordinary shares anse from share options and the Group's long-term share incentive plans For non-psriormance-

related share plans, a calculatron 1s performed to determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value {determined as the

average annual market share pnce of the Company's shares) based on the monetary value of the subscrption nghts attached to cutstanding share
options For performancs-related share plans, a calculation Is performed to deterrmine the satisfaction or otherwise, of the performance condrtions
at the end of the financial year, and the number of shares which would be 1ssued based on the status at the end of the financial year

Year to 31 March 2013

Year to 31 March 2012

Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
perations operat Total operations operatons Total
Profit/floss) attnbutable to owners of the
Company {Zmillion) 260 17 277 307 @ 305
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
{mulions) 473 5 473 5 473.5 4749 4749 4749
Dituted earmings/{loss} per share 54 9p 3 ép 58.5p 64 6p {0 3)p 64 3p

The adjustment for the dilutive effect of share options at 31 March 2013 was 9 2 millon shares (2012 -9 2 million)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contnued

13 Earnings per share continued
Adjusted earnings per share

Adjusted earmings per shars 1s statad excluding excepbional tems, amortisation of Intangible assets acquired threugh business combinations and

post-retiremant benefit interest as follows

Year to 31 March

2013 2012
Continuing operations Notes £m £m
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 260 307
Adjustments
— excepticnal tems 7 12 68)
—amortisation of Intangible assets acquired through business combinations 15 10 12
- post-retirernent benefit interest 10 {2) 5)
- tax effect of the above adjustments {10) 24
- exceptional tax credit " - (10)
Adjusted profit 270 260
Adiusted basic earnings per share frem continuing operations 58 2p 558p
Adjusted diluted earmings per share from continuing cperations 57 0p 54 Tp
14 Dividends
Yaar to 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Dividends paid on ordinary equity shares
- final pad relating to pnor year a3 79
~intenim paid relating to current year 34 33
Total dividend patd 117 12
Satisfied by
—cash 117 12
Total 117 112
The total ordinary dividend 1s 26 2p (2012 — 24 9p) made up as follows
—interim dividend pad T4p 71p
- final dvidend proposed {Note a) 18 8p 178p
Total 26 2p 24 9p

(a) The final dividend proposed for the year of £87 millon (2012 — £83 mullory, based on the numbaer of shares outstanding as at 31 March 2013 has
not been recognised as a liability and will be settiad on 2 August 2013, to shareholders who are on the Register of Mernbers on 28 June 2013,

subgect to approval by shareholders at the Company’s Annual General Meeting on 24 July 2013
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15 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Patents and other  Other acquired Cther
intellectual intangible Total acquired intangible
Goodwill property assets intangibles assets Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2012 217 33 116 366 70 436
Addrtions at cost - 1 - 1 43 44
Exchange - - 3 3 3 6
At 31 March 2013 217 34 119 370 116 486
Accumulated amortisation and impairments
At 1 April 2012 - 27 57 84 27 11
Amortisation charge - 1 9 10 7 17
Exchange - - 2 2 - 2
At 31 March 2013 - 28 68 96 34 130
Net book value at 31 March 2013 217 6 51 274 82 356
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2011 222 33 121 376 40 416
Addticns at cost - - - - 30 30
Exchange ) - 5) {10) - {10)
At 31 March 2012 217 33 116 366 70 436
Accumulated amortisation and impairments
At 1 Apnl 2011 - 25 49 74 22 96
Amortisation charge - 2 10 12 6 18
Exchange - - 2 ] (1) @
At 31 March 2012 - 27 57 84 27 LIk
Net book value at 31 March 2012 217 6 59 282 43 325

Goodwill

The carrying amounts of goodwill by segment are as follows

Year to 31 March

2013 2m2
€m £m
Speciaity Food Ingredients {Note a) 7 76
Bulk Ingredients 1 1
Allocated by geography
- United States (Note b) 60 57
~Europe {Note ¢) 85 83
Total 217 217

Goodwill 1s tested for mparrment annually and whanever there 1s an indication of imparment The carrying value was compared to the recoverable
amount which was determined by value In use Although cash flows have been identrfied for certan indvidual plants for the purposes of assessing

the recoverable amounts, the business 1s principally managed as a network in the United States and Europe, with a large amount of Interdependency
bstween plants, with plants servicing both the Speciality Foed Ingrediants and Bulk Ingredients segments

As a result, except as noted, it 1s not possible te allocate goodwill to either the Bulk Ingredients or the Speciality Feod Ingredients segments

Therefore, goodwill 1s tested for impairment on a geographical basis except where goodwill can be allocated to an dentfiable separate cash-generating
uret {CGL} Unless otherwise stated, impairment reviews are carmed out in accordance with the methodology set out in Notes 2 and 3 using cash flows
based on the latest Board approved management projections with management determined budgeted gross margin based on past performance and
its expectatons of market development The discount rates used are pre-tax and are based on the Group's WACGC adjusted to reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant operating segments The werghted average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports
The terminal valus i1s based on the long-term growth rate for the relevant geographical markets and 1s approximately 2% or lower per year

{8) Goodwili within the Speciality Food Ingredients segment includes amounts relating to the acquisition of G C Hahn & Company in Jung 2007 and
the acquisition of the Cesalpinia Foods group In December 2005 which are all within the Food Systems division, which totals £63 million (2012
—£62 millon) These businesses have been tested for impairment as one CGU following sufficient integration between the businesses A pre-tax
discount rate of 10 1% (2012 - 10 4%) has been used with cash flow projections based on the five-year business plan A 2% growth was
assumed in perpeturty based con the long-term nationat average growth rates for the geographic markets in which these businesses operate
Management has concluded that no Impairment is required

The remaining goodwill relates to a number of smaller acquisitions, each of which has been tested for mpairment using management projections
for five years, pre-tax discount rates of 10 1% (2012 — 10 4%} and 2% growth assumed in perpetuty based on long-term national average growth
rate for these markets Significant headroom exists and management has concluded that no impairment 1s required
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15 Goodwill and other intangible assets continued

(6} Goodwill relabing to the United States includes £60 mithon (2012 — £57 million) relating to the Staley acquisition in 1988, which is treated as one
CGU for impairment tagting purposes Cash flows used were based on the tatest approved plans for five years discounted using a pre-tax rate
of 10 1% (2012 — 10 4%) A 2% growth was assumed in perpetuty based on the long-term national average growth rate for this geographic

market Significant headroom exists and management has concluded that ne imparment 1s required

{c) Goodwill relating to Europs includes £85 milion (2012 - £83 million) relating to the acquisttion in 2000 of the minonty of 34% of shares of the
former Amylum business Although cash flows have been identified for certain indnidual plants for the purposes of assessing the recoverable

amounts of property, plant and equipment (as described in Nota 16) the business I1s treated as ona CGU for goodwill impairment testing

purposes The goodwill in the former Amylum business has been tested for impairment using a pre-tax discount rate of 10 1% (2012 — 10 4%)
Cash flow projections for five years were used A 2% growth was assumed in perpeturty based on the long-term national average growth rates
for these markets Significant headroom exists and management has concluded that no impairment 1s required

Management considers that no reasonably possible change in any of the assumptions would cause the racoverable amount of goodwill attached

o the abowve CGUSs to fall below therr carrying value

Other intangible assets

Other ntangible assets 1s made up of caprtalised development costs and software Included in capitalised development costs 1s £47 milion

{2012 — €18 mifion) relatng 1o a common global ISAT platform of which £20 midhon (2012 - £18 mithon) 1s held as assets under construciion and will
be amortised over a penod of seven ysars once it 1s deployed into the businesses Additions to Other intangible assets include capitalised borrowing

costs of £2 mulion {2012 — £l

16 Property, plant and equipment

Assets in tha
Land and Plant and couesa of
bulldings machinery construction Total
£m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 Apnil 2012 444 1932 82 2458
Additions at cost 2 7 86 95
Transfers on completion 33 103 {136) -
Disposals and wnte-offs {5) {19) - (24)
Exchange 20 85 - 105
At 31 March 2013 494 2108 32 2634
Accumulated depreciation and impairments
At 1 Apnl 2012 209 1327 - 1538
Depreciation charge 1 80 - 21
Disposals and wnts-cffs {5) (7 - {22)
Exchange 8 83 - 71
At 31 March 2013 223 1453 - 1676
Net book value at 31 March 2013 271 655 32 958
Cost
At 1 Apri 2011 433 1893 78 2404
Addrtions at cost 2 24 S0 116
Transfers on completion 21 64 (85) -
Transfer to assets held for sala 2 {15} )] n8)
Disposals and write-offs © (10 - {13)
Exchange {7 {24} - 31)
At 31 March 2012 AAA 1932 a2 2 458
Accumulated depreciation and Impairments
At 1 Apnl 2011 221 1328 - 1549
Depreciation charge 10 77 - 87
Transfer to assets held for sale {1) {13 - {14)
Reversal of impairment losses (18} (42) - {60
Disposals and wnte-offs ) Q) - {10)
Exchange @ (14) - (16)
At 31 March 2012 209 1327 - 1536
Net book value at 31 March 2012 235 605 82 922

Additions to property, plant and equipment includes capitalised borrowing costs of £ril milion (2012 — £1 million}

Impairment losses

It 1s the Group's policy to test assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be

recoverable, or that an impairmgnt loss recogrised in a previous period ne longer exists or has decreased
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16 Property, plant and equipment continued

Impairment reviews

2013 and 2012

The Group carrned out an impairment review at 31 March 2013 The recoverable amount was based on value in use, calculated based on estimated
future cash flows using management’s internal forecasts of future margins for the next five years The pre-tax discount rate used was between

10 1% and 12 1% {2012 — between 10 4% and 12 4%) and a 2% growth rate assumed in perpsetuity, whers appropriate Taking all factors into account
management concluded that no impairments wera required Dunng 2012, the Group reversed previously recognised impairments on its sucralose
manufacturing facility in Mclntosh, Alabama (£53 million) and £7 million relating to the previously redundant plant at its Decatur, linos facility See
Note 7 for further detatls

In respect of the plant In Dayton, Chio which had been previcusly iImpaired, the recoverable amount was based on value in use, calculated based on
estimated future cash flows using management'’s internal forecasts of future margms for the next five years and applying a termunal value A pre-tax
discount rate of 12 19% was used to take into account the risk associated with the regulatory and competitive environment in which it operates Taking
all factors into account management concluded that no further impairment or reversal of previcus impairments was required

Leased assets
Included in property, plant and equipment i1s plant and machinery held under finance leases with a net book value of £18 malion {2012 ~ £20 million}

17 Investments in associates and joint ventures

Associates £m
At 1 Aprl 2017 and 2012 5
Exchange 1
At 31 March 2013 6

The Group's associates, which are accounted for under the equity method, are isted in Note 42
The amounts equity accounted in the Group income staterment and statement of financial position are summarised balow
Year to 31 March

2013 2012

Income statement £m £m
Sales 4 5
Expenses {4) 5)
Profit before and after tax - -
31 March

2013 212

Statement of financial position £m £m
Assets 13 10
Liabilties ) &)
Net assets 6 5

Joint ventures

The Group's joint ventures are proportionately consolidated and the continuing businesses are ksted 1n Note 42 The amounts proportronately
consclidated in the Group income statement and statement of financial position are summansed below

Year to 31 March 2013 Year to 31 March 2012

Continungg  Discontinued Continuing Discontnued

operations operations operations operations

Note £m £m £m £m

Sales 5 476 - 471 =
Other expense {428) - (401) [1)]
ProfitAloss) before tax 48 - 70 W]
Income tax expense (14 - a3) -
Profit/{loss) for the year 34 - 57 (1)
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17 Investments in associates and joint ventures continued

31 March
2013 2032
Statement of financial position £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets 173 170
Cash and cash equivalents 73 102
Other current assets 158 158
404 431
Liabilities
Non-current borrowings 7 7
Cther non-current llabiites 19 17
Current borrowings 31 7
Other current habilities 56 74
13 105
Net assets 2H 326
There ara guarantees in respect of banking faciities of a joint venture totalling £9 milion (2012 — £10 million)
18 Avallable-for-sale financial assets .
m
At 1 Apnl 2011 36
Additions 6
Digposal (18)
Fair value loss (1)
Exchange 1
At 31 March 2012 24
Additions 4
Fair value loss 1)
Exchange 1
At 31 March 2013 28
Presented in the statement of financial position as follows:
31 March
2013 2012
Nota £m £m
Non-current available-for-sale financial assets 27 23
Assets held for sale 38 1 1
Total 28 24

Avallable-for-sale financial assets pnmarnly comprise £28 million (2012 — £24 million) of unlisted securties The fair values of non-current available-for-
sale financial assets are approximated at cost where farr value cannot be reliably measured The farr values of current assets held for sale are based
on management's valuation of expected proceeds based on a signed share sale agreement The carnying value of the available-for-gale financial

assets are denominated in the following currencies

31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

US dollar {Note a) 18 14
Stering 8 8
Euro 2 2
Total 28 24

(a) US dollar includes £1 million {2012 - £1 million} of assets classified as held for sale in current assets
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19 Financial instruments by category

Sat out below 15 a companson by category of carrying values and farr values of all of the Group’s financial assets and financial habilities as at

31 March 2013 and 3t March 2012

31 March 2013
Denvatives Total
Amortised in a hedging Held for Available- carrying
cost relationship trading for-sale value Fair value
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 18 - - - 27 27 27
Trade and cthar receivables 23 372 - - - 372 372
Cash and cash equivalents 33 379 - - - 379 379
Dervative financial nstruments — assets 20 - 56 84 - 140 140
Borrowings 28 (896) - - - (896) {946}
Denvative financial instruments — habilibes 20 - {17) (64) - {81) (81)
Trade and other payables 27 (382) - - - (382) {382
Total {527) 39 20 27 {441) {491)
31 March 2012
Denvatives Total
Amortised In a hedging Held for Avallable- carrying
cost relatoonship trading for-sale value Far value
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Avalable-for-sale finangial assets 18 - - - 23 23 23
Trade and other receivables 23 323 - - - 323 323
Cash and cash eguivalents 33 424 - - - 424 424
Dervative financial instruments — assets 20 - 80 77 - 137 137
Borrowings 28 (946) - - - (946) (988)
Denvatve financial instruments = labilities 20 - 17 (96) - (113) 113
Trade and othar payables 27 {378) - - - (378) (378)
Total (577) 43 (19 23 {(530)] {572)

Trade and other recevables presented above excludes £14 million (2012 — £11 milion) relating to prepayments
Trade and other payables presented above excludes £3 million {2012 — £8 million) relating to social secunity

Included In borrowings are other tems in a hedging relationship which are held at amortised cost, with a far value adjustment applied, as they are

in afar value hedge
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19 Financial instruments by category continued

Fair value hierarchy

Set out below 1s how the Group's financial instrumenits measured at far valug, fit within the following far value hierarchy

- quoted pnces (unadjusted) In actve markets for Identical assets or labilties (levet 1),
- mnputs other than quoted pnces included within leve! 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, ether directly or indrrectly {leval 2),
- Inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data (level 3)

The following tables llustrate the Group's financial assets and labities measured at fair value at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012

31 March 2013
Leavel 1 Lovel 2 Leveol 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
Assets at fair value
Avallabla-for-sale financral assets 18 - - 27 27
Dervative financial nstruments
— currency swaps 20 - 2 - 2
—interast rate swaps 20 - 59 59
- forward foreign exchange contracts 20 - 1 - 1
- commodity pricing contracts 20 " 14 53 78
Assets at fair value 11 76 80 1687
Liabilities at fair value
Dervative financial instruments
—currency swaps 20 - (13) - {13)
— interest rate swaps 20 - (10) - (10)
— forward foraign exchange contracts 20 - {2) - 2)
—commodity prcing contracts 20 (21) {14) {21) (56)
Liabilities at fair value {21) (39) (21) (81}
31 March 2012
Level 1 Levei 2 tevel 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
Assets at falr value
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 18 - - 23 23
Dervative financial instruments
— CUITency swaps 20 - 16 - 16
- interest rate swaps 20 - 61 - 61
- forward foreign exchange contracts 20 - 2 - 2
- commodity prcing contracts 20 23 13 22 58
Assets at fair value 23 92 a5 1680
Liabilities at fair value
Dervative financial instruments
— currency swaps 20 - (40) - {40)
— Intarest rate swaps 20 - (13) - (13)
—forward foreign exchange contracts 20 - 4} - §)]
- commodity pncing contracts 20 (34) (3) (22) (59)
Liabilities at fair value (34) {57) (22) {113)
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19 Financial instruments by category continued

Level 1 financial Instruments

The farr value of financial Instruments traded n active markets (commodity futures) 1s based on quoted market prices at the statement of financial
position date A market s regarded as active If quoted pnces are readily and regularly avalable from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and thase prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis

Level 2 financial iInstruments

The farr values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps, commodity pricing
contracts and forward foreign exchange contracts) are determined by using valuation technigques  These valuation technigues maximise the use
of observable market data where it 1s available and rely as litile as possible on entity-specific estimates

The fair value of Interest rate swaps, currency swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts 1s calculated as the present vatue of the future cash
flows based on observable inputs drawn from interest yield curves sourced from a reputable third-party source

Level 3 financial instruments

The far valus of financial instruments 1s based on unobservable INputs that are supported by Iittle or no market activity at the statement of financial
position date These inputs generally reflect the entity’s own assumptions about how a market participant would reasonably be expected to
determine the price of a financial iInstrument

For commadity pricing contracts, in evaluating the significance of farr value inputs, the Group generally classifies assets or labilities as level 3 when
thelr farr value 1s determined using unobservable inputs that individually, or when aggregatad with other unobservable Inputs represent more than
10% of the far value of the observable inputs of the assets or liabilities

Available-for-sale financial assets which are analysed at level 3 primartly represent investments in unlisted securities The fair values of the unlisted
securities are pnncipally approximated at cost Values are adjusted for permanent impairments and farr value movements as disclosed in Nota 18

For financial instruments in level 3, the Group doas not consider that changes to inputs to reasonable alternatives would have a matenal impact
on the Income statement or equity

The following table reconciles the movement in the Group's financial Instrurments classified in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Commodity Commodity
prcing pncing Avallable-
centracts contract for-saie
—assets — hatnites assets Total
tm £m Em £m
At 1 Apri 2011 14 (14} 19 19
Total gains or losses
- in operating profit 22 (22) - -
- In cther comprehensive Income - - {1) 1
Purchases - - 5] 6
Settlements {14) 14 {1) 1)
At 31 March 2012 22 22) 23 23
Total gains or 10sses
- In operating profit 53 21 - 32
—In other comprehensive INGome - - 1 {1)
Purchases - - 4 4
Settlements 22) 22 1 1
At 31 March 2013 53 (21) 27 59
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contnued

20 Derwvative financial instruments

31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Assets Liabiihes Agsets Liabities
£m £m £m £m
Non-current derivative financial instruments used
to manage the Group’s net debt profile
Currency swaps
- net investment hedgss 2 (13) 2 [(3)]
Interest rate swaps
- farr value hedges 45 - 44 -
~ held for trading 7 {8) 1 (11
54 (21) 57 (19}
Current derivative financial mstruments used
to manage the Group's net debt profile
Currency swaps
—accrued interest - - 4 @
— held for trading - - 10 (30)
Interest rate swaps
—accrued interest 7 (2) 8 2
7 2) 20 34

Total dervative financial mstruments used
to manage the Group’s net debt profile 61 {23) 77 {53)

Other current derivative financial instruments

Forward foreign exchange contracts

- cash flow hedges 1 {2) 2 {

Commoedity pricing contracts

- cash flow hedges 1 - 2 {4)
— held for trading 77 (56) 56 {55}
79 {58) 60 ©0
Total other derivative financial mstruments 79 {58) 60 (B0)
Total derivative financial mstruments 140 {81) 137 (113)
Presented In the statement of financial position as follows
Non-current dervative financial instruments 54 (21) 57 (18}
Current dervative financial Instruments 86 (60) 80 94
140 (81) 137 {113}

The ineffective portion recognised in operating profit that anses from ¢ash flow hadges amounts to a £1 millon gan (2012 — £nil}
The ineffective portion recogrised in gparating profit that anses from net Investment hedges amounts to £nil (2012 — £nil)
The ineffective portien recognised in net finance expense that anses from far value hedges amounts to a £1 milion gan (2012 - £2 milion gan)

Cash flow hedges
The Group employs forward foreign exchange contracts and commodity pricing contracts to hedgs cash flow nsk associated with forecast
transactions The notienal principal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are as follows

31 March

2013 2012

£fm £m

Euro b 5
US dollar {386) {36)
Sterling - 1
Singapore dollar 32 a
Other 2 2

Gans and losses recognised in the hedging reserve in equity (Note 25) on forward foreign exchange and commodity pricing contracts as of
31 March 2013 will be released to the ncome statement at vanous dates up to 12 months from the statement of financial position date
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20 Denvative financial instruments continued

Fair value hedges

The Group employs interest rate swap contracts to hedge interest rate nsks associated with its borrowings  The notional prncipal amounts of the
outstanding interest rate swap contracts apphed in farr value hedging relationstups as of 31 March 2013 were £384 million (2012 — £353 million)

Net investment hedges

The Group employs currency swap contracts to hedge the currency risk associated with its net Investments in subsicianes located pnmarly in the
USA and Europe The notional pnncipal amounts of the outstanding currency swap contracts applied In net invastment hedging relationships as of
31 March 2013 were £158 million (31 March 2012 — £152 mifion) Within net nvestment hedging losses, a far value loss of £5 millon (2012 - £4 milion
gain) on transtation of the currency swap contracts to pounds sterling at the statement of financial posttion date was recogrised in the translation
reserve in shareholders’ equrty {(Note 25)

In addrtion, at 31 March 2013, of the Group's borrowings, a total of £495 million (2012 — £369 million} Is designated as hedges of the net investments
In overseas subsidianes

Debt-related dervatives held for trading
The notional amounts of the cutstanding currency swap contracts not designated within hedge retabonships as at 31 March 2013 were €nil million
(2012 ~ £321 million)

Soma of the Group's Interest rate swap contracts hedge the Group's exposure to Interest rate nsk, but do not qualify for hedge accounting The
notional amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts not designated within hedge refationships as of 31 March 2013 were £231 million
(2012 - £219 million)

Trading contracts
Commodity pricing contracts held for trading relate to the Group’s commeodity trading activities which are undertaken for the purposes of supporting
underlying operations

21 Financial nsk factors

Management of financial risk

The key financial nsks faced by the Group are credit nisk, kquidity nsk, and markst nsks, which include intarest rate rigk, foreign exchange nsk and

certain commodity pnce risks The Board of Tate & Lyle PLC regularly reviews these nisks and approves wnttan polcies covenng the use of financial |
instruments to manage these nsks and sets overall nsk kmits The derivative financial instruments approvad by the Board to manage financial nsks

Include swaps, both Interest rate and currency, swaptions, caps, forward rate agreements, foreign exchange and commodity forward contracts and

options, and commodity futures

The Chief Financial Officer retains the overall responsibility for management of financial nsk for the Group Most of the Group's financing, interest rate
and foreign exchange nsk are managed through the Group treasury company, Tate & Lyle Internationat Finance PLC, whose operations are controlled
by its board The treasury company 1s chaired by the Chief Financial Officer and has other board members who are independent of the treasury
function Group interest rate and currency exposures are concentrated erther in the treasury company or in appropnate holding companies through
market-related transactions with Group subsidiares Tate & Lyle International Finance PLC arranges funding and manages interest rate, foreign
exchange and bank counterparty nsks within imits approved by the Board of Tate & Lyla PLC

Commodity price nsks are managed through divisional commodity trading functions in the USA and Europe These functions are controlled by
disional management who are responsible for ratifying general strategy and overseeing performance on a monthly basis Commoedity price
contracts are categorsed as being held either for trading or for hedging price exposures Commodity contracts held for trading withan the Group
are imited, confined only to trghtly controlled areas within corn pricing

Market risks \
Forelgn exchange management |
Tate & Lyle operates internationally and I1s exposed to foreign exchange nsks ansing from commercial transactions (transaction exposure), and from |
recognised assets, labilittes and investments in overseas operations {translation exposure)

Transaction exposure

The Group's policy requires subsidiaries to hedge transactional currency exposures against their functional currency once the transaction s
committed or heghly probable, mainly through the use of farward foreign exchange contracts The amounts recognised in equity from denvative
financial Instruments designated as cash flow hedges are released to the Income statement and offset aganst the movementn undertying
transactions anly when the forecast transacticns affect the incoma statement

Translation exposure

The Group manages the foreign exchange exposure to net Investments in overseas operations, particularly in the USA and Europe, by maintaining
a percentage of net debt in US dallars and eurc to mitigate the effect of these nsks This 1s achieved by borrowing principally in US dollars and euro,
which prowide a partial match for the Group's major foreign curency assets The Group also manages its forergn exchange exposure to net
investments in overseas operations through the use of currency swap contracts The amount deferred in equity from dervative financial instruments
designated as net investment hedges 15 offset aganst the foreign currency translation effect of the net iInvestment In overseas operations, and 15
releassd to the Income statement upon disposal of those iInvestments

SJUBWISIE}S [EIdUBULY

A weakening of the US doftar and eurc aganst sterling would result In exchange gains on net debt denominated in these currencres which would be
offset against the losses on the underying foreign currency assets At the year end, net debt amounting to £479 million (2012 — £476 million) was held
In the following currencies net borrowings of US dollars 108% (2012 - 1139, euro 3% (2012 - nil%), net deposits of pounds sterfing 10% (2012 — 8%
and other currencies 1% (2012 - 5%) The Group's Interest cost through the Income statement 1s impacted by changes in the relevant exchange rates
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

21 Financial risk factors continued
Tha following table illustrates only the Group’s sensritivity to the flugtuation of the major currencies on its financial assets and liabilities, as defined and

sat out in Note 19

31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Income Income
statement Equity statement Equrty
—f+2m —f+Em —/+Em —+m
Sterling/US dollar 10% change - 48 1 54
Sterling/suro 10% change - B - 6

Interest rate management

The Group has an exposure to Interest rate nsk, ansing principalty from changes in US dollar, sterling and euro interest rates  This risk 1Is managed
by fang or capping porhions of debt using Interest rate denvatives to achieve a target level of fixed/floating rate net debt, which aims to optimise
net finance expense and reduce volatikty in reported earnings The Group's policy 1s that between 30% and 75% of Group net debt (excluding
the Group's share of joint venture net debt) 1s fixed or capped {excluding out-of-the-money caps) for more than one year and that no interest

rates are fixed for more than 12 years At 31 March 2013, the longest tarm of any fixed rate debt held by the Group was until November 2019
{2012 — November 2019) The proportion of net debt at 31 March 2013 {excluding the Group's share of joint-venture net debt) that was fixed or

capped for more than one year was 84% {2012 - 56%)

The Group considers a 100 basis point change in interest rates a reasonably possible change except where rates are less than 100 basts points
In these Instances it 1s assumed that the interest rates increase by 100 basis points and decrease to zero for the purpose of performing the
sensitivity analysis The impact is calculated with reference to the gross debt and cash held as at 31 March 2013 assuming that other vanables remain

unchanged

As at 31 March 2013 if interest rates increase by 100 basis points, the Group’s profit before tax will decrease by £1 million {2012 = no impact) If
interest rates decrease by 100 basis points, or less where applicable, Group profit before tax will increase by £1 mullion (2012 — £1 millon increase)

Price nsk management

Tate & Lyle participates mamnly in four markets food and beverage, industnal ingredients, pharmaceutical and personal care, and animal feed Food
and beverage and industnal ingredients are the most significant All ingredients are produced from renewable creps, predominantly corn {maize)

Tate & Lyle 1s exposed to movements in the future prices of commaodities in these domestic and mtemational markets where the Group buys and sells
corn and energy for production Commodity futures, forwards and options are used where available to hedge inventories and the costs of raw
matenals for unpriced and prospactive contracts not coverad by forward product sales In most cases, these hedging contracts mature within one

year and are either traded ©n recognised exchanges or over the counter

The table below tlustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s commodity pncing contracts as at 31 March to the price movement of commodities

31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Income Income
statement Equity statement Equity
—/+&m ~/+Em —/+Em —/+Em
Corn 50% change 3] | 3] -

The majorty of the Group’s commodity pricing contracts are held for trading and changes in mark-to-market values of these contracts are taken
directly into the ncome statement Amounts deferred in equity from commeaodity pncing contracts desighated as cash flow hedges are released
to the income statement and offset against the movernent In undertying transactions when they occur

Credit sk management

Counterparty credit nsk anses from the placing of deposits and entering into derrvative financial instrument contracts with banks and financial
institutions, as well as credit exposures inherent within the Group’s outstanding recelvables

The Group manages credit nsk by entering into financial Instrument contracts only with highly credit-rated authorised counterparties which are

reviewed and approved annually by the Board

The Group has Board approved maximum counterparty exposure mits for specified banks and financial institutions based on the long-term credit
ratings of Standard & Poor's and Moody’s (typically single A long-term credit ratings or higher) Trading imits assigned to commercial customers are
based on ratings from Dun & Bradstreet and Credit Risk Monitor In cases where published financial ratings are not availlable or nconclusive, credit
apphication, reference checking, and obtaining of customers’ confidential financial informaton such as hquidity and turnover ratio, are required o

evaluate customers’ credit worthiness

Counterparties’ positions are monitored on a regular basis to ensure that they are within the approved Iimits and there are no significant

concentrations of credit nisks

The Group considers its maximum exposure to credit nsk at the balance sheet date I1s as follows

31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 379 424
Trade and other raceivables 372 323
Derrvative finangial Instruments — assets 140 137
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 27 23
Held for sale assets 1 51
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21 Financial nsk factors continued

The Group's trade recevables are short term in nature and largely compnse amounts receivable from business customers Concentrations of cradit
risk with respect to trade recenables are limited due to the Group's having a number of key quality customers and a customer base which Is largs,
unrelated and internationally dispersed

Liquidrnty risk management

The Group manages its exposure to liquidity nsk and ensures maximum flexibility iIn meeting changing business needs, by maintaining access to

a wide range of funding sources, including caprtal markets and bank borrowings Capital market 1ssues outstanding at 31 March 2013 include the
US$500 million 5 00% 144A bond maturing in Novembsr 2014, the US$250 miflion 6 625% 144A bond matunng in June 2016, and the £200 milion
6 75% bond matunng i Novamber 2019

The Group ensures that it has sufficient undrawn committed bank facilities te provide iguidity back-up to cover its funding requirements for the
foreseeable future The Group has a core committed bank facility of US$B00 million which matures in Juna 2016 This facility 1s unsecured and
contains common financial covenants for Tate & Lyle and rts subsidiary companies that the pre-exceptional and amortisation interest cover ratio
should not be less than 2 5 times and the multiple of net debt to EBITDA, as defined in our financial covenants, should not be greater than 3 5 tmes

The Group monitors compliance against all its financial obligations and it 1s Group policy to manage the consolidated statement of financial position
so as to operate well within these covenanted restnctions In both the current and comparative reporting period, the Group complied wath its financial
covenants at all measurement points The majonty of the Group's bomrowings are raised through the Group treasury company, Tate & Lyle
International Finance PLC, and are then on-lent to the business units on an arm's length basis

Current Group policy 15 to ensure that, after subtracting the total of undrawn committed facilites, no more than 10% of gross debt matures within 12
months and at least 35% has a maturty of more than 2 5 years At 31 March 2013, after subtracting total undrawn committed facilities, there was no
debt matuning within two and a half years {2012 — none) The average matunty of the Group’s gross debt was 4 6 years (2012 — 4 O years) At the year
end the Group held cash and cash equivalents of £379 million (2012 - £424 milkon) and had committed facisties of £527 mullion {2012 — £500 million)
of which £527 mullion {2012 - £500 milion} was undrawn These resources are maintained to provide iquidity back-up and to meet the projected
maximurm cash outflow from debt repayment, capital expenditure and seasonal working capital needs foreseen for at least a year into the future at
any one tme

The 1able below analyses the Group’s non-dervative financial kabiliies and denvative assets and lzbihties based on the rematning pertod at the
staternent of financial position date to the contractual matunty date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash fiows

31 March 2013

<1 year 1-5 years >S5 years
Liquidity analysis £m £m £Em
Borrowings including finance leasas {n (518) W
Interest on borrowings (3] (99) {(30)
Trade and other payables (382) 3 -
Danvative contracts
- receipts 23 21 -
- payments (80) (251) -
Commodity contracts (a4) 3) -
31 March 2012
<1 year 1~5 years > S years
Liquidity anatysis £m £m £m
Borrowings including finance leases (142) {431) (273
Interest on borrowings {46) {(122) (a4)
Trade and other payables (382) “ -
Derwvative contracts
- recaipts 693 313 -
- payments (699} {282) -
Commodity contracts 21 - -

Included In borrowings are £2,394,000 of 6 5% cumulative preferance shares Only one year’s worth of interest payable on these cumulative
preference shares 1s iIncluded in the less than one year category above

Interest on borrowings 1s calculated based on borrowings held at year end without taking into account future 1ssuss  Floating-rate mnterest is
calculated using forward interest rates denved from interest rate yield curves as at year end

Dervative contracts Include currency swaps, forward exchange contracts and interest rate swaps All commodity prncing contracts such as options
and futuras are shown separately under commodity coniracts

Commodty contracts include only net settied commodity dervative contracts and gross settied commodity purchase contracts with negatve far
values Purchase contracts outflows represent actual contractual cash flows under the purchase contracts and not therr far values Cash outfiows
from the purchase contracts are offset by cash inflows receved from sale contracts, however, these inflows are not ncluded as part of this analysis

Financial assets and habities denominated in currencies other than pounds sterling are converted to pounds sterling using year end exchange rates

SIUBIOIR}S [RIDUBY|Y
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21 Financial risk factors continued

Capntal nsk management

The Group’s pnmary objectives In managing Its capitai are to safeguard the business as a going concern, 1o maintain a progressive dvidend policy,
1o maintan sufficient financral flexbility to undertake ts INvestment plans, to retain as a mnimum an mvestment grade credit rating which enables
consistent access to debt caprtal markets, and to optimise capital structure in order to reduce the cost of capital The Group's financial profile and
level of financial nsk 1s assessed on a regular basis in the ight of changes to the economic conditions, business environment, the Group's business
profile and the nsk characteristics of its businesses

Tate & Lyle has contractual relationships with Moody's and Standard and Poor's {(S&F) for the prowision of credit ratings, and 1t 15 the Group's policy
to keep them informed of all major developments At 31 March 20H3, the long-term cradt rating from Moody's was Baa? (stable outiook) and from
S&P was BBB (stable outlook) The Group 1s committed to maintaining investment grade credit ratings

The Group regards its total capital as follows

31 March

2013 2012

Note £m £m

Net debt 34 479 476
Total shareholders’ equity 1036 1058
Total capital 1515 1534

The Board has set two ongoing key performance indicators (KPls} to measure the Group's financial strength The target levels for these financial KPls
are that the ratio of net debt/EBITDA should not exceed two times and interest cover should exceed five times These ratros are calculated on the same
basis as the external financial covenants noted above The ratios for these KPls for the financial years ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 are

31 March

2013 2012

timas times

Net debt/EBITDA 10 11

interest cover 111 111
22 Inventories

31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Raw materials and consumables 267 256

Work in progress 21 23

Finished goods 222 i

Total 510 450

Fiished goods inventones of £5 million {2012 - £4 millon) are carned at realisable value, this baing kower than cost Inventenes of £164 milion
(2012 — £175 million) are carned at market value Dunng the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group did not recognise a net iImpairment charge against
inventonies (2012 — £1 milhon)
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23 Trade and other receivables

31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Non-current trade and other receivables
Other receivables 3 2
Total 3 2
31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Current trade and other receivables
Trade receivables 340 271
Less provision for impairment of recewvables {10} {7}
Trade recevables — net 330 264
Prepayments and accrued income 14 11
Margin deposits 18 36
Other recevables 21 21
Total : 383 332

The farr values of the non-current trade and other receivables are not matenally different from ther carying values The farr values of the current trade
and cther receivables are equivalent to their carrying values due to being short term In nature

There 1s imited credit nsk with respect to trade receivables, as the Group has a number of key quality customers and a large number of internationally
dispersed customers The carrying value of trade and other recervables, except prepayments, represents the Group's maximum credit exposure

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies

31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

US dollar 222 205

Euro 95 77

Steriing 1 13

Other 58 39

Total 386 334
Provision for impairment of receivables

31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

At 1 Apnl ] {19)

Charge for the year 3) 0]

Transfer to held for sale - 14

Exchange = )]

At 31 March (10) {7

The creation of prowisions for iImpaired receivables has been included in the iIncome statement

The Group recognised a loss of £3 million {2012 — £1 midlion) for mpairment of 1ts trade recevables duning the year The loss Is from both continuing

£1 milion, 2012 - £1 milien) and discontinued operations [£2 million, 2012 - £nil) and has been included in operating profit in the income statement
(Note 6)

As at 31 March 2013, trade recenvables of £31 mithion (2012 - £35 million) werg past due but not impaired The trade receivables not past dus nor
impaired are considered recoverable and of good credit qualty During the year, £nil (2012 - £14 millian) of trade recewvables have been reclassified
to held for sale {Note 38)

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows

31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Up to 30 days past due 28 N
1-3 months past due 3 4
Total 31 35

SjUaWelB]S [RIDUEUI
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24 Share capital and share premium

Ordinary Share
share capital premium Total
£m £m £m
At 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 | 117 | 408 | 523

Ordinary shares carry the nght to participate in dividends and each share entitles the holder to one vote on matters requiring shareholder approval

Allotted, called up and fully paid equity share capital

Year to 31 March 2013 Yoear to 31 March 2012

Shares £m Shares £m

At 1 Apnl 468 160 519 117 | 468111 340 17
Allotted under share option schemes 32381 - 49 179 -
At 31 March 468 192 900 117 | 488160519 117

Treasury shares and shares held in ESOP trust
As at 31 March 2013, the Group held 1,841,533 shares {2012 - 2,545,376 shares) in Treasury

During the year, 2,703,843 shares (2012 - 379,952 shares) were released from Treasury 1o satisfy share options exercised

During the year, the Company repurchased 2,000,000 shares {2012 — 2,750,000 shares) to be held in Treasury for £13 milien (2012 — £19 miltion)
to satisfy share options granted to employees under the Group's share option schemes The shares repurchased represent 0 4% of the Company’s
called up share capital at 31 March 2013 (2012 - 0 6%) and had a nominal value of £0 5 millon {2012 - £0 7 million)

The shares held in Treasury at 31 March 2013 reprasented 0 4% (2012 — 0 5%) of the Company's share capital at the year end, and have a nominal
value of less than £0 & millon {2012 — £0 6 mullion}

As at 31 March 2013, the Group held 2,571,642 shares (2012 — 1,250,182 shares) 1n an ESOP trust
Durtng the year, 178,540 shares (2012 - 1,463,512 sharos) were released from the ESOP trust to satisfy share options exercised

During the year, the Company repurchased 1,500,000 shares to be held in the ESOP trust (2012 - nil} for £10 million to satisfy share options granted
to employees under the Group's share option schemes The shares repurchased reprasent 0 3% of the Company's called up share capital at
31 March 2013 (2012 - nil) and had a nominal value of £3 4 milion

The shares held inthe ESOP trust at 31 March 2013 represent O 5% (2012 — 0 3%) of the Company's share capital at year end, have a nominal value
of £0 6m (2012 - £0 3m) and a market value of 850 Op per share (2012 — 705 Op per shareg)

Analysis of ordinary shareholders
31 March 2013

Number of
Number of shares of 25p each holdings % Total %
Up to 500 4720 308 1243080 03
501 -1 000 3847 251 3018077 06
1001-1800 1979 129 2 468 707 08§
1501 -2000 1308 85 2361 474 05
2001-5000 2070 135 6371475 13
5001 -10000 512 33 3618675 08
10 001 - 200 000 634 41 32 163 696 69
200 001 - 500 000 121 o8 39772005 85
Above 500 000 151 10 37717571 808
Total 15 342 1000 | 468 192900 1000

100
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25 Other reserves
All other
Hedging  Transiaton reserves
reserve resarve {Note a) Total
£m £m £m £m

At 1 Apnl 2011 7 58 110 175
Cash flow hedges
- far value losses in the year 2 - - @
- reclassified and reported in the iIncome statement during the year 3) - - [1¢)]
Loss on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets - - ] (1)
Currency transiation differences
- net Investment hedging gains i the year - 3 - 3
Net exchange differences on consolidation - (33) - (33)
ltems transferred to the iIncome statement on disposal - - {1 {1
At 31 March 2012 2 28 98 128
Cash flow hedges
- farr value losses in the year )] - ~ )]
- reclassified and reported in the iIncome statement dunng the year 4 - - 4
—tax effect of the above movements 1) - - (1)
Loss on revaluation of avallable-for-sale financial assets - - (1) (1}
Currency translation differences
- netinvestment hedging losses In the year - (30) - {30)
Net exchange differences on consolidation - a6 - 56
items transfarred to the Income statement on disposal - (14) - (14}
At 31 March 2013 2 40 a7 139

(@ Al other reserves include the merger reserve and the avallable-for-saie farr value reserve, both of which are non-distnbutable

26 Share-based payments

During the vear to 31 March 2013, varnious equity-settied share-based payment arrangements existed, as set out below The grants made during the

year and the prior year were as follows

Sharesave Plan
Executive Deferred Group bonus
Performance shareopton  bonus share  plan—deferred  Duration
Type of amangement share plan scheme plan benefit award v ysars
Timing of grant Br-annually (Note a) Annualty as Annually | Annually in
applicable in June | December
in May
Number of options/shares granted 2673024 - - 8368 3 - 23768
In year to 31 March 2013 5 13 442
Number of options/shares granted 2937 428 - - 286710 3 - 26273
In year to 31 March 2012 5 - 7823
Farr value per share for 2013 grant (pence) 619 - - 697 3 - 198
5 - 208
Fair value per share for 2012 grant (pence) 542 - - 855 3 - 126
5 - 141
Valuation basis Monte Carlo Binomial | Monte Carlo Contractual Black- Black-
Lattice Scholes Scholes
Contractual life 10 years 10 years 3 years 2 years ISyears | 3/5vyears
Vesting conditions {Note b) {Note ¢) (Note d} {Note ) {Note g} {Note g)

@ Thelast grant under this scheme was made in June 2004

(b) For the yaar ended 31 March 2013, exercise of 2,673,024 shares 1s dependsnt 50% on adjusted diluted earmings per share and 50% on return

on cap#al employed

Far the year ended 31 March 2012, exercise of 2,937,428 shares 1s dependent 50% on adjusted diluted earnings per share and 50% on retum

on capital employed

[c) Exercise s dependent on earnings per share performance relative to inflation over a three-year perod following grant Participants are not

sntitied to dvidends prior to the exercise of options

SUBWSIRS [BIDUBLY
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26 Share-based payments continued

{d) Executives have previously had the opportunity to defer up to 50% of their annual cash bonus (after deduction of tax, national Insurance or other
social secunty payments) and Invest the amount deferred in the Company's shares Subject to the satistaction of employment conditions and
a performance target over the performance penod as descnbed In (b) above, participants receved awards of matching shares based on the
number of sharas which could have been acquired from the gross bonus amount deferred by the participant During the performance period,
dvidends were paid on the deferred shares but not on matching shares This plan was suspended dunng the year ended 31 March 2009

{e) Options granted In the years to 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 were by Invitation at a 20% discount to the market pnece Options are
exercisable at the end of a three-year or five-year savings contract

{f) The deferred benefit award will be exercisable at the end of a two-year penod dependent on contractual obhigations

The Group recognised total expenses before tax of £13 millon (2012 — £11 mullion) related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions

during the year

Details of the movements for equity-settled share option schemes during the year to 31 March were as follows
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Weighted Waighted
average average
axercise axersise
Shares price Shares prce
number pence nurmber pence
Qutstanding at 1 April 11270273 16 1t 211 368 32
Granted 2718602 8 3268234 B
Exarcised (2914 764) 29 (1892 643) a9
Lapsed (235 996) 7 (1 316 686) 13
Qutstanding at 31 March 10838 115 10 11 270 273 16

The weighted average Tate & Lyle PLC share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was 654p (2012 - 647p)
At 31 March 2013 1,875,237 (2012 - 862,885) of the outstanding options were exercisable at a weighted average exercise pnce of 29p (2012 — 154p)
A detailled breakdown of the range of exercise prices for ophons outstanding at 31 March s shown in the table below

Year to 31 March 2013 Year to 31 March 2012

Waeighted Weighted Waighted Waighted

average average average average

Number remaining exercise Number remarning axencisa

outstanding contractual price outstanding contractual prce

at end of year  life in months pence at end of year Irfa in months pance

At ril cost 10573 265 49.1 - 10788 721 473 -
£001 0 €199 - - - - - -
£2001t0£3 99 167 358 14.6 326 403 619 221 333
240010 £799 97 492 376 547 77933 374 494
Total 10838 115 48.4 10 11270273 463 18

The fair valuse of grants is measured using the valuation technique that 1s considered to be the most appropriate to value each class of grant
Thess includse Binormial Lathce models, Black-Scholes calcutations and Monte Carlo simulations These valuations take into account factors such
as non-transferability, exercise restnctions and behavioural considerations Key assumptions are detaled below

Sharesave

Performance Plan

At 31 March 2013 share plan December
Expacted volatility n/a 35%
Expected life dyears | 3 3/5 3years
Risk-fres rate -| 0851 20%
Expected dividend yeld 4 0% 40%
Forfeiture rate % 10%
Correlation with comparators n/a n/a
Volatiity of comparators nf/a nfa
Expectatons of meeting performance critena B80%" nfa
Waighted average markst price at date of grant {pence) 679 758

1 Relating to grants made durning the year
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26 Share-based payments continued

Sharesave
Performance Plan
At 31 March 2012 share plan December
Expected volatility na 35%
Expected hfe 3years | 32/52years
Risk-free rate - 185/2 85%
Expected dividend yield 40% 43%
Forfaitura rate 0% 10%
Correlation with comparators na n/a
Volatihty of comparators n/a n/a
Expactations of meeting perfermance critena 80%' n/a
Waighted average market price at date of grant (pence) 583 552
1 Relating to grants made dunng the year
The expected volatiity 1s based on the Company’s historical volatiity over the three-year peniod prior to each award date
27 Trade and other payables
31 March
2013 202
Em £m
Non-current payables
Accruals and deferred income 3 4
Total 3 4
31 March
2013 202
£m £m
Current payables .
Trada payahbles 264 256
Social security 3 8
Accruals and deferred ncome 79 81
Other payables 36 37
Total 382 382
28 Borrowings
Non-current borrowings
3t March
2013 2012
£m £m
Unsecured borrowings
2,394,000 6 5% cumulative preference sharas of £1 each (Note a) 2 2
Industnal Revenue Bonds 2016-2036 {US$77.655,000, 2012 - US$92,000,000) 51 57
5 0% Guaranteed Notes 2014 (US$500,000,000) 34 329 m
6 625% Guaranteed Notes 2016 {US$250,000,000) 177 170 E
6 75% Guaranteed Notes 2019 (£200,000,000) 224 218 a,
795 7 .
Bank loans §
Vanable unsecured loans (US$) 5 7 g
5 7 2
Other borrowings @
QObligations under finance leases 21 22
21 22
Total non-current borrowings 821 805
8 Onareturn of capital on a winding-up, the holders of 6 5% cumulative preference shares shall be entitled to £1 par share, in preference to
all other classes of shareholders Holders of these shares are entrtied to vote at mesetings, except on the following matters any question as
to the disposal of the surplus profits after the dividend on these shares has been provided for, the election of directors, therr rarnuneration,
any agresment between the directors and the Company, or the alteration of the Articles of Association dealing with any such matters
Included within borrowings are £363 milion {2012 - £351 milion) of borrowings subject to farr value hedges, of which amortised cost has been
increased by £46 milion {2012 — £46 milion) in the tabie above
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28 Borrowings continued
Current borrowings

31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
6 5% Guaranteed Notes 2012 (£100,000,000) - 101
Industnal Revenue Bonds 2013 (US$14,345,000) 9 -
Unsecured bank overdrafts 8 6
Short-term unsecured loans 56 32
Obligatons under finance leases 2 2
Total current berrowings 75 141
Secured borrowings
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as tha rights to the leased asset revert to the lessor In the event of default
Fair values
Tha far values of the Group's barrowings compared with their book values are as follows
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Book value Fair value Book value Far value
£m £m Em £m
Non-current unsecurad borrowings 795 845 776 818
Non-current bank loans 5 5 7 7
Other non-current barrowings 21 21 22 22
Current borrowangs 75 75 41 141
Total 896 946 | 946 | 988

The fair value of borrowings has been determined using either guoted market prices, broker dealer quotations or discounted cash flow analysis

Interest rate risks and maturrty of borrowings
The matunty profile of the Group's non-current borrowings 1s as follows

31 March

2013 2012

£m £Em

One to two yaars 344 9
Two to five years 191 508
After five years 286 288
Total non-current barrawings 821 805

Floating rate borrowings bear interest based on relevant national LIBOR equivalents If the interest rates applicable to the Group's floating rate debt
and cash held as at 31 March 2013 nse by an average of 1% over the year to 31 March 2014, this would dacrease Group profit before tax by
approximatety £1 million (2012 — £nil)

Taking into account the Group’s interest rate and cross currency swap contracts, the effective interest rates of its borrowings are as follows

31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

2,394,000 6 5% cumulative preferance shares of £1 each 8.5% 6 5%
Industnal Revenue Bonds 2013-2038 (US$92,000,000) 02% 04%
6 5% Guarantesd Notes 2012 (£100,000,000) - 33%
5 0% Guaranteed Notes 2014 {US$500,000,000) 29% 30%
6 625% Guaranteed Notes 2016 (US$250,000,000) 4 2% 43%
6 75% Guarantesd Notes 2019 {£200,000,000) 4 8% 49%

Short-term loans and overdrafts
Current short-term locans mature within the next 12 months and overdrafts are repayable on demand Both short-term loans and bank overdrafts are
arranged at floating rates of interest and expose the Group to cash flow intergst rate nisk

Credit facilities and arrangements
Tate & Lyle Intarnational Finance PLC holds a US$800 milhon five year committed multi-currency club facility with a core of highly-rated banks that
was arranged in July 2011

As at 31 March 2013, this committed facility remains undrawn The facility has a value of £527 million (2012 — £500 mithon) and maturas in June 2016
This facility incurs commitment fees at markst rates prevalling when the facility was arranged The facility may only be withdrawn in the event of
specified events of default In addition, the Group has substantal uncommitted facities
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28 Borrowings continued
Finance lease commitments
Amounts payable under finance lease commitrments are as follows

31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Present value Present value
Mintmum of mimimum Minimum of minmum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments paymants
£m £m £m £m
Within one year 4 2 4 2
Between one and five years 14 " 16 12
After five years 13 10 13 10
31 23 33 24
Less future finance charges (8) (@)
Present value of minimum lease payments 23 24

29 Deferred tax

Ceferred tax 1s calculated in full on temporary differences using tax rates applicable in the junsdictions where such differences anse Movements in

deferred Income tax net (assets)/iabilities in the year are as follows

Deferred tax £m
At 1 Apnl 2011 {a4)
Chargs to the income statement 65
Credit to the statement of comprehensive income (27)
Credited directly to equity @
Exchange @
At 31 March 2012 (12)
Charge to the ncome statement 26
Charge to the statement of comprehansive income 9
Charged directly to equity 1

Exchange B
At 31 March 2013 16

Of the amounts of deferred tax charged to the iIncome statement ang other comprahensive income, a charge of £1 million {2012 — £1 million credit)
arose from changes in tax rates There was no iImpact from the iImposttion of new taxes

Deferred tax assets in respect of unutiised tax losses of £571 million {2012 — £349 million} have not been recognised to the extent that they exceed
taxable profits against which these assets may be recovered The increase in losses is the result of [osses no longer being recognised in relation to
UK deferred tax pension llabilibes that have reversed and the adjustment to submitted tax returns No unrelieved tax losses expired under current tax
legislation in the year ended 31 March 2013

The total deferred tax on unremitted eamings 18 £4 milion {2012 — £4 million} of which £nil 2012 — £nil) has been recognised The Group has not
recognised the amount as 1t 1s able to control the tming of the reversal of these temporary differences and it 1s probabie that they will not reverse
in the foreseeable future

The aggregate amount of temporary differences ansing from unremitted profits at the statement of financial position date was approximately
£4 million (2012 — £4 milion}

Other deferred tax liabilities pnncipally relate to deferred tax on acquired intangible assets
Other deferred tax assets principally relate to deferred tax on provisions
The movements in deferred tax assets and lliabilihes dunng the year are as foliows

Capital

allowances

N excass of
depraciation Other Total
Defarrad tax habities £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 201 85 29 114
Transfers between categories - (3} 3
Charged to the income statement 32 8 40
Exchange 2 (1} 3
At 31 March 2012 115 33 148
Transfers between categones - 3 3
Charged to the income statement 12 8 20
Exchange 10 8} 2
At 31 March 2013 137 30 167
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29 Deferred tax continued

Retrernent
benefit Share-based

obhgations payments Tax losses Cther Total
Deferred tax assets £m Lm £m £m £m
At 1 Aprl 2011 69 3 64 22 158
Transfers between categones - - - 3 3
{Charged)/credited to the iIncome statemnent vy} 1 20 {19) (25)
Credited/(charged) to the statement of comprehensive income 33 - {6) - 27
Credited to equrty - 2 - - 2
Exchange (1) 1 - 1 1
At 31 March 2012 74 7 78 1 180
Transfers between categones - - - @ 3)
Credrted/(charged) to the iIncome statement 22 2 {33 3 (53]
Charged to the statement of comprehensive income )] - &) (n [ie)]
Charged to equity - (1) - - U]
Exchange 7 {1 2 2 10
At 31 March 2013 100 7 42 2 151

Deterrad tax assets and habilities are offset where thare is a legally enforceabls nght of offset and there 1s an intantion to settle the balances net
As a rasult of these offsets, the deferred tax balances are presented in the statement of financial position as follows

31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Deferred tax liabilittes 24 25
Deferred tax assets {8} (37)
Total 16 (12)

30 Retirement benefit obligations

{a) Plan information

The Group maintains pansion plans for its operations throughout the world Some of thesa arrangerments are defined benefit pension schemaes with
retiremnent, disability, death and terminatton income benefits The retirement income benefits are generally a function of years of employment and final
salary The Group also mantains defined contnbution pension schemas and some fully insured pension schemes

The pnncipal schemes are funded and therr assets held in separate trustee-administered funds Tha schemes are funded In ine with local practice
and contnbutions are assessed In accordance with local independent actuanal advice The schemes operated by the Group are subject to
independent actuanal valuation at regular intervals using consistent assumptions appropriate 1o conditions prevailing in the relevant country The most
recent finalised actuaral valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligations in the man United Kingdem scheme were
carried out as at 31 March 2010 by independent actuanes As required under statutory regulations, a new valuation commenced as at 31 March 2013

The Group also mamntains defined contnbution pension schemes and some fully insured pension schemes

On 1 April 2002, the main United Kingdom scheme was closed 1o new members A defined contnbution pension scheme has been established to
provide pension bensfits 1o new United Kingdom employees From 6 Apnl 2011, the main United Kingdom Pension Scheme closed to futura accruals

Dunng the year, the trustees of the main UK scheme agreed a £347 million partal pensioner buy-in with Legal and General plc
The Group's subsidiaries in the United States provide unfunded retirement medical and lfe assurance banefits to their employees
The Group expects to contribute approximately £36 rifion to its defined benefit plans in the year to 31 March 2014

(b) Pnincipal assumptions
The prncipal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuanal vatuations were as follows

Pension benefits

Madical
Year to 31 March 2013 __Uk us Other benefits
Inflation rate 2 5/3.5% 2 5% 2.0% 25%
Expected rate of salary increases n/a 35% 2.0% n/a
Expected rats of pension increases 34% nfa 09% n/a
Discount rate 4 2% 3.9% 3.1% 3.8%
Expected return on plan assets {total) 5 2% 82% 4 5% n/a
Expected equity return on plan assets 77% 8 0% 71% n/a
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30 Retirement benefit obligations continued

Pension banefits

Madckcal
Year to 31 March 2012 UK Us Other benefits
Inflation rate 23/33% 25% 20% 25%
Expected rate of salary increases n/a 3 5% 20% n/a
Expected rate of pension Increases 33% n/a 09% n/a
Discount rate 51% 4 4% 39% 41%
Expected return on plan assets (totaf) 63% T1% 54% n/a
Expected equity return on plan assets 8 4% 80% 6 5% n/a

In accordance with the Scheme rules, both the Consumer Price Index (CPI) and Retall Pnee Index {RP) inflation measures are used to value the

Group's UK retirement benefit obligation

Expected longevity post age 65

Mortality assumptions — Year to 31 March 2013 UK us
Male aged 65 now 22 years 19 yoars
Male aged 65 in 20 years' ime 25 years 21 years
Female aged 65 now 23 years 21 years
Female aged 65 In 20 years’ time 25 years 22 years

Expected longewity post ege €5

Mortality assumptions — Year to 31 March 2012 UK Us
Male aged 65 now 22 years 19 years
Male aged 65 in 20 years’ tme 25 years 19 years
Female aged 65 now 23 years 21 years
Female aged 65 in 20 years' time 25 years 21 years

Shorter longevity assurnptions are used for members who retire on grounds of Hll-health

The expected rates of return on Indvidual catagones of plan assets are estmated by reference to (indices publshed by the relevant exchanges
The overall expected rate of return 1s calculated by weighting the individual rates in accordance with the anticipated balance in the plan’s
investment portfollo The actual rate of return on the plan assets for the year was positive 3 8% {2012 - 8 9%}, and amounted to a gain of £52 milion

(2012 - £112 mullon gar}

Medical cost trend rates are estmated at 7 0% per annum (2012 — 9 0%}, grading down o 5% by 2017 If medical cost trend rates were to INcrease

or decreasa by 1%, the effects are estimated as follows

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

£m £m £m £m

Increase/{decrease} in medical benefits current service and interest cost 1 {1) 1 {1)
Increase/({decrease} in medical benefits abligation 6 {6) 10 8)

(c) Amounts recogmised in the income statement
Pension benefits
Medical

UK us Qther Total bonefits Total

Year to 31 March 2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Current service cost charged to operating profit - 1 3 q 3 7
Interast cost 43 20 2 65 4 69
Expected return on plan assets (50) {19} {2) ) - (tall
(Credited)/charged to finance expense %) 1 - {6) 4 (2)
Total [v4] 2 3 2) 7 5

Pension benefits
Madical

UK us Other Total benefits Total

Year to 31 March 2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Current service cost charged to operating profit - 1 3 4 3 7
Interest cost 44 21 3 68 5 73
Expected return on plan assets (65) {20) (3} {78) - {78}
(Credtted)/charged to finance expense {11) 1 - (10} 5 5}
Total (1) 2 3 3] 8 2

Current service costs are presented in staff costs (Note 8), expected return on plan assets and interest cost are presented n net finance expense

(Note 10)
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30 Retirement benefit obligations continued
(d) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position

Pension benefits
UK us Qthers Total
% of % of % of % of Medical
plan plan plan plan bhenefits
At 31 March 2013 assets £m  assets €m  assels £m  assets £m W Total
Fair value of plan assets
- equities 20% 204 42% 144 % 21 26% 389 - 369
- bonds 35% 346 48% 169 47% 29 39% 544 - 544
— property and other 45% 449 10% 33 19% 12 5% 494 - 494
999 346 82 1407 -1 1407
Present value of funded obligaticns (998) {466) {79) {1539 -| (1539
Present value of unfunded chligation - {53) - (53) {80) {133)
Net asset/lability) recognised in the staterment
of financial position 1 {173) {13} (185) (80} (265)
Disclosed in the statemant of financial posttion as
- retirement benefit surplus 12 - - 12 - 12
- retirement benefit deficit {11) (173) {13} {197) {80) 277
Property and other includes the annurty purchased folfowing the partal pension buy-in which effectively covers the atfected pension membership’s
liabilties in full
Pension benefits
UK us Others Total
% of % of % of % of Medical
plan plan plan plan benefits
At 31 March 2012 assets £m  assets fm  assels £m  assets £m £m Total
Far value of plan assets
- equities 36% 359 40% 122 33% 18 37% 459 - 499
—bonds 48% 488 48% 144 47% 26 48% 658 - 658
— property and othar 16% 158 12% 36 20% i 15% 205 - 205
1005 302 55 1362 -| 1362
Present value of funded obligations (867) {422 63 {1.352) -1 (1352
Present value of unfunded obligation - {46) - (46) {104) {150)
Net asset/(llability) recogrised In the statement
of financial position 138 {(166) 8) {36) (104) {140}
Disclosed in the statement of financial position as
- retirement benefit surplus 146 - - 148 - 146
- retirement benefit deficrt (8) (166) (8) (182) {104) (286)

The plan assets do not Include any of the Group's financial mstruments, nor any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the Group

(e) Reconciliation of movement in plan assets and habilities
Pension benefits

Madical

UK us Other Total  benafits Total
Liabilities £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2011 823 408 55| 1286 97 | 1383
Total service cost - 1 3 4 3 7
Interest cost 44 21 3 68 S 73
Actuanal loss 50 B1 [+ 17 4 121
Benefits paid (50) {23) @ (75) 5) (80)
Plan participants” contributions - - 1 1 - 1
Exchange - - {3} 3) - 3)
At 31 March 2012 867 468 63| 1398 104 | 1502
Total service cost - 1 3 4 3 7
Interest cost 43 20 2 85 4 69
Actuanal loss/(gain} 134 25 8 167 {33) 134
Benefits paid an {25) 2 {74) {3) rn
Plan participants’ contributions - - 1 1 - 1
Exchange 1 30 - 31 5 36
At 31 March 2013 998 519 75| 1592 80| 1672
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30 Retirement benefit obligations continued

Pension benefits

Medical
UK us Other Total benefits Total
Assets £m £m Em Em £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2011 919 274 5% 1244 - 1244
Expected return on assets 55 20 3 78 - 78
Actuarial gan 33 2 3 34 - 34
Contributions pald by employer 48 a2 2 82 5 87
Plan participants’ contributions - - 1 1 - 1
Benefits paid (50) (23) 2 (75} (3] (80
Exchange - 1 3) 2 - 2
At 31 March 2012 1005 302 55 1362 - 1362
Expacted return on assets 50 19 2 7 - Fal
Actuarial (loss)/gain (35) 12 4 {19) - (19
Contributions paid by employer 26 20 2 48 3 5
Plan participants’ centributions - - 1 1 - 1
Benefits paid (47 (25) {2) (74) {3) {7n
Exchange - 18 - 18 - 18
At 31 March 2013 999 346 62 1407 - 1 407
(N Analysls of actuana! losses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Difference between the actual return and the expected return on plan assets 19 {34
Changes in assumptions underlying the present valua of scheme habilities 134 121
Actuarial losses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive ncome 153 87
Cumutative actuanal loss recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive incoms 341 188
Deferred tax taken directly to equity on retirement benefit obligations was £3 million charge to equity (2012 — £33 million credit to equity)
{g) History of the plans and experience adjustments
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Em £m £m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit obligation and medical bensfits 1672 15802 1383 1429 1188
Fair valus of plan assets {1407) {1362) (1 244) (1172 @75)
Net deficrt 265 140 138 257 21
Expenence adjustments on plan liabilities
—{gan} - - (12) - (18
Experiencea adjustrnents on plan asssts
—loss/{gain) 19 (34) (37} {201} 247

All expenence adiustments are recognised directly In equity, net of related tax {see the consoclidated statement of comprehensive Income)
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31 Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Restructunng
Insurance and closure Other
funds provissons provisions Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnit 201 13 35 17 65
Chargad to the iIncoms statement 2 - 4 5]
Credited to the ncome statement - (23) @ (20
Utilised In the year {4) {7} @ (15)
Exchange and other movements - 1} - {H
At 31 March 2012 11 4 13 28
Charged to tha Incoms staterment 3 2 9 14
Credited to the income statement 2 - ()] {7
Utilised in the year @ - v} @
Exchange and other movements - - 4 4
At 31 March 2013 10 6 19 35
31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Provisions are expected to be utilised as follows
—within one year 20 10
— after more than one year 15 18
Total 35 28
insurance funds represem amounts provided by the Group's captive Insurance subsidiary in respect of the expected level of iInsurance clams
These provisions are expected to be utlised within five years
The restructuring and closure provisions credit during the prior year pnmarily relates to the decision made to re-open the mothballed facility in
Mclntosh, Alabama and restart the production of sucralose This resulted in a reversal of £23 millon of obligations no longer required and was
recorded as an exceptional cradit The remaining provisions relate o other restructuring within the Group and are expectaed to ba utidised within
five years
Other provisions pnmanily relate to Group legal matters and previously disposed businesses These provisions are expected to be utiised within
five years Tha majonty of the credit to the pravision relates to the liigation with Whitefox Technologies which has been settled
The charge to the Income statement in relation to the unwinding of discounts was £nil (2012 — Enil)
32 Change in working capital
31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Increase in Inventones an (49)
Increase in recevables (38) 62
{Decrease)increase in payables (20) 18
Increase in denvative financial instruments {excluding debt-retated dernvatives) 8) {16)
Increase/{decrease) in prowisions for other labiwies and charges 4 {12
Increase in working capnal (contilgg operations) {107) (121)
33 Cash and cash equivalents
31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 223 327
Short-term bank deposits 156 119
Tatal 3re 448
Presented In the financial statements as follows
31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 379 424
Assets held for sale - 22
Total 379 446

Tha effectve interast rata on short-term deposts was § 3% {2012 ~ 1 5%}, with an average matunty of two days (2012 — 13 days)
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33 Cash and cash equivalents continued
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents are dencminated in the following currencies

31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Euro 84 215
US dollar 214 127
Sterling 80 63
Other 21 41
Total 379 446
34 Net debt
The components of the Group's net debt ars as follows
31 March
2013 2012
Notes __Ern £m
Non-current borrawings 28 (821) (805)
Current borrowings and bank overdrafts 28 {75) (141}
Debt-related derivative instrumenits 20 38 24
Cash and cash equivalents 33 a79 424
Assets held for sale — cash and cash equivalents 38 - 22
Net debt {479} (476)

Derwvative financial nstruments presented within assets and liabites in the statement of financial position of £58 milhon (2012 — £24 million) net asset
compnse net debt-related instruments of £38 milkon {2012 - £24 million) asset and net non-debt-related instruments of £21 milllon {2012 - £nil) asset

In the prior year, additional net non-debt related iInstruments of £8 million asset were Included in assets and liabilities held for sale {Note 38}

Net debt 1s denominated in the following currencies

31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Euro (12 0]
US doliar {521) (535)
Stering 49 37
Qther 5 23
Total (479) {476)
Movements in the Group's net debt are as follows
31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
At 1 Apnl (476) (a84)
Decrease In cash and cash equivalents in the year {68) (201}
Cash outflow from net decrease in borrowings a5 185
Inception of financs lease - 1y
Fair value and other movermnents 13 7
Exchange (43) 4
Increase in net debt in the year (3) (12}
At 31 March 479) @e
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35 Contingent liabilities

Trade guarantees 31 March
2013 2012

£m £m

Trade guarantees [ 2] 1

Trade guarantees have been given in the normal course of business by the Group at both 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 These are In respect
of Revenue and Customs and the Rural Payments Agency for Agncuttural Produce bonds, ECGD recourse agraements, letters of credit and tender
and performance bonds

Sale of EU Sugars

As previously announced, American Sugar Holdings (ASR) has raised a number of claims totaliing in the region of £40 million that it believes it has
under the Share and Business Sale Agreement relating to its acquisition of the Group’s EU Sugars business These claims in large part relate to the
turbulence In the supply of raw sugar to the EU duning the peried prior to closing and the increase in certatn rolling re-export commitments of the
business Some, but not all, of thase 1Issues ware considerad in the expert adjudication on the closing accounts In which, as noted in the Annual
Report 2012, the expert strongly supported Tate & Lyle's position ASR (through its subsichary TAL Sugars Limited) has now commenced formal
proceedings In respect of these claims which the Group intends to vigorously defend

Whitefox Technologies
The commercial dispute with Whitefox Technologies, which was the subject of proceedings i the Supreme Court of the State of New York in
June 2012 has been ssttled, bringing this matter to a conclusion

Other claims

The Group 15 subject to claims and tigation generally ansing in the ordinary course of its business, some of which ars for substantial amounts
All such actions are strenucusly defended but provision iIs made for habilsties that are considered likely to anse on tha basis of current information
and lsgal advice and after taking into account the Group's INsurance arrangements

Whtle there 1s always uncertainty as to the outcome of any claim or liigation, it 1s not expacted that claims and itigation existing at the statement
of financial pesition date will have a matena! adverse effect ¢n the Group's financial position

36 Commitments
Capital commitments

31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Commitments for the acquisition of intangible assets 8 10
Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment 21 21
Total 27 3

Operating lease arrangements
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its land, buildings, plant and equipment Cartain operating leasa
agreements allow for renewal at the end of the onginal term at the cption of the Group

At the statement of financial position date the Group has outstanding comsmitments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows

31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Within one year 24 3
Later than one year and no later than five years 7 79
After five years 88 95
Total 189 205

37 Acquisitions and disposals

2013

Continuing operations

Sucromiles

On 1 August 2012, the Group completed the disposal of its share In Sucromiles SA (Sucromiles), its Colombian citric acid joint venture, to its former
Joint-venture partner, Organizacion Ardila Lulle, for consideration of £20 mullion After racycling foreign exchange revaluation gaing previously held

In reserves to the income statement, an excepticnal gain on disposal of £8 million {Note 7) was recorded within continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Vietnam Sugars

On 29 June 2012, the Group compteted the sale of Vietnam Sugar to TH Milk Food Stock Company for consideration of €45 millon After racyclng
foreign exchange revaluation gains previously held In reserves to the income statement, an exceptional gain on disposal of £21 million was recorded
within discontinued operations (Note 7)

Molasses

On 20 March 2013, the Group complated the sale of land and bulldings with book valua of £2 million relating to the former Molasses business to W&R
Barnett Ltd Cash congideration totalled £7 million resulting in an exceptionat gain on disposal of £5 million recorded within discontinued operations
{Ncte 7}
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37 Acquisitions and disposals continued

EU Sugars

During the financal year, the Group also receved £2 millon i respect of a working capital setttement from its disposal of the EU Sugars business
to American Sugar Refining In the year ended 31 March 2011 No change to the loss on disposal was recorded

Other

Duning the financral year, the Group disposed of the remaining assets in the Israel Sugar business, resulting n a profit of £2 milhon This has been
offset by losses from the disposal of other assets within the Group relating to Sugar operations which are discontinued {Note 12)

The calculation of the result on disposals in the financial year, spiit between continuing and discontinued operations, are shown below
Continuing  Discontinued

operations operations Total
Em £m £m
Goodwill and intangible assets - 2 2
Property, plant and equiprment 3 20 23
Dervative financial instruments — assets - 4 4
Inventeries 9 10 19
Trade and other recevables 9 13 22
Trade and other payables (6} [1€)] (9)
Derwative financial instruments — habilities - 1] @
Cash and cash equivalents 5 22 27
Taxation - {1 W]
Total assets disposed 20 63 83
Non-controlling interests disposed - {25) (25)
Net assets disposed 20 38 58
Total consideration 20 61 81
Other tems
Disposal costs - 3 [£))
Exchange differences transferred from equity 8 B 14
Gamn on disposal 8 26 34
Reported as
Exceptonal gain within continuing operations (Note 7) 8 - 8
Operating loss within digcontinued operations - 2) @
Excepticnal gain within discontinuad operations (Note 7} - 26 26
Operating gain within discontinued operations - 2 2
8 26 34
Cash flows
Cash consideration 20 58 78
Cash disposed 5) {22 @7
Cash inflow during the year to 31 March 2013 15 36 51
m
2012 B
Continuing operations g
G C Hahn & Company o
Duning the prior year, following the exercise of a put option by Georg Hahn Familien GmbH, the Group acquired the final 5% of the 1ssued share g
capital of the business for a total consideration of £7 millon The Group has now acquired 100% of the issued share cap#al fau
Discontinued operations ]
International Sugar Trading 7
During the prior year, the Group completed the sale of its minonty holdings in the former Internaticnal Sugar Trading business n Egypt and Saud
Arabia and receved £18 millon in cash consideration After recycling revaluation gains previously held in reserves to the Income statement, the Group
recorded an exceptional gain of £11 milllon (Note 7)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

38 Assets and labilities classified as held for sale

Assets held for sale as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 are shown in the table below The assat heid for sale at 31 March 2013 relates to the Group’s

Investrment in Mitr Lao Sugar Company

Assets and habilties reported as held for sale as at 31 March 2012 compnsed of the Group's majonty share In Vietnam Sugar, its 50% sharg in
Sucromiles SA (Sucromiles), its Colombian citric acid joint venture, land and buildings relating to the former Molasses business, the investment
In Mitr Lao Sugar Company and other assets relating to the Group’s former sugar operations All of these assats and habilities with the exception
of the investment th Mitr Lao Sugar Company were disposed duning the year Further detal relating to these disposals can be found in Note 37

31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Assets
Intangible assets - 2
Property, plant and equipment - 22
Availlable-for-sale financial assets 1 1
Inventones - 25
Trade and other racevables - 15
Dertvative financial instruments - 13
Cash and cash equivalents - 22
Total assets heid for sale 1 100
Liabilrities
Trade and other payables - @
Current tax habilives - {1
Denvative financial instruments - )]
Total liabilities held for sale - {15)

39 Post balance sheet events
On 17 May 2013, the Group acquired Biovelop, an early-stage Swedish manufacturer of oat beta glucan

40 Related party disclosures
Identity of related parties

The Group has related party relationships with its subsidianes, joint ventures and associates, the Group's pension schemes and with key managemeant
being ts directors and executve officers No related party relationships with close family members of the Group's key management existed in the current

or comparative year
Subsidiaries, joint ventures and assoclates

Transactions entered into by the Company with subsidianes and between subsidianes as well as the resultant balances of recevables and payables are
elimmnated on conschdation and are not required o be disclosed The Group's share of transactions entered mto by the Company and tts subsidianes with
jort vertures and between joint ventures as well as the Group's share of the resuttant balances of recervables and payables are eliminated on consolidation
For transactions and balances with joint ventures, thera 15 an element which 1s not eliminated on consolidation relating to the external joint-venture partner
wiuch 1s required to be disclosed Transactions and balances with joint ventures are as shown balow There are no such transactions with associates

31 March

2013 2012
Continuing operations £m £m
Sales of goods and services
—to joint ventures 174 164
Purchases of goods and services
- from joint ventures 279 289
Receivablas
- due from joint venturas 15 23
Payahbles
- due to joint ventures 21 21
Financing
~lcans to joint ventures 20 13
- deposits from joint venturas 53 36

The Group had no material related party transactions containing unusual commercial termg
The Group provides guarantees in respect of banking faciities of a joint venture totaling £9 million (2012 - £10 million)

Key management
Key managemaent compensation is disclosed in Note 9
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41 Foreign exchange rates

The following exchange rates have been applied In the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidianes, joint ventures and associates

Year to 31 March

2013 2012
Average foreign exchange rates
£1=US$ 157 160
f1=€ 124 115
31 March
2013 2012
Year end foreign exchange rates
£1 =Us$ 152 160
f1=€ 118 120
42 Main subsidiaries and investments
Subsidiaries based in the United Kingdom’
Pergertage of
aquity attnbutable
Type of business to Tate & Ly'e PLC
G C Hahn and Company Limited? Blending 100
Tate & Lyle Hoidings Limited® Holding company 100
Tate & Lyle Industries Limited Holdng company 100
Tate & Lyle International Finance PLC? In-house treasury company 100
Tate & Lyls Group Services Limited Holdng company 100
Tate & Lyls Investments Limited?® Holding company 100
Tate & Lyle LLC Holding company 100

1 Regstered in England and Wales, except Tate & Lyle LLC which s registered in Delaware USA

2 Inthe pnor year, the Group acguired the final 5% 1ssued share capital of the Hahn business However due to the structure of the acquisiticn agresment the Group
has borne risks and rewards of 100% of the business Accordingly, a non-controling interest has never been recognised sinca the onginal acguisition it the 2008

financial year
3 Drrect subsidianes of Tate & Lyla PLC

SJUBLIBIR]S (RIJUBUIY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

42 Main subsidiaries and investments contnued
Subsidianes operating overseas

Percentage of
equity attnbutable
Country of incorporation or registration Company Type of business to Tate & Lyle PLC
Argentina Tate & Lyle Argentina SA Ceareal sweeteners and starches, 100
Sucralose distnbution
Austraha Tate & Lyle ANZ Pty Limited? Sucralose disinbution and tlending 100
Belgium Tate & Lyle Services (Belgum) NV Holding company 100
Bermuda Tate & Lyle Management & Finance Lirmited Management and finance 100
Brazil Tate & Lyle BrasiI S A Citnc acid, Sucralose distnbution 100
G C Hahn & Co do Estabilizantes e Tecnologia para Blending 100
Almentos Ltda ?
Chile Tate & Lyle Chila Commercial Ltda Cereal sweeteners and starches, 100
Sucralose distribution
China Tate & Lyte Trading (Shanghai} Co Ltd Sucralose distnbution 100
G C Hahn & Co Food Stabilizer Business Blending 100
{Shanghai} Ltd 2
Croatia G C Hahn & Co d 0o Zadistnibucyu stabilizacionih Blending 100
sistama?
Czech Republic G C Hahn & Co Stabilizacrni technika, sro ? Blending 100
France GC Hahn&Cie SARL? Blending 100
Germany G € Hahn & Co Stabilisierungstechnik GmbH? Blending 100
G C Hahn & Co Cooperationsgeschaft mbH? Holding company 100
Gibraltar Tate & Lyle Insurance (Gibrattar) Limited Reinsurance 100
Italy Tate & Lyle ltalaS PA Blending 100
Lithuamia UABGC Hahn&Co? Blending 100
Mexico Tate & Lyle Mexico, S de R L.de CV Holding company 100
Morocco Tata & Lyle Morocco SA Cereal sweeteners and starches 100
Netherlands Nederlandse Glucose Industrne BV Holding company 100
Tato & Lyle Netherlands BV {Careal sweeteners and starches, 100
Sucralose distnbution
Poland G € Hahn & Co Technika stabilizowaniaSpzoo? Blending 100
Tata & Lyle Global Shared Services Spzoo Holding company 100
Russia OO0 Hahntech Servica! Blending 100
Singapore Tate & Lyle Singapore Pta Ltd High-intensity sweetenars 100
South Africa Tata & Lyle South Afnca Propnetary Limited Blending 100
Spamn G C Hahn Estabilizantes y Tecnologia para Almentos?  Blending 100
Ukraine PIIGC Hahn & Co Kiew'? Blending 100
USA Staley Holdings LLC Holding company 100
Tata & Lyle Custom Ingredients LLC Blending 100
Tata & Lyle Finance LLC In-house banking 100
TLHUS, Inc Holding company 100
Tata & Lyle Ingredients Amencas LLC Cereal sweeteners and starches 100
Tate & Lyle Sucralose LLC High-intenisity swesteners 100
TLI Holding LLC In-house banking 100

1 Non-cotermunous year-end

2 In the pnor year, the Group acquired the final 5% 1ssued share capiial of the Hahn business However due to the structure of tha acquisiiion agreement, the
Group has borne nsks and rewards of 100% of the business Accordingly, & non-controlling interest has never been recogiised since the onginal acquistion

in the 2008 financial yaar
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42 Main subsidiaries and investments continued

Joint ventures

Percentage of

squity attnbutable

Country of incorporation or registration Type of business to Tate & Lyle PLC #
Eulgarla Amylum Bulgarna EAD!? Cereal sweetengrs and starches (100} 50
Hungary Hungrana Kft'? Cereal sweeteners and starches (50} 25
Mexico Almidones Mexicanos SA2 Ceroal sweeteners and starches 50
Netherlands Holding company 50
Romania Amylum Romania S RL ! Cereal sweeteners and starches (100) 50
Slovakia Amylum Slovakia spolsro? Cereal sweeteners and starches (100) 50
Turkey Amylum Nisasta Sanay Ve Ticaret Anonim Sireket' Cereal sweeteners and starches {100) 50
USA DuPont Tate & Lyle Bio Products Company, LLC Industnal Ingredients 50

1 Share capital held by Eaststarch CV
2 Non-coterminous year-end

3 Tha proportion of shares held by Tate & Lyle PLC, its subsidianes joint ventures and associates I1s shown in brackets where it s different from the percentage of equity

attibutable to Tate & Lyle PLC
Associates
Percentage of
equity attnibutable
(_}oumry of incorporation or registration Type of business to Tate & Lyle PLC
Thailand Tapioca Development Corporation' Starch production 333

1 Indirect associates of Tate & Lyle PLC

Thosa entities which have non-coterminous year-ends are consolidated n the Group financial statements using management accounts for the

penod to 31 March

A tull isting of all the subsidianes and investments s available from the Company Secretary at 1 Kingsway, London WC2B 6AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

43 Reconciliation to adjusted information
As explained in Note 1, adjusted information 1s presanted as 1t providas both management and Investors with valuable additional information on the
performance of the business The following tems are excluded from adjusted information

- exceptional tems including profits and losses on disposals of businesses, Impairments, closure and significant business transformation actvities,
- amortisation of iIntangibla assets acquired through business combinations, and
- post-retirement benefit interest

The following table shows the reconciliation of the statutory information presented in the income statément to the adjusted information

Year to 31 March 2012 Year to 31 March 2012
Exceptional/ Exceptional/

£m (unless otherwise stated) Reported adjusting items Adjusted Reported  adjustng tems Adusted
Continuing operations
Sales 3256 - 3258 3088 - 3088
Operating profit 338 22 358 404 (586) 348
Net finance expense @n {2) (28) (25) 5) {30)
Profit before tax 309 20 329 379 (61} 318
Income tax expense (49) {10) {59) {72) 14 (58)
Profit attnbutable to owners

of the Company 260 10 270 307 {47} 260
Basic earnings per shara (pence) 560 22 58.2 659 (101) 558
Diluted earnings per share {pence) 549 21 570 646 99 547
Tax rate 15.8% 179% 19 0% 18 2%
Discontinued oparations
Sales 10 - 10 72 - 72
Operating profit/loss) 18 (26) (8) 16 (1) 5
Net finance income - - - 1 - 1
Profit/{loss) before tax 18 {26) {8) 17 (11} 6
Income tax expense - - - {15) 15 -
Profit/{loss) after tax 18 {26) {8) 2 4 6
Non-controling interasts 1) - {1 4) - 4
Profit/(loss) attnbutable to owners

of the Compary 17 (26} {9} {2) 4 2
Basic earnings/Aloss) per share (pence} 37 {5 6) {19} 04 08 05
Diluted earnings/{loss} per share (pence) 36 (5.5) {19) 03 08 05
Total operations
Sales 3266 - 3266 3180 - 3160
Operating profit 354 {4) 350 420 {B67) 353
Net finance expense {27) 2 {29) (24) (5) {29)
Profit before tax , 327 {6) 7 396 72) 324
Income tax expense (49} {10) (59) 87} 26 (58)
Profit after tax 273 {16) 262 309 43) 266
Non-controling interests {) - (1} @ - 4
Profit attnbutable to owners

of the Company 277 (16) 261 305 (43} 262
Basic earmings per share {pence) 597 34} 56 3 655 92 563
Diluted earnings per share {pence} 58 5 (3 4) 551 64 3 91) 552
Tax rate 14 9% 18 3% 219% 17 8%
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Tate & Lyle PLC

We have audited the Parent company financial
statements of Tate & Lyle PLC for the year
ended 31 March 2013 which compnise the
Parent Company Balance Sheet and the related
Notes o the Parent company financial
statements The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation 1s
applicable taw and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards {United Kingdom Generalty Accepted
Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibilities of
directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’
Statement of Respensibilities set out on page
65, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the Parent company financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give
a true and farr view Our responsibility 1S to audrt
and express an opinion on the Parent company
financial statements n accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing {UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This Report, including the opinions, has been
prepared for and enly for the company’s
members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 and for ne other purpose We do not,

in giving thase opinions, accept or assume
responsibiity for any other purpose or to any
cther person to whom this report 1s shown

or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in witting

Scope of the audit of the financial
statements

An audit involves cbtaining evidence about

the amounts and disclosures i the financial
statements sufficient to gve reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free
from matenal misstaternent, whether caused by
fraud or error This Includes an assessment of
whather the accounting poilcies are appropriate
to tha Parent company’s circumstances and
have been consistently applted and adequatety

disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors,
and the overall presentation of the financial
staterments In addition, we read all the financial
and non-financial information in the Annual
Report 2013 to identify matenal inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements If we
become aware of any apparent matenal
misstatements or Inconsistencies we consider
the implications for our report

Opmion on financial statements
In our opinion the Parent company financial
statements

~ give a true and farr view of the state
of the Parent company's affairs as at
31 March 2013,

— have been properly prepared in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and

- have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters
prescribed by the Companies Act
2006

In our opINion

— the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report 1o be audited has been properly
prepared In accordance with the Companies
Act 2008, and

— the information given in the Directors’ Report
for the financial year for which the Parent
company financial statements are prepared s
consistent with the Parent company financial
statemments

Matters on which we are required
to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters where the Companies Act
2006 requires us to report to you , in our
opinion

~ adequate accounting records have not been
kept by the Parent company, or returns
adequate for cur audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

- the Parent company financial statements
and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited are not In agreement
with the accounting records and retums, or

- certan disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made, or

- we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter

Wa have reported separately on the Group
financial staternents of Tate & Lyle PLC for the
year ended 31 March 2013

Paul Cragg (Ssnior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Charters untants and Statutory Auditors
Londcn

29 May 201

Notaes

(a) The maintenance and integrity of the Tate & Lyle
PLC websrite, and any other electronic mecha
used tc present the financial statements, 1s tha
responsibiiity of the dwectors, the work carned
out by the auditors does not nvolva consideration
of these matters and accordingly, the auditors
accept no responsibility for any changes that may
have occurred to the financial statemants since
they were inmially presented on the websita, or
any other electrormic media

{b) Legislation in the Unrted Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial
staternants may differ from legislation in other
nsdictions

SIUBWIBIES [B1aUBU)S
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Parent Company Balance Sheet

Year to 31 March

2013 2012

Notes £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 2 9 7
Investments In subsidiary undertakings 3 1006 1002
Investment in associate 4 1 1

1016 1010
Current assets
Debtors 5 1535 1480
1535 1480

Craditors - amounts falling due within one year 2] {1 407) (1 441)
Nat current assets 128 49
Total assets less current liabllities 1144 1083
Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year 7 {2) 2
Provisions for labilities 9 - (1
Net assets 1142 1056
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 2 17 117
Share premium account 13 406 406
Capital redemption reserve 13 8 8
Profit and loss account 13 611 525
Total shareholders’ funds 1142 1056

The Parent company financial statements on pages 120 to 125 were approved by the Board of Directers on 28 May 2013 and signed on its behalf by

Javed Ahmed, Tim Lodge Directors
Registered number 76535

The notes on pages 121 to 125 form part of these Parent company financial statements

L4 %))/?
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements

1 Parent Company accounting
policies

Accounting basis

The Parent company financial statements are
prepared under the histoncal cost convention
In accordance with the Companies Act 2006
and applicable UK accounting standards As
permitted by Section 408{2) of the Companies
Act 2006, the Company’s profit and loss
account and statement of total recognised
gans and [osses are not presented in these
financial statements The loss for the year
before dividends dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company amounted to

£83 million (2012 - loss of £79 million)

This inciudes audit fees in relation to the

audit of the Parent company of £01 million
(2012 - £01 milien) Accounting policies have
been applied consistently, other than where
new policies have been adopted The financial
statements are prepared on a going concern
basis as disclosed in the Tate & Lyle PLC
conscldated financial staternents for the year
ended 31 March 2013

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at histonical
purchase cost less accumulated depreciation
Cost includes the onginal purchase price of the
asset and the costs attributable to bnnging the
asset 1o its working condition for its intended
use Depreciation 1s provided on a straight-ine
basis to write off the cost of tangible fixed
assets over ther estimated useful Ife The
tangible fixed assets compnse furniture,
fixtures, fittings and computer software which
are depreciated over a pencd of five to ten
years Imparment reviews are undertaken If
there are indications that the carrying values
may not be recoverable

Investments

Unless they are financed by foreign currency
borrowings and designated as a far valus
hedging relationship, Investments in subsidianes
and associates are shown at cost less amounts
wnitten off where there 1s a permanent
dimunution in value Investments in shares

In ovarseas undertakings that are financed by
foreign currency borrowings and designated as
afair value hedging relationship are retranslated
into pounds sterling at the exchange rate ruling
at the balance sheet date and the resulting
exchange gains and losses are recognised

In the profit and loss account Exchange gams
and losses on the related foreign currency
borrowings are also recogrised in the profit and
loss account in accordance with FRS 23 The
Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

An undertaking s regarded as a subsidary
undertaking if the Company has control over
ts operating and financial policies

An undertaking I1s regarded as an associatg If
the Company holds a participating interest and
has significant influence, but not control, over
its operating and financial policies Significant
influence generally exists where the Company
holds more than 20% and less than 50% of the
shareholders’ voting nghts

Allloans and recervables to and from subsidiary
undertakings are shown at cost less amounts
written off where deemed unrecoverable

Leases
Operating lease costs are charged to profit as
incurred on a straight-line basis

Research and development
All expenditure on research and development
18 charged to profit as incurred

Retirement benefits

The Company contnbiites to the Group pension
plan operated in the UK Detalls of the plan are
included within Note 30 of the Group financial
statements As permitted under FRS17
Retirement Benefits, the plan 1s accounted for
as a defined contribution plan, as the Company,
which i1s not the principal employer, cannot
identrfy ts share of the undertying assets

and lrabilities of the plan The employer's
contributions relate to the current service
panoed only and are charged to the profit

and loss account as they are incurred

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s recogrised on a discounted full
provision basis on timing differences between
the racognition of gains and losses in the
financial statements and their recognition for
tax purposes that have arisen but not reversed
at the balance sheet date Deferred tax s not
recognised on permanent differences or on
tming differences ansing on unremitted profits
of overseas subsidiaries Deferred tax assets
are racognised only to the extent thatitis
considered more likely than not that there will
be sufficient future taxable profits to permit tax
rehef of the undertying timing differences

Foreign currencies

Monetary assets and lrabilties in foreign
currencies are translated into pounds sterling
at the rates of exchange ruling on the last day
of the financal year {the closing rate) Profits
and losses are translated into pounds sterling
at the prevaling rate at the time of transaction
and credited or charged to the profit and

loss account

Share-based compensation

The Company operates a number of equity-
settfed, share-based compensation plans
Details of the plans are included within Note 26
of the Group financial statements The fair valus
of employee services received In exchange for
the grant of the options 1s recognised as an
expense The total amount to be expensed over
the vesting penod 1S determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, earnings targets)
Non-market vesting conditions are included

In assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable

At sach balance sheet date, for opt:ons granted
with non-market vesting conditions, the
Company rewises its astmates of the number
of options that are expected to become
exercisable It recognises the mpact of the
revision of cnginal estimates, If any, in the profit

and loss account, and a corresponding
adjustment to equity The proceeds received
net of any directly attnbutable transaction costs
are credited to share caprtal and share prermium
when the options are exercised The grant

by the Company of options over its equity
nstruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group Is treated as a capital
contribution The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, 1s recognised over the vesting
penod as an increasa to investment 1N
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding
credit to equity

Dividend distribution

Final dividend distributions to the Company's
equity holders are recogrised as a liability In
the Group’s financial statements in the period

in which the dvidends are approved by the
Company's shareholders, while interim dwvidend
distnibutions are recognised in the penod in
which the dwvidends are declared and paid

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company
has a present obligation as a resutt of a past
event, it 1s probable that a transfer of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equiy
Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the
1ssue of new shares or options are shown in
equrty as a deduction, net of tax, from the
procesds

Where any Group company purchases the
Company's equity share capital and holds

that share erther drrectly as treasury shares

or ndirectly within an ESOP trust, the
consideration pawd, including any directly
attnbutable mncremental costs (net of ncome
taxas), 1s deducted from equity attnbutable to
the Company’s equity holders until the shares
are cancelled, reissued or disposed of Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued,
any consideration received, nat of any directly
attnbutable incremental transaction costs and
the related income tax effects, is iIncluded in
equity attnbutable to the Company's equity
holders These shares are used to satisfy share
options granted to employees under the
Group's share option schemes The trustee
purchases the Company's shares on the open
market using loans made by the Company or
other loans guaranteed by the Company

SIUIWIYELS [BIoUBLY
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements continued

2 Tangible assets

Total
£m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2012 9
Additions 3
At 31 March 2013 12
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2012 2
Charge for tha year 1
At 31 March 2013 3
Net book value at 31 March 2012 7
Net book value at 31 March 2013 9
3 Investments in subsidiary undertakings
Shares in
subsidiary
undertakings
£m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2012 1557
Increase — share based payments 7
Exchanga 1
At 31 March 2013 1565
Impairment
At 1 April 2012 555
Provision for impairment 3
Exchange 1
At 31 March 2013 559
Net book value at 31 March 2012 1002
Net book value at 31 March 2013 1006

A list of the main subsidianies 13 disclosed within Note 42 of the Group consclidated financial staterments The provision for impairment reflects an
adjustment to the recoverable amount to the Company's Investment in Tate & Lyls Ventures Ltd and Tate & Lyts Services Belgum NV upon paymant
of a dividend to the Company The directors believe that the carrying value of the investments Is supported by the value of ther undertying net assets

4 Investment in associate

The Company holds a 16 6% intersst of ordinary shares In Tapioca Development Comporation, a company incorporated In Thalland, for book value

of £1 milion {2012 - £1 mibon) and has net assets of £3 mitlon

5 Debtors

31 March
2013 2012
£m £m

Due within one year
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 1531 1486
Other debtors a 4
Total 1535 1490

The effective interest rate applicable to amounts cwed by subsidiary undertakings at 31 March 2013 15 2 3% (2012 - 2 8%) Amounts owed by

subsiciary undertakings are recevable on demand Thare 1s no security for nen-trading amounts
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6 Creditors — amounts falling due within one year

3 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 1392 1426
Other creditors 5 B
Accruals and deferred Income 10 9
Total 1407 1441

The effective iInterest rate applicable to amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings at 31 March 2013 ts 2 3% {2012 - 2 9%) Amounts owed to
subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand There 1s no security for non-trading amounts

7 Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year

31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Preferance shares {(Note a) 2 2
Total 2 2

@ Onareturn of capital on a winding-up, the halders of 6 5% cumulatwe preference shares shall be entitied to £1 per share, in preference
to all other classes of shareholders Holders of these shares are entitled to vote at meetings, except on the following matters any question
as to the disposal of the surplus profits after the dividend on these shares has been provided for, the election of directors, their remuneration,
any agreement between the directors and the Company, or the alteration of the Articles of Association dealing with any such matters

8 Deferred tax
Deferred tax charged to profit in the year was £nil 2012 - £nil)

9 Provisions for habilities

Restructuring

£m

At 1 Aprit 2012 1
Credited to the profit and loss account (1)
At 31 March 2013 -

10 Contingent habilities

31 March

2013 202

£m £m

Loans and overdrafts of subsidianes and joint ventures [ 938 | 863

Guarantees given in respect of drawn and undrawn loans and overdrafts by Tate & Lyle PLC ware £1,645 million at 31 March 2013
(2012 —£2,108 milion)

Other trade guarantees have been given in the normal course of business by Tate & Lyle PLC at both 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 These are
excluded from the figures given above and are in respect of Revenue and Customs and the Rural Payments Agency for Agncultural Produce bonds,

ECGD recourse agreements, Istters of credit, and tender and paerformance bonds ;
11 Financial commitments 2
Annual payments made by the Company i the year ended 31 March 2013 i1n respect of operating leases ware £1 million (2012 — £4 milior) f_g@
At the balance sheet date, the Company has outstanding capital commitments of £5 milion due within the year Operating lease commitments for g
land and buildings fail due as follows i
a

31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Within one year 1 1

Later than ane year and no later than five years 6 6

After five yoars 12 13

Total 19 20
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements continued

12 Called up share capital
Allotted, called up and fully paid equity share capital

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Shares £m Shares £m

At 1 April 468 160 519 117 | 468111 340 117
Allotted under share option schemes 32381 - 49179 -
At 31 March 468 192 900 17 | 468160519 117

Treasury shares and shares held in ESOP trust
As at 31 March 2013, the Company held 1,841,533 shares (2012 — 2,545,376 shares) In Treasury

During the year, 2,703,843 shares {2012 — 379,952 shares) were refsased from Treasury to satisfy share options exercised

During the year, the Company repurchased 2,000,000 shares (2012 — 2,750,000 shares) to be held in Treasury for £13 million {2012 ~ £19 melion) to
satisfy share options granted to smployees undsr the Group’s share option schemes The shares repurchased represent 0 4% of the Company's
called up share capital at 31 March 2013 (2012 — 0 8%) and had a nominal value of £0 & million {2012 — £0 7 million}

The shares held \n Treasury at 31 March 2013 represented 0 4% (2012 - 0 5%} of the Company’s share capital at the year end, and have a nominal
value of less than £0 5 million (2012 — £0 6 million)

As at 31 March 2013, the Company held 2,571,642 shares (2012 — 1,250,182 shares) in an ESOP trust
Duning the year, 178,540 shares (2012 — 1,463,512 shares} were released from the ESOP trust to satisty share options exercised

During the year, the Company repurchased 1,500,000 shares (2012 — nil) to be held in the ESOP trust for £10 milion to satisfy share options granted
to employees under the Group's share option schemes The shares repurchased represent 0 3% of the Company's called up share caprtal at
31 March 2013 (2012 — nil) and had a nominal value of £0 4 million

The shares hesld in the ESOP trust at 31 March 2013 represent 0 5% (2012 — 0 3%} of the Company’s share capital at year end, have a nominal value
of £0 6m (2012 - £0 3m) and a market value of 850 Op per shara (2012 - 705 Op per share)

13 Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Caprial
Ordinary  Share prermium redempton Profit and loss

shares account reserve account Tatal

£m £m £m Em £m

At 1 April 2012 117 406 8 525 1056
Profit for the financial year - - - 212 212
Proceeds from shares issued - - - 1 1
Share-based payments - - - 13 13
Ordinary dvidends paid - - - (117) (117
Share purchase - - - 23 (23
At 31 March 2013 "7 406 8 611 1142

Capital
Ordinary  Share premium redemption Profit and loss

shares aoccount resarve account Total

£m £m £m £m £m

At 1 Apnl 2011 117 406 8 721 1252
Loss for the financial year - - - 79 {79)
Proceeds from shares Issued - - - 3 3
Share-based payments - - - 1 "
Crdinary dividends paid - - - (112) (112
Share purchase - - - (19) (19)
At 31 March 2012 117 406 8 525 1056

Ordinary shares carry the nght to participate in dividends and each share entities tha holder to one vote on matters requiring sharsholder
approval except for ordinary shares hald in an ESOP trust or Treasury shares The amount avalable for the payment of dmdands by the Company
at 31 March 2013 was £616 million (2012 - £525 million)

14 Related parties
As permitted by FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures, related party transactions with wholly owned subsidianies of Tate & Lyle PLC are not disclosed

There were no transactions with other related parties except for the provision of guarantees in respect of banking faciities of a joint venture totaling
£9 millton (2012 — £10 mullion)
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15 Profit and loss account disclosures

As permitted by Section 408{2) of the Companies Act 2008, the Company has not presented its own profit and loss account

The Company employed 121 staff including directors (2012 - 107) and the total staff costs are shown below

3% March

2013 2012

£m £rm

Wages and salaries 11 14
Social secunty 3 4
Retrement benefits 1 1
Share-based payments 6 5]
Total 21 25

Directors' emoluments disclosures are provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 50 to 62 of this Annual Report and m Note 8 of the

Group financial statements

In addition, 6,073,157 {2012 — 5,527,048) outstanding share options attnbutable to employees and directors of the Comparny as at 31 March 2013 are

shown below .
Number of Subscnption  Dates normally
Year 1ssued shares prices (pence) sxercisable
Sharesave Scheme — 3 year options 2010 13055 488 Q0 2014
201 17 962 55200 2015
2012 17 486 60700 2016
Sharesave Scheme - 5 year options 2008 3662 376 00 2014
2008 4 464 41800 2015
2010 4989 48800 2016
201 7 063 55200 2017
2012 10971 60700 2018
Parformance Share Plan 2008 65683 - 2011-2018
2009 281 759 - 2012-2018
2010 1037 033 - 2013-2019
2011 961 478 . - 2014-2020
2012 1182758 - 20152021
Executive share option scheme 2003 180 32500 2007-2014
Javed Ahmed — compensatory awards 2008 419 403 - 2011-2017
2009 257 870 - 2012-2018
Javed Ahmed — long-term incentive awards 2009 656 640 - 2012-2018
2010 473042 - 2013-2019
2011 378337 - 20142020
Group Bonus Plan 20m 4281 - 2013
201 142519 - 2013-2018
2012 4 791 - 2014-2020

16 Dividends

Deotails of the Company’s dividends are set out in Note 14 of the Group financial statements
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Five-year Review Financial Years to 31 March

Share information

Pence {unless otherwise stated) 2009 2010° 2011 2m2! 2013
Closing share price at 31 March 2605 454 2 5775 7050 8500
Earnings per share {pence)
- basic? 142 33 353 655 597
- basic, before amortisation, exceptional tems and post-
retirement benefit interest? 381 411 446 563 56 3
Earnings per share {pence)
— dilutad? 141 33 347 643 585
- diluted, before amortisation, exceptionat iters and post-
retirement benefit interest? 388 409 439 852 551

Dividend 229 229 237 249 26 2
Closing market capitalisation {€ million) 1198 2092 2 665 3283 3946
Business ratios
Interest cover - times 61 58 89 111 11
Profit before interest, exceptional tems and amortisation divided

by net finance expense??
Gearing 122% 95% 4A8% 45% 46%
Net borrowings as a percentage of total nst assets?
Net margin 6 8% 82% 96% 12% 10.7%
Profit before interest, exceptional items and amortisation

as a percentage of sales?
Return on net operating assets 127% 141% 20 2% 22 9% 21.6%
Profit before interest and exceptional tems as a percentage

of averaga net operating assets?
Dividend cover {times)
Basic earnings per share after exceptional tems, amortisation

and post-retirement benefit nterest dvided by dmdends

per share (pencey 06 01 15 26 23
Basic earnings per share before exceptional tems, amortisaticn

and post-retirement benefit interest divided by dvidends

per share (psnce) 17 18 19 23 21

-

‘Amortisation relates to the amortigation of intangible assets acquired through business combmnations
2 Thesa metncs have been calculated using the results of both continuing and discontinued operations

3 Interest covar has bean calculated using the same basis as set out In the Group 3 extarnal bank covenants

Results prasented above are for years to 31 March and have been calculated using the Group's published intenm and full-year financial statements
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2009' 2000 2m 2012 2013
Employment of capirtal £m £m tm £m £m
Goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 1922 1548 1175 1247 1314
QOther non-current assets 19 21 24 28 33
Working capital 605 302 279 370 497
Pension deficit 211 257y (139) (140) (265)
Net assets held for sale (excluding cash included in net borrowings) 28 18 62 63 1
Net operating assets 23863 1632 1401 1568 1580
Net borrowings {1231) 814) 464) {476) 479)
Net {(habilities)/assets for dvidends and tax (119) 36 36 {34) (65)
Total net asssets 1013 854 973 1058 1036
Capital employed
Calfed up share capital 115 118 17 17 117
Reserves 872 712 833 916 k]
887 827 950 1033 1036
Non-controlling interests . 26 27 23 25 -
1013 854 973 1058 1036
Profit summary'
Sales 2 505 2533 2720 3088 3 256
Group operating profit
Before exceptional tems and amortisation? 286 268 321 348 358
Amortisation of Intangible assets acquired
through business combinations (15) {14} {13) {12) {10)
Exceptional tems {110) {298) {5) 68 {12)
Group operating profit/{loss) 161 a4 303 404 336
Net finance expense excluding post-retirement benefit Interest {49) (53) {54) (30} (29)
Post-retirement benefit interest &) (19 @ 5 2
Profit/{loss) before tax 108 {116} 245 378 309
Income tax (expense)/credit (11 g5 (49) 72) (49)
Profit/{loss) after tax g7 21) 196 307 260
Discontnued operations 31) 40 {29) 2 18
Non-controlling interests (1)) {4} @ (4) (U]
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 65 15 163 305 277
Profit before tax, exceptional dems, amortisation and
post-retirement benefit interest? 237 215 267 318 329
Earmings/loss) per share attributable to the owners of the
Company from continuing operations
-basic 210 47 426 659 56.0
- diluted 209 47 19 646 54.9

1 The profit summanes for the years ended 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2010 have been restated to reflect the former Sugars businesses which have been classed

as discontinued operations and are excluded from all years presented

2 ‘Amortisation’ relates to the amortisation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations
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Information for Investors

Dividends on ordinary shares
Two paymants were made during the tax year 2012/2013 as follows

Dradend
Payment date Dradend description per sharg
3 Aug 2012 Final 2012 178p
4 Jan 2013 Intenim 2013 74p

Shareholding enquiries

General enquiries

Information on how to manage your sharehoidings can be found at https.//help shareview co uk The website also prowides answers to commonly asked
questions regarding shareholder registration and links to downlcadable forms, guidance notes and company history fact sheets

Email enquiries (Equimti Shareview Enquiry Service)

If your question is not answered by the information provided online you can send your anguiry via secure email from the above website You will be
asked to complete a structured form and to prowvide your Sharsholder Reference, name and address You wiil also need to provide your emall address
ff this 1s how you would like to recerve your responss

Telephone enquiries
0871 384 2063 {for UK calls)’
+44 (01121 415 0235 {for calls from outside the UK)

1 Calls to this number are charged at Bp per munute plus network extras Lines are open from Monday to Fnday 8 30am to 5 30pm UK time (excluding UK public holidays)

Written enquiries
Equint Limited, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex BN99 6DA

Individual Savings Account (ISA)
Tata & Lyla's ordinary shares can be held n an ISA. For information, plaasa call the Equint ISA Helpling on 0871 384 2244

Tate & Lyle website (www.tateandlyle.com) and share price information

Tate & Lyle's website provides direct links to other Group company sites and to sites prowiding financial and other information relevant to the
Company The share price Is avalable on the website with a 20-minute delay Similar information i1s available on many specialist websites and
In several national newspapers

Capital gains tax
The markst valuas on 31 March 1982 for the purposes of indexation up to April 1998 In relation to capital gains tax of Tate & Lyle PLC shares then

In ISSUe were

Ordinary shares of £1 each 201 00p
Equrvalent value per ordinary share of 25p 50 25p
6%% cumulative preferance shares 43 50p

Tate & Lyle American Depositary Shares (ADSs)

The Company's shares trade m the USA on the over the countar (OTC) market in the form of ADSs and these are evidenced by American Deposttary
Recelpts (ADRs) The shares are traded on the OTCQX exchange under the ticker symbol TATYY Each ADS 15 equivalent to four ordinary shares
For more information, contact the Bank of New York Mellon at

The Bank of New York Mellon, Shareowner Services, PO Box 358515, Pittsburgh, PA 15252-8516
Tel +1 888 269 2377 ({for US calls) +1 201 680 6825 (for calls from outside the USA)

On 10 April 2007, Tate & Lyle was approved for the International PremierQiX tier of International OTCQX This provides a gateway to US secunties
markets for international companies that are hsted on a qualified international exchange Tate & Lyle's ADR is identified with an Internatignal
PremierQX logo and investors can find current financial Information and other disclosure on www otcgx com and www pinksheets com
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Financial calendar

2013 Annual General Meeting 24 July 2013
Announcement of half-year results for six months to 30 September 2013 7 Nov 20131
Announcement of full-year results for the year ending 31 March 2014 28 May 2014°
2014 Annual General Meeting 24 July 2014
1 Provisional date
Dividend on ordinary shares

2013 final 2014 interim 2014 final
Announced 30 May 2013 7 Nov 2013'| 29 May 2014!
Payment date 2 Aug 20132 3dJan 2014 1 Aug 201412

1 Prowisional date
2 Subject to the approval of shareholders

Dividends on 6'2% cumulative preference shares

Paid each 31 March and 30 September

Electronic communications

Shareholder documents are only sent In paper format to shareholders who have electad to receive documents in this way This approach enables
the Company to reduce printing and distrbution costs and its impact on the envirgnment

Shareholders who have not elscted to receive paper copies are sent a notification whenever shareholder documents are published, to advise them
how to access the documents wia the Tate & Lyle website, www tateandlyle com Shargholders may also choose to receve this notification via email
with a fink to the relevant page on the website Shareholders who wish to receive email notification should register online at www shareview co uk,
using ther reference number that 1s either on their share certificate or other correspondence

Non-reliance statement

This Annual Report has been prepared solely
1o provide additional information to shareholders
to assess the Group’s strategy and the potential
of that strategy to succeed and should not

be relied upon by any cther party or for any
other purpose

Cautionary statement

This Annual Report containg certain forward-
looking statements with respect to the financial
condition, resulls, cperations and businesses
of Tate & Lyle PLC These statements and
forecasts involve risk and uncertainty because
they relate to events and depend upon
creumnstances that may occur in the future
There are a number of factors that coud cause
actual results or developments to differ
matenally from those expressed or implied

by these forward-looking statements and
forecasts Nothmg in this Annual Report
should be construed as a profit forecast

Tate & Lyle PLC

Tate & Lyte PLC 1s a pubhc limited company
listed on the London Stock Exchangs and
registered in England This 1s the Annual Report
for the year ended 31 March 2013 More
information about Tate & Lyle can be found on
the Company's website, www tateandiyle com

Basis of preparation

Unless stated ctherwise, the Group's financial
statements are prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the EU

Amortisation

Unless stated otherwise, the use of the

word 'amortisation’ on pages 1to 6510

this Annual Report relates to the amortisation
of Intangibte assets acquired through
business combinations

Continuing operations

Unless stated otherwise, all comments in

this Annual Report rafer to the continuing
operations adjusted to exclude exceptional
Iitemns, amortisation of intangible assets
acquired through business combinations and
post-retirement benefit nterest A reconciliation
of reported and adjusted information 1s Included
in Note 43

Definitions

In this Report, ‘Company’ means Tate & Lyle
PLC, ‘Tate & Lyle’ or 'Group’ means Tate & Lyle
PLC and its subsidiary and joint-veniure
companies

Environmental statement

This report 1s printed on Heaven 42 and all

of the pulp 1s bleached using an elemental
chlonne free process {ECF) Pninted in the UK
by Purepnnt using Its alcofree® and pureprint®
environmental pnnting technology, and
vegetable Inks wera used throughout
Purepnnt 1s a CarbonNeutral® company and
beth the manufactunng mill and Purepnnt are
registerad to the Environmental Managemeant
System ISO 14001 and are Forest Stewardship
Coungcil® {FSC) chain-of-custody certified

If you have firished with this Annual Report
and no longer wish to retain it, please pass
1t on to other interested readers or dispose
of it n your recycled paper waste

The CO= emissions from the production and
distribution of this Annual Report have been
offset through the purchase of carbon credits In
the Purepnnt Gold programme The offsets are
always i Gold Standard accredited projects and
currently come from the Basa Magogo project

N South Africa The first Gold Standard project
of its kind in the world, this Innovative behaviour-
change programme teaches local communities
in South Africa to burn coal more efficiently
thereby reducing carbon emissions and
reducing health nisks by producing less smoke

Registered office

Tate & Lyle PLC

1 Kingsway

London WC2B 6AT

Tel +44 ()20 7257 2100
Fax +44 (0)20 7257 2200
Company number 76535
www tateandlyle com
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